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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FREBREUARERE I mR D

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2020.

OVERALL REVIEW

In 2020, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,246,809,000
(2019: HK$1,458,003,000) and gross profit of HK$182,199,000
(2019: HK$376,523,000). The Group recorded loss for the year
of HK$756,738,000 (2019: HK$54,016,000), which was mainly
because the general aviation aircraft piston engine business
recorded a loss of HK$749,196,000 (2019: HK$20,310,000) for
the year as a result of the coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic
(the “COVID-19 Pandemic”) and the deteriorated economic
environment.

Basic loss per share amounted to HK¢8.13 (2019: HK¢0.58).
The return on equity, calculated on the basis of profit/loss
attributable to owners of the parent as a percentage of equity
attributable to owners of the parent, was -27% (2019: -2%).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group has only one reportable operating
segment, the general aviation aircraft piston engine business,
which is engaged in the design, development and production of
general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well
as the provision of aftermarket services and support for piston
engines.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2020, the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business recognised revenue of HK$1,246,809,000 (2019:
HK$1,458,003,000) and gross profit of HK$182,199,000
(2019: HK$376,523,000), and recorded loss for the year of
HK$749,196,000 (2019: HK$20,310,000). Impairment of
goodwill and other intangible assets of HK$471,044,000 (2019:
Nil) was recorded by the business mainly due to the COVID-19
Pandemic and the deteriorated economic environment. Selling
and distribution expenses increased from HK$90,768,000
to HK$127,077,000 mainly because a warranty provision
of HK$51,003,000 was made due to a recall of products
by our subsidiary in Germany for replacement of parts for
safety issues. Had the effect from the fair value adjustments
on the identifiable assets acquired from the acquisition of
the business in 2018 charged to current year's profit or loss
of HK$44,773,000 (2019: HK$55,644,000) been excluded,
the general aviation aircraft piston engine business would
have recorded loss of HK$704,423,000 (2019: profit of
HK$35,334,000).

2020 has become one of the most challenging years in the
history of the general aviation aircraft piston engine business
owing to the outbreak of the COVID-19 Pandemic and natural
disasters. Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the USA and
global gross domestic product decreased by 4.3% and 4.2%,
respectively. During the first quarter to the third quarter, the
global piston airplane market decreased by 10.9% as compared
with the same period of 2019. With the implementation of
quarantine measures and travel restrictions, the piston airplane
deliveries experienced a 15% decline during the first quarter
of 2020 as compared with 2019 and decreased by 21% in the
second quarter, with a rebound of 7% increase in the third
quarter. As the COVID-19 vaccines become available, it is
expected that the USA economy will be recovered in 2021 and
2022. The piston airplane market will also increase accordingly.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FREBREUARERE I mR D

In 2020, our sales income decreased by 14% year-on-year,
which was mainly attributable to the unpredictable pandemic
around the world, two hurricanes sweeping through North
America, and the supply chain shortage of avgas-powered
engine, which is our major product, as well as machine
downtime. Notwithstanding the challenges encountered,
we successfully stimulated sales through several marketing
campaigns and offset the impact brought by the above adverse
factors to a certain extent.

Our state-of-the-art manufacturing plant located in Mobile,
Alabama USA was initially scheduled to be completed in
2020. To date, we have moved around 37% of staff, 61% of
equipment, and 19% of manufacturing centers to the new
plant. The manufacturing centers that have been transferred
include cylinder barrel machining, fuel/ignition system,
camshaft milling and cylinder assembly machining. However,
the deliveries and training for certain equipment were delayed
due to international travel restrictions. The major production
lines are expected to be transferred and ready for operation in
2021.
increase our production capacity and effectively reduce the

It is expected that the brand-new plant will significantly

production cost.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Listed equity investments

Last year, the Group held shares issued by Peace Map Holding
Limited (“PMH") and AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (“AVIC
Joy"), listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”), which were classified as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

PMH’s shares had been suspended for trading since 2018 and
were delisted on 3 August 2020. The fair values of the shares
have been assessed at Nil since 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group disposed of all AVIC Joy's shares
it held to an independent third party, for a cash consideration
of HK$26,821,000. As gains or losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income will not be recycled
to profit or loss when the investments are derecognised, the
disposal had no effect on profit or loss. Further details of the
disposal were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 September 2020.

Joint ventures and associates

During the year, the Group recorded share of losses of the joint
ventures and an associate in an aggregate of HK$1,191,000
(2019: HK$38,689,000). The drop in the share of losses was
mainly because the Group has discontinued the recognition of
its share of losses of a joint venture as the share of losses of the
joint venture exceeded the Group's interest in it and the Group
has no obligation to take up further losses.

On 30 November 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with an independent third party, pursuant
to which the purchaser agreed to acquire the Group’s equity
interest held in the joint venture with a consideration of
RMB11,500,000. The disposal has not been completed as of 31
December 2020

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses consist of salaries and wages,
product liability expenses, legal and professional expenses
and other general expenses. During the year, the Group
recorded administrative expenses of HK$316,682,000 (2019:
HK$319,450,000).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FREBREUARERE I mR D

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current
assets of HK$1,553,030,000 (2019: HK$1,654,279,000),
including cash and bank balances and time deposits in an
aggregate of HK$914,072,000 (2019: HK$990,386,000).
The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2020 were
HK$612,235,000 (2019: HK$527,355,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total equity amounted
to HK$2,846,140,000 (2019: HK$3,573,694,000), comprising
issued capital of HK$930,337,000 (2019: HK$930,337,000) and
reserves of HK$1,915,803,000 (2019: HK$2,643,357,000). The
Group's interest-bearing debts included interest-bearing bank
borrowings of HK$252,902,000 (2019: HK$225,161,000) and
lease liabilities of HK$314,897,000 (2019: HK$320,610,000).
The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the
interest-bearing debts as a percentage of total equity plus the
interest-bearing debts, was 17% (2019: 13%).

The Group's banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the charges on the Group’s assets are set out in note
34(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has intra-group balance denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The
carrying amount of the intra-group asset is EUR19,500,000
(equivalent to HK$180,863,000) as at 31 December 2020
(2019: EUR19,625,000, equivalent to HK$171,326,000). An
increase or decrease of 5% in HK$ against EUR, will increase or
decrease in the Group's loss before tax of HK$9,043,000.

In addition, as most of the Group’s business transactions, assets
and liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group's other exposure to
foreign currency risk is minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere in this annual
report, the Group had no material acquisitions or disposals
during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. The Group has been keeping track
on the major trends in environmental protection around the
world and has been making an effort to integrate the concept
of environmental protection in its operations. Based on new
technology and management approach, the Group strictly
controls its environmental impact and resource usage such
that cleaner production featuring lower pollution and lower
emissions thus sustainable development can be achieved.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FREHREUKREERE N RR I

The Group strictly complies all applicable laws and regulations
released by the relevant authorities which are material to us.
Throughout the year of 2020, there was no non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, there were 560 (2019: 650)
employees in the Group. The employees’ wages and salaries
amounted to HK$233,668,000 (2019: HK$293,581,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group recognises
the importance of good relationship with employees. The
Directors believe that the working environment and benefits
offered to employees have contributed to building good staff
relations and retention. The Group’s remuneration policies are
formulated based on the performance of individual employees
and market conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses and
share options to eligible staff based on their performance and
contributions to the Group.

OUTLOOK

It is our strategy to provide customers with premium products
and services. Nevertheless, we also face problems such as
fragile supply chains and high absenteeism rate as many other
companies do, and such situation will continue until a greater
base of the general population are vaccinated. Our global
research and development team has developed several projects
for the product lines of both avgas and jet fuel, and the current
progress of all these projects are in line with our expectation.
From 2021 onwards, we will strive to become the best choice
for customers through constant innovation. Besides, by putting
the new plant into operation, we hope to create a safe,
innovative, and efficient workplace so as to further promote the
steady growth of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Lai Weixuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREREEREZEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Weixuan, aged 56, has been an executive Director
since June 2015 and the chairman of the Company and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) since August 2019. He is a
senior accountant, holding doctorate degree in Management
of Tongji University and an EMBA of Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University. Mr. Lai is now the chairman of
AVIC International Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”)
and AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC International
(HK) Group”). Mr. Lai
Company Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen"”), a wholly owned

joined AVIC International Shenzhen
subsidiary of AVIC International, in 1983. He previously
served as the deputy general manager of AVIC Shenzhen,
the Chairman of Fiyta Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”), the deputy
Ltd.(“Tianma")
and the chairman of Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd.

chairman of Tianma Microelectronics Co.,
("Rainbow Department Store”). Fiyta, Tianma and Rainbow
Department Store are companies listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lai has rich experience in finance and operation
management, and once acted as an executive director of AVIC
International Holdings Limited (“AVIC IHL") from 2004 to 2012
and 2014 to 2020.
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Mr. Huang Yongfeng, aged 46, has been an executive Director
and a member of nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) since January 2021. He obtained
a Master degree in management engineering from Beihang
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Huang is currently the deputy general manager of AVIC
International and the Chairman of FIYTA Precision Technology
Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, since September 2017. Mr. Huang was previously a
Chairman and general manager of AVIC International Holding
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd., a general manager assistant of AVIC
International, a deputy general manager, general manager
assistant and a manager of corporate strategy and management
department of AVIC Shenzhen and a board secretary of AVIC
IHL. Further, he was also previously a director of each of AVIC
Sunda Holding Company Limited (“AVIC Sunda”) (P
&P B R/AE]), Rainbow Department Store and Tianma, which
shares are listed and traded on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Mr. Huang was also previously a chairman of Castic-SMP
Machinery Corp Ltd. Mr. Huang has extensive experience in
financial management, investment and financing management,
mergers and acquisitions, as well as aviation manufacturing
and aviation operation areas. He is also the director of two
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Zhibiao, aged 47, has been an executive Director
since August 2018. Mr. Zhang is currently the head of the
operations management department of AVIC International.
Mr. Zhang previously served as an executive director of AVIC
Joy, a director of AVIC Sunda., the president assistant of AVIC
Securities Co., Ltd (FHzEFERAE) (formerly known as
SouthChina Securities Co., Ltd.* CIEEHBRSE A E)), the
head of SouthChina Financial Research Institute* (I &5 BhHT
ZTFfr) and the deputy office manager of the capital operation
office of AVIC International. Mr. Zhang was also the office
manager of international aviation business, the head of the
administrative management department and the head of the
planning and development department of AVIC International.
Mr. Zhang has over 22 years of working experience in the areas
of management, aviation business, strategic development,
industries research, securities, investment and initial public
offerings.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREEREZEE

Mr. Yu Xiaodong, aged 48, has been an executive Director
since August 2018. He obtained a Master’'s Degree in
International Trade from University of International Business
and Economics in 1997. He previously served as the project
manager of AVIC International, the assistant general manager
of AVIC International Harbin Company* (7 /1[5 055
BAE),
international cooperation department of AVIC International, the

the operations management vice director of the

organisational performance director of the human resources
department of AVIC International, the vice general manager
of the human resources department of AVIC International
and the general manager of the auditing department of AVIC
International. He is also the director of six subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. Zhao Yang, aged 50, has been an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company since August 2019.
Mr. Zhao previously served as the chief financial officer of
the Company starting from January 2017. Mr. Zhao is also a
director of Tacko International Limited and certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Finance
from Nankai University and EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School. Mr. Zhao is a senior economist.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhao held senior management
positions in different companies, of which two are Shenzhen
listed companies. Mr. Zhao has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and finance.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, /p, aged 73, has been a non-executive
Director since June 2015. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture
degree from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970
and November 1972, respectively. He has been an Authorised
Person (List of Architects) and a Registered Architect since July
1976 and January 1991, respectively. He was also admitted as
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects since August
2001. He is currently an executive director of CK Asset Holdings
Limited ("CKAH"), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison Group in July
1995 and was the group managing director of the property
and hotels divisions of the Hutchison Group since 2000. He is
now the group managing director of Hutchison Property Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKAH. He has over 40
years of experience in project management and architectural
design for various developments, including hotel, residential,
commercial, industrial and school projects in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /2 s8S, aged 77, has been an
independent non-executive Director since May 1999. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee and the chairman
of each of the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chu
received his Master of Business Administration degree from
Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering and
Management at Northeastern University and was awarded an
honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group
Limited, and was an independent non-executive director of
Chuang’s China Investments Limited until June 2020, all being
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREEREZEE

Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 66, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2007. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Chemistry
and Administration. He is the senior advisor of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited. Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, UK. He is an independent
non-executive director of China Merchants Port Holdings
Company Limited, China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Goldlion
Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited, Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings Limited and
CR Construction Group Holdings Limited, all being listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 56, has been an independent non-
executive Director since May 2017. He is also a chairman and
member of the Nomination Committee and the member of
Audit Committee. He received a doctoral degree in Economics
from Chinese Academy of Social Science Graduate School
(PETERBERAZESER) . Mr. Zhang started working at
the Institute of Economics under Chinese Academy of Social
Science (Bl & R 2B ITER) since July 1988. He once
led and organized key national research project on economics.
He published several essays based on theory research and
surveys. His major research fields are the growth of China
economy and macroeconomic policies. Mr. Zhang was an
independent non-executive director of AVIC IHL until December
2014. He is currently an independent director of Minsheng
Tonghui Asset Management Co., Lid (R4EBEEEEEBRA
).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lin Jining, aged 49, joined the Group in June 2018 as
deputy chief financial officer and is responsible for the Group's
corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting and economic from
University of Xiamen. Mr. Lin held senior management positions
in different companies. He has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and finance and international aviation business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except as noted

hereunder:

Other than the non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the independent non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without specific terms (code provision
A.4.1), details of which are mentioned under the section
headed "NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS" in this report.

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that the Directors cannot deal
in the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.
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The Directors are required to notify the chief executive
officer (who is also a Director) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chief
executive officer himself, he must notify the chairman and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidents of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five executive Directors, and
one non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. An independent non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. All Directors served the full year for the year ended 31
December 2020. With effect from 25 January 2021, Mr. Fu
Fangxing has tendered his resignation as an executive Director
and Mr. Huang Yongfeng has been appointed as an executive
Director. The composition of the Board and the biographical
details of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 15 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is
no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) between Board members.
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Notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
any Director may be appointed or engaged at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons who
became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by
lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. A new
Director appointed by the Board after the preceding annual
general meeting shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Nomination Committee will carefully consider the
qualifications and experience of each candidate, before making
evaluation and submitting its recommendations to the Board
on the candidates for the appointment of new Directors, re-
election of Directors and filling any vacancy in the Board. After
the Board approves the proposal in relation to the nomination
of candidates for Directors, the proposal will be submitted
to the shareholders’ general meeting for consideration and
approval.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect
of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31
December 2020:

1. performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;
2. reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies

and practices;

3. reviewed the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group;

4. reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and

5. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and makes operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.
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The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance cover each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances through the chairman at the expense
of the Company. The availability of professional advice extends
to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the company
secretary and, together with any supporting Board papers,
are available to all Board members. During the year ended
31 December 2020, nine Board meetings were held by the
Company.

TEERRS
AATCEHITREREENTBERRE
HHERNESEAR.

ARBEEREEERBRBENAEZ AR
ERERHBERE ~RADSFHRRZMF
PR EETRA -

FIEESHINERATNWENTRMARS
NENEEERREREFEEFAIER
RRANRBEL  TERMERKREZREEE
MESEREERFNER - ENEFUEE
ENBERTERBEIFESRBUEERTR U
WEERMESFBETHARARANE R EAH
ARBXN -BREXERTEARELZ
Eg RYLEEERFIMEEE-

EXEgRCBHARNERET  ERMEM
EENEEEXH IHESEEMERED
RM-RBEZZZEHF+B=+—HIHF
B> RARBIBRITAREEETEH -

21



22

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited - 7.1 — (R g A_:'b
FEMZ T ZERERER (F8) BEIRAT " '«3;}" e :
Annual Report 2020 —Z& — 2 FFHR i :

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEELGRS
The attendance record of Directors at Board meetings and other BEERHE _T _ZF+_B=+—HILE

Committee meetings as well as general meetings during the ERALFESTTEZRHEMSETTHEUR
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the table below: REAGME RN TR

Number of regular meetings or Number of general
meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
HEBTENEENGERY HEBITREAERH
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee Annual Special
Director B% E5g HMNEEE RBLEZEE BRKZEZEE BE 1R
Executive Directors HITEE
Lai Weixuan (Chairman) ~ BEE () 9/9 11 - - 0/1 0/1
Huang Yongfeng? HE g - - - - - -
Fu Fangxing* EyaEN 9/9 - 1/1 - 0/1 0/1
Zhang Zhibiao REIE 9/9 - - - 0/1 01
Yu Xiaodong REER 9/9 - - - 0/1 01
Zhao Yang fizkz) 9/9 - = = 171 11
Non-executive Director ~ FEHITEE
Chow Wai Kam BEE 9/9 - - - 171 il
Independent BUFHTEE
Non-executive Directors
Chu Yu Lin, David KAk 9/9 171 i 5/5 11 il
Li Ka Fai, David TR 9/9 171 - 5/5 11 il
Zhang Ping R 9/9 - 11 5/5 0/1 11
* Mr. Fu Fangxing has resigned on 25 January 2021. e BHEREGCN _E_—F—8 - +HHAHT
& Mr. Huang Yongfeng has been appointed as an executive Director — * BEERAENR_ZE_—F—HA_+HHEZS
on 25 January 2021. ERHITES-

Save for the annual general meeting, one special general MRBREBEARZIHIN R_ET_SERLEFTT
meeting was held during the year 2020. —RERFRARE -
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL BEEEINREEEE
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director was given a comprehensive, SLHEZINEZTEALATE2E EXEES
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he is fully EM &R MEB > LR RMPETE2HE R
aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law, the SEZERRE@EE EHRE23E KREHM
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements. BEERE THEE-

All directors were encouraged to participate in continuous AAGHENEREFTLHFEFTERRE &
professional development to develop and refresh their EBUEHFHMBARE - BEEERENT
knowledge and skills. According to the records provided by the $%>EBER B -_FBEXRFZLUTIEI
Directors, the Directors received the following training during

the year 2020:

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

FEERERAIER

Reading materials Attending briefing
and updates sessions/seminars
Director o REME REHRER HEMSAG/MAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Lai Weixuan BEE v v
Huang Yongfeng* = B I - _
Fu Fangxing* {H 75 Ex v v
Zhang Zhibiao REAZ v v
Yu Xiaodong REEER v v
Zhao Yang #i5 v v
Non-executive Director FERITEE
Chow Wai Kam BRE%Z v v
Independent Non-executive Directors 1 FE#iTEFE
Chu Yu Lin, David Koh v v
Li Ka Fai, David FREB v v
Zhang Ping iR v v
e resigned on 25 January 2021. * RZZ2-—F—BZ+HHFE-

g appointed on 25 January 2021 # RIZEZ—F—BZ+HEHEZE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separated from that of the chief executive officer.
Currently, the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company are Mr. Lai Weixuan and Mr. Zhao Yang respectively.

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chief executive officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the
chief executive officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Company had received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
Independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considered that the independent non-executive Directors
are independent in character and judgment and fulfill the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Other than the non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the independent non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without specific terms, but are
subject to retirement by rotation as explained above under
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, Mr. Lai Weixuan, and two independent
David
David. The Remuneration

non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
(as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai,
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out

in its terms of reference.

One meeting was held during the year 2020 to review and
recommend the remuneration package of all Directors to Board.
The attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
During the year 2020,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to

in deciding his own remuneration.

determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of

the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out below:

e N ¢
e e =
R A
< JI 8

—ECEELCACH—ALER &
AREBREEIMESRBIIMT :

Number of
individuals
Remuneration = AE
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 55 % 1,500,000 71 2

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal audit function. It currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping.
The Audit Committee met five times during the year 2020 to
assess the ability of external auditor and review the interim
and final results, the interim and annual reports, the external
auditor's engagement letter and fee, the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, the effectiveness
of the Group’'s internal audit function and the continuing
connected transactions. The attendance of each member is set
out in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”. The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set
out in its terms of reference.
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Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination Committee which was
established in compliance with code provisions A.5.1 to
A.5.4 of the CG Code for the purposes of reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes, identifying
candidates with suitable qualifications as directors, selecting
and making recommendations to the Board, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. It currently comprises one executive
Director, Mr. Huang Yongfeng, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang Ping (as chairman)
and Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David. The duties of the Nomination
Committee are clearly set out in its terms of reference.

One meeting was held during the year 2020 to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
making recommendations to the Board regarding appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The attendance of each member is set out
in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals
of high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in
their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities
and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group
and its shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights
and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as
it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated
future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

the highest professional and personal ethics;

o broad experience in business;

o ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on
their experience and expertise;

o commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

o sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

o compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
o ability to develop a good working relationship with other

Board members and contribute to the Board’s working
relationship with senior management of the Group.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are the auditors of the Group. The
services provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing and non-auditing (including interim review and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2020 amount to HK$3,295,000 and HK$1,040,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the members of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of
the Group annually. The results and recommendations were
reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the Board.
The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions had also been
reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, internal audit section of the Group
evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems by adopting an
integrated risk assessment approach. In addition, the Company
also engaged an independent internal control consultant to
conduct independent evaluations on its internal control. The
consultant’s internal control assessment report and suggestions
together with the review report of the internal audit section
were presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for
review in March 2021. No material deficiency was identified.
Improvements in internal control and risk management
measures to enhance the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and to mitigate risks of the Group will
be adopted by The Board. The Board considered that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems were
adequate and effective and the Company had complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal control of the
CG Code. The Board confirms that systems and procedures
are in place to identify, control and report on significant risks
involved in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives.
Exposures to these risks are monitored by the Board with the
support of Audit Committee, internal audit section and senior
management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Chi Ho, the company secretary of the Company, is
an employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. He has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated memorandum of association and bye-laws of the
Company had been posted on the Company’s website at www.
avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2020, there was no
change in the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened

shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit A, 20/F, Tower 2, Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good
opportunities for direct communications between the Board
and its shareholders. The chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen clear days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2020 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 22 May 2020. At the meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
All Directors except for four executive Directors and an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member
of Nomination Committee, attended the 2020 annual general
meeting and had effective communications with shareholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
and governance report (the "ESG Report”), which details the
Group’s policies, measures, and performance on environmental,
social and governance issues. By reporting to stakeholders,
the Group has disclosed its measures and performance on
sustainable development issues in a transparent manner
and increased public confidence; at the same time helping
stakeholders better understand the Group's sustainability

progress and development direction.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This ESG report specifies the Group’s environmental, social and
governance performance for the fiscal year 2020 (1 January
to 31 December 2020), which runs consistent with the annual
report of the Group. The Group planed and prepared this report
based on the materiality principle. Unless otherwise stated,
this report covers the general aviation piston engine business
in the United States which represents the majority of Group's
environmental and social impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES AND REPORTING

The Group's environmental, social and governance guidelines
are designed to continually improve the transparency and
responsibility of information disclosure. Therefore, the ESG
Report is released annually by the Group for public review.
In addition, the Group is committed to creating long-term
value for stakeholders in line with interest of the environment
in which it operates, while driving the business growth and
sustainable development of the Group. As such, the Group
formulated its sustainable development policies which cover
the Group’s activities in environment, employment, business
integrity, and society. The Group will strive to incorporate such
principles into its practice and governance, and is committed to
contributing to the sustainable development of the society and
environment.
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The Board is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
Group's environmental, social and governance risks. The Board
endeavours to contribute to sustainability. By formulating well-
defined environmental, social and governance policies, the
Board can identify and mitigate relevant risks, and ensure the
solid implementation of relevant policies and guidelines.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is prepared and presented with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Lisitng Rules:

1. Materiality: the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders
that they should be reported. Accordingly, this report
covers the principal business of the Group.

2. Quantitative: KPIs need to be measurable. Targets can
be set to reduce a particular impact. In this way, the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems
can be evaluated and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative, explaining its
purpose, impacts, and giving comparative data where
appropriate. Accordingly, KPIs are presented in this
report pursuant to the reporting guide.

3. Balance: The ESG report should provide an unbiased
picture of the issuer’s performance. The report should
avoid selections, omissions, or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by
the report reader.

4. Consistency: The issuer should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons of
ESG data over time. The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods used or any other
relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

EXFToERARTIEEAEEERIRE 1
EREANER BEFERNNAUFELR
EHER ZBFFTRENRE - HERESR
R 0 E R ik R B RS X BE AR A LR
MAEHEURZET

RREE

AHR S AR IR AR A I R B (B i
EREABEEIDHEREER 2FAME
o

1. EEN ERE -HIKREANERSE
HEHREERHMBMAELEES
FEF AREAFHER AREE
MEABEAERNTEXZBIERRSE
B

2. Bt : WA UBMBEMIER  ZIER
AR TFUSBEIRBEBRTEEAR
EEE > MPAE] L AVIE R IR R 5
BRREE AREEMKERS S
525 B REREWIER

3. T ABRESATRIEHERASE
BERE - HERELHEHRE U
KB R A GE MR B EE RR I E
PERZ BERUEHBI -

4. —HM ABRESERA-BMELS
HAE EHEREBEERAFAREN
bR EMet HEN BB BREE 75
AUERSHER



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TRERZER (F8) GRAR
Annual Report 2020 — = — FBEFETR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Feedback from stakeholders not only helps the Group to
comprehensively and impartially evaluate its ESG performance,
but also enables the Group to continuously improve its
performance based on the feedback. As such, the Group
regularly communicates with stakeholders in an open, honest
and proactive manner through a variety of channels, including
interim reports, annual reports, announcements and circulars.
During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to maintain
an open dialogue with stakeholders to review and update
the areas identified as important to the Group’s business
operations. This can help the Group to develop sustainability
plans in line with the business strategy.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group taps into the future economic development
trend of low-carbon economy, and is committed to
aligning its business model with this philosophy. It has
adopted management measures on air and greenhouse
gas emissions, water and land discharges, as well as the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, and
implemented a series of environmental management
regulations on daily business activities to reduce the
impact on the environment, in an attempt to achieve
a green production mode with low pollution and low
emissions, which leads the Group towards a low-carbon
economy.

1. GREENHOUSE GAS AND AIR EMISSIONS

Based on the Group’s environmental protection
policies, the Group has formulated internal
environmental guidelines to systematically
integrate emission management into daily
operations. Also, the Group has established the
environmental management committee, and the
human resources director, plant facility manager,
environment and occupational safety and health
manager, and environmental engineer maintain
close communication with various stakeholders
to balance different opinions and facilitate the
implementation of environmental protection
guidelines.
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The Group takes proactive and effective actions
to comply with the requirements of laws and
regulations of the government and reduce
greenhouse gas and air emissions, regarding the
management of greenhouse gas and air emissions
as part of the Group’s operational decisions.,
The Group also keeps abreast of relevant
environmental developments around the world,
and put in to practice environmental protection
efforts. The Group’s air emissions mainly come
from its general aviation piston engine business,
which involves air pollutants from transportation
and testing of engines. The air emissions include
nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and
suspended particulates.
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FEBEBHBEWMEXNTHE
PR A BNE R E K - [F B R D
RERBRERBEN H%’m‘%?h
BrEREEEALNERE
REM—EB D o KEENXE *ﬁ
AR RIRREBE OB faiﬂ
RENTF- AEENBE RPN
M ER BN E R E
EERET BRI RERH KA
AN BMEEZERSEY
Flan @ |EY(NOxX) ~ | EY)
(SOx) Kz FEHI47) ©

Emission Unit (kg)
B HEBmE (F=)
2020 2019
—EZEE —E-hEF
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) KEEPI(NOx) 3,084.43 2,630.84
Sulphur oxides (SOx) mE1EH(SOx) 72.57 145.15
Particulate matter EERATEY)| 1,995.81 1,995.80

Table 1 — Total Emissions During the Reporting Period
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The Group's greenhouse gas emissions come from

the operations of the aircraft factory, including ISR EPeEIEmRE
fuel consumption for testing aircraft engines. BENM 2 JHFEN o
Scope of Emissions
greenhouse (Tonnes of carbon Intensity
gases emission dioxide equivalent) (Emissions per employee)
HE BE
mERBHHEER U= | {ERE =51 HnE/8I)
2020 2019 2020 2019

ZEITE TE2-hE ZEBITE TZ2-hE
Scope 1 #EN1
Direct emissions BEEER 3,670.11 1,237.29 10.37 2.78
Scope 2 gi[E2
Indirect emissions from energy  SERRIFEHER 5.83 7.56 0.02 0.02
Scope 3 #E3
Other indirect emissions HEMEHN 60.04 532.20 0.17 1.20
Total st 3,735.98 1,777.05 10.56 4.00
Note: The calculations were based on the Reporting Mek: SHETLERB M EMN

Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the
Stock Exchange, 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
IPCC
Fifth Assessment Report, latest grid emission

National Greenhouse Gas Inventories,

factors. Scope 1 includes consumption of aviation
fuel, unleaded petrol, liquefied petroleum gas,
kerosene, diesel, natural gas, acetylene, and carbon
dioxide extinguisher, and fugitive emission of
R22 refrigerants. Emission data on natural gas is
newly added for this year and was not reflected
in the data for the previous year. Scope 2 includes
electricity power purchased from power companies.
Scope 3 includes disposed paper and air mileage of
employees.

Table 2 — Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions During the

Reporting Period
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The Group’s business units take various measures
to reduce air pollutants and greenhouse gas
emissions. One of the measures is to reduce the
emission of greenhouse gas through reducing
the power consumption. To reduce power
consumptions in the office, the Group prefers
using low-power electrical appliances or products,
and avoids using unnecessary high-power
equipment. For example, the Group preferably
chooses LED or low-wattage with bright lighting
systems.

In addition, the Group is committed to equipping
appropriate aftertreatment equipment for
machinery and devices. Pollution control devices
have been installed in paint shops, sandblasting
machines and treatment tanks in the factory to
effectively control and reduce the emissions of
harmful air pollutants such as carbon monoxide,
volatile organic compounds, and particulate
matters.

(a) Waste Management

The Group adheres to the 4R principles of
waste management and strives to properly
handle and dispose of all wastes generated
from business activities through reduction,
reuse, recycling, and replacement. To
reduce environmental impact, the Group
classify and recycle waste where feasible
to increase the potential of downstream
recycling, and dispose of non-recyclable
waste in accordance with laws and
regulations.
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By implementing waste assessment
procedures, the Group assesses the
emissions of air, water and solid waste,
special waste, hazardous and non-
hazardous waste for newly added
machines and processes. Meanwhile,
the Group classifies hazardous and non-
hazardous waste for disposal in the factory
to meet the requirements of local laws
and regulations. The hazardous waste is
handed over to qualified hazardous waste
collectors for disposal. The hazardous
waste collectors commissioned by the
Group have all obtained hazardous waste
transportation permit from the U.S.
Department of Transportation.

Waste

BEY

Emission (Tonnes)

RIF g RERHRS

ERBERERYTMGLE
B AEBEHIH AN
BRIHFETER K
EREEY RHER
M BEBREMNEEZE
YT DUH B EHR R
BN IREREAER
BEREVDERE
MNEEMERER-BE
BEEYHTHGERZ
EEBERYBERRE -
rEBEFMEZEENEEZTE
EYBEBHREXE
BRMNEXESEER
Y)EFRIE A

Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)

BE
(B2 8I)

2020 2019
BB E-NE

Total hazardous waste BEEEYEE
Total non-hazardous BEERYEE
waste

0.03 0.04

0.7 0.43

Table 3 — Waste Generated During the Reporting
Period

During the reporting period, the Group
strictly complied with the relevant
environmental laws such as Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act and there
was no case of prosecution against the
Group for violation of environmental laws.
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2.  USE OF RESOURCES 2. ERER
The Group upholds the concept of energy REBKTHMREBAE - RBLEE
conservation and green production. It has NI - AEEFIE T AZIRR
formulated environmental protection guidelines IESIRERFERABERAMBAA
to systematically incorporate the use of resources HESEZF BEAEREX
into daily operations. To improve energy efficiency mRLEAREMAKE AE
and reduce paper and water consumption, the BEEEMSEERUABITIRR
Group has implemented a series of measures B BERBEREREERRES
to fulfil its environmental commitments. By EREAME EREFERE
monitoring and managing the use of resources, ik TRl BEEIRE OB E
the Group aims to improve resources utilisation TR BRIERRKERBEIEZ
efficiency, achieve low-carbon practices, emission BRI T E 5T o
reduction and energy conservation in operation,
and reduce the use of resources. Details of energy
and water consumption are discussed in the
sections below.
(a) Resources @ EF
During the reporting period, the resources RSN KEBRAR
directly consumed by the Group for SENBEZHEERY
operations are as follows: IS G
Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)
Consumption BE
Resources Unit HEE (H#E/BI)
Bl Efi 2020 2019 2020 2019

—7—7E :g_hﬁ —7—7$ :ﬁ—j'l..ﬂi

Energy

AR

Electricity '000 kWh 14.57 14.27 0.04 0.03
£V TRTRE

Fuel oil '000 kWh 2,426.84 4,287.98 6.86 9.64
i TRTRE

Fuel gas '000 kWh 14,984.09 16,792.21 42.33 37.74
MR TETRE

Total energy kWh 17,425.50 21,094.46 49.23 47.41

SR8 TRE
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Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)
Consumption BE
Resources Unit HiEE (H#E2/8T1)
B Efi 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZZITE ZT-hE ZTIZE CE-hE
Other resources
HtER
Water cubic metre 33,627.00 71,687.00 94.99 161.09
X ILAHK
Note: Unit of energy figures is translated into Mzt : REREBBE2ERMEH
kWh based on the lower heat value. Energy BEMRERTRE > Z
data for 2019 is restated in kWh herein. Z—NMEREEN
Fuel oil includes aviation fuel, unleaded TEREABATILHE
gasoline, kerosene, and diesel. Fuel gas 5| o WA SH B ¥E A 25 A
includes Liquefied petroleum gas and i P N o 0:: 4
natural gas. SR MR BERIE
BHRRRAR -

Table 4 — Consumption of Resources During the

Reporting Period

RA-REARNERHFER

==}

Consumption

Packaging material FHE
used for finished products  Unit 2020 2019
S pim B RME B ZEZEHF —E-NEF
Packaging material tonne

used for finished products 301.76 406.74
SRk m B Ak U

Table 5 — Consumption of Packaging Material

Used for Finished Products During the

Reporting Period

KE-REARNRAAEE
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(b)

The Group manages the workspace using
the “5S” management programme which
focuses on five areas: sort, set, shine,
standardize, and sustain, as the core
model. Furthermore, the Group conducts
lean management and waste reduction
management to encourage employees
to redesign the use of resources from
many aspects, effectively reuse products
or materials, prolong the life cycle of
resources, and reduce the use of resources
and generate less waste, thereby achieving
the goal of “Zero Emission”.

The Group also attaches great importance
to energy management in order to make
effective use of power resources. The
Group gives preference to the use of
energy-efficient equipment, including
energy-saving lighting fixtures, with a view
to reducing energy consumption in the
long run.

Water Consumption

The Group recognises that sustainable
and responsible use of water resources is
a major global issue, and that excessive
demand and overuse of water can cause
serious regional water shortage. In view
of this, the Group has in place wastewater
treatment equipment. Through wastewater
minimization plans, neutralization,
chromate reduction, and alkaline
chlorination of cyanide, the Group ensures
that the emissions meet relevant standards
and water is reused.
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ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

Protecting nature and the environment has
become an integral part of the Group's
corporate culture. As a socially responsible
enterprise, the Group continuously strives for
sustainable development, and constantly looks
for ways to minimize resource consumption and
environmental impact. The Group will continue
to identify, assess and manage potential risks to
the environment, and strive to balance business
development and ecological environment for
long-term sustainable development. The Group
will incorporate environmental protection and
natural resource conservation into its business
strategies and planning for future business
development.

The Group is dedicated to taking a series of
effective measures to avoid and mitigating the
impact on the environment and surrounding
areas, including reducing noise, emissions and
indoor air pollution. The Group has engaged
qualified environmental consultants to review its
environmental projects regularly. For example, the
Group ensures that the factory is in compliance
with the Resource Conservation and Recycling
Act (RCRA), the Air Emissions Permit, and the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
have any major environmental accidents.

3.
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4.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group’s business scope includes the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business in the
United States. The Group has identified and
assessed climate change risks and has developed
measures to mitigate their impacts on the
operations of the Group and protect the safety
of employees, including ensuring that the
infrastructure of the Group is sufficient to cope
with extreme weather conditions and strictly
following relevant extreme weather guidelines
issued by the government. The Group regularly
reviews policies on coping with climate change to
ensure their effectiveness.

B. SOCIAL

1.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group believes that employees are
foundation of the success of the Group.
Employees have a critical impact on the quality
of the Group’s products and services. They are
also the engine that drives sustainable corporate
development. The Group strives to establish
harmonious relations with employees to bring
together all employees and proactive maintain
a diversified, inclusive, fair and safe work
environment to jointly promote the long-term
sustainable development of the Group.
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Equal Opportunity Policy

The Group is convinced that providing
employees with equal opportunities can
improve employee satisfaction, which
in turn helps attract outstanding talents
and motivate employees, thus promoting
the Group’s business development. To
ensure that no discrimination whatsoever
exists in the hiring process, the Group
has formulated relevant recruitment
procedures to ensure that recruitment
decisions are made based on the
capabilities, knowledge and experience of
job applicants related to the open positions
irrespective of such factors as gender, age,
race, family status, religious belief and
disability.

Compensation System

The Group provides a fair and competitive
compensation package, including basic
salary, social security insurance, and other
fringe benefits to attract and retain quality
talents. The Group also regularly reviews
its compensation policies to maintain
its attractiveness in the labour market.
Furthermore, the Group fully considers
sharing with employees the value they
have created in tandem with the Group's
performance growth. The Group considers
a variety of factors to assess and determine
pay levels, including employees’ work
ability, the Group’'s performance, and
compensation levels in the market.
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The Group also has a set of comprehensive
human resources management policies
to serve as the basis of human resources
management. The policies include
compensation and benefits, working hours
and holidays, recruitment and selection,
performance management, promotion,
employment termination, training and
development, and other related areas.

During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any cases of violation of
relevant employment laws and regulations,
including the Labour Law, nor did it receive
any complaints related to recruitment.

rEETAE—EZED
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Number of employees

BT A#
2020 2019
—EBE_THF —E-NEF
By gender 4 51
Male B 290 371
Female Z % 64 74
Total 4ast 354 445
By employee category EEEE
Full-time e 345 440
Part-time Ei i 9 5
Total Hast 354 445
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Number of employees

BIAE
2020 2019
—EEHE —E—hEF
By age group FHMER
18-30 18-305% 51 47
31-45 31-455% 108 135
46-60 46-605% 148 182
over 61 6158 £ 47 81
Total 4Bt 354 445
By region ih (&
United States EH 354 445
Total 48 354 445
Table 6 — Breakdown of Total Employees by Ro— MEHANZMR - RBEE
Gender, Employee Category, Age Group, U FE AR B R th & B

and Region B 1 B 48 2 PR 4
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Turnover rate

KL=

2020 2019
By gender L 3:]]
Male B 39% 20%
Female 7% 34% 14%
By age group FHEZE R
18-30 18-307% 43% 17%
31-45 31-45%% 45% 16%
46-60 46-607% 30% 14%
over 61 615t E 40% 38%
By region ith &
United States EE 38% 19%

Table 7 — Breakdown of Employee Turnover Rate
by Gender, Age Group, and Region

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group values the occupational health and
safety of every employee, and has established
a risk assessment mechanism that consists of a
series of measures including risk identification,
analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring and
reviewing to reduce risks which are not deemed
to be under acceptable limits.

The Group has identified high-risk positions and
implemented occupational health and safety
measures accordingly to protect the safety
of employees. The Group requires employees
to strictly comply with the safety policy and
guidelines which specify workflows, various safety
measures and guidance as well as employees’
responsibilities for their health and safety at the
workplace.
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The Group has set up a safety committee to
take charge of its occupational health and safety
matters. The committee, which consists of the
human resources director, safety manager and
fire & safety supervisor, as well as hourly team
members from the shop floor, is responsible
for the Group's occupational health and
safety matters. The committee is tasked with
formulating safety management measures for
compliance, advising internal departments on
government standards and regulations, and
meeting regularly to review occupational health
and safety issues brought up by team members.
In addition, to effectively improve occupational
health and safety, the Group incorporating
safety performance into the annual performance
appraisal.

In addition, the Group requires all employees to
attend monthly safety meetings, which covers
the latest information on occupational health
and safety, internal safety policies and safety
accident review. The Group has also developed
measures for drug abuse prevention. Through the
Employee Assistance Program, professionals are
engaged to provide local employees with training,
diagnosis, and consultation on drug and alcohol
abuse problems, and to provide professional
advice and guidance for employees. No work-
related fatalities occurred in the past three years
including the Reporting Period, and the total
number of lost days due to work injury during the
Reporting Period is 266 days.

During the reporting period, the Group found no
cases of violation of laws and regulations related
to occupational safety and health, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Act.
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3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING R Rt
Skilled and professionally trained employees EHEEEEIZETRETELR
can lead the Group’s business growth. Through EEMNEBER - AEBHEES

employee developments and training, the Group
helps employees demonstrate their potential
and align with the Group’s objectives, laying a
foundation for future success.

On this ground, the Group encourages employees
to participate in training courses related to
personal development and work. Through the
formulation of employee training policies, the
Group has found a comprehensive training
system, which specifies the management
responsibilities of training leaders in various
departments, and provides corresponding
learning and training courses for employees to
continuously increase their work knowledge and
skills.

In daily operation, the Group provides induction
training for new employees, and arranges for
experienced employees to act as mentors to
guide newcomers. The Group has also established
the Educational Assistance Plan which provides
eligible employees with subsidies for internal
and external training related to their work. The
Group believes such arrangement can effectively
facilitate communication and team spirit, improve
technical skills and managerial capability, as
well as encouraging employees for further
development.
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Training rate and average hours of employees MREEAN > ZER B THER
during the Reporting Period by gender and SoMEBTHEINXRZINF
employee category are as follows: HRFEWT ¢
Training rate Average hours completed
SLEERAZIN
i B THRH
2020 2019 2020 2019

ZE_EE CE-hE E”ZFE "T-hE

By gender il

Male B 100.0 83.4 1.1 1.2

Female pegid 100.0 16.6 1.2 1.2

By employee category TR

Senior management BREERE 100.0 2.0 1.0 1.0

Middle management HREERE 100.0 14.2 1.0 1.0

General employee —mET 100.0 83.8 1.0 1.0

Table 8 — Training Rate and Average Hours of Employees Re— MEMRNEEN KB TERE
by Gender and Employee Category During the PHE TIEIIXRKEFEHEFEH

Reporting Period

LABOUR STANDARDS 4. YT #H|

(a)  Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced (@ BIUREFAETHN#EZFT
Labour
The Group is firmly against child labour KEBRBRTRHEETIR
and forced labour, and prohibits the ®B THRWFEA 2k
employment of any child labour and forced KRR EE &R FE

labour in any operations and services. FAETHREIE T
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Before hiring any candidate, the Group
will check the age-related documents
to verify his/her age. All employees of
the Group must reach the statutory
minimum working age. The Group adheres
to the principle of fair and voluntary
recruitment, strictly forbids forced or
fraudulent recruitment, ensures that all
employees work on a voluntary basis, and
prohibits forced labour in any form. Where
employees are needed to work overtime
in the production process, the Group will
formulate overtime arrangements with the
employee representatives and employees,
and the working hours will not exceed
the maximum legal limits. Moreover, the
management personnel will not force
the employees to carry out work with
significant safety and health risks or illicit
work.

During the reporting period, the Group
found neither cases incompliance
with relevant laws and regulations on
employment, including the Labour Law,
nor incidents in violation of the laws and
regulations on labour standards.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group is well aware that maintaining the
quality and safety of products and services
is dependent on the cooperation of business
partners, thus emphasising the promotion of
communication and partnership with business
partners on a continuous basis. In addition, the
Group carries out the selection and evaluation
process on suppliers based on quality and price
with reference to internal guidance, implementing
complete supplier management to regulate the
engagement of suppliers.

The Group only selects highly qualified suppliers
complying with regulatory requirements.
In order to ensure suppliers’ capability in
quality assurance, safety and environmental
responsibility, the Group will arrange field
visits conducted by inspection personnel to
suppliers’ productions sites to evaluate their
production capacity and quality, so as to assess
their environmental and process certifications.
The evaluation reviews the production capacity,
technology level, quality assurance capabilities,
supply capacity, safety and environment
management qualifications if needed. The Group
also carries out regular assessments on suppliers’
overall capabilities, assets position, nature of the
business, reputation in the industry, quality of
products, goods delivery and compliance with law
and regulations.
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In addition, the Group also utilizes Solumina
Supplier Rating System Software to manage
and certify suppliers to achieve the best product
quality and management. The Group will request
suppliers to obtain third-party certifications,
so as to prompt them to make progress and
improvements.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
a total of 203 active suppliers, including 179
suppliers located in the USA and 24 suppliers
located in other areas.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
(a) Quality Assurance

The Group carries out stringent quality
management, covering every aspect
between product production and delivery
process. The Group has formulated
different policies and guidelines in the
design, planning and production stages to
ensure that products meet relevant quality
and safety requirements. Products, before
delivering to customers, must complete
internal quality procedures stipulated by
the Group to ensure their quality standards
not only comply with laws and regulations
but also meet the quality requirements of
the Group.

The Group will continuously strive to
ensure that its products meet regulatory
requirements and customer expectations
on a continuous basis, and regularly
accesses its internal production processes
to ensure customer satisfaction and
compliance with the requirements of the
Federal Aviation Administration.
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Customer Data Protection and Privacy
Policy

To ensure the protection of customer
data, all orders and data of the Group's
customers are processed and saved by
dedicated personnel, and other employees
are not allowed to access them. In terms
of safeguarding and protecting intellectual
property rights, the Group will only
select products provided by legitimate
manufacturers or suppliers to prevent
pirated goods from using its sales channels
to enter the market. Furthermore, the
Information Management Department of
the Group monitors the use of software to
ensure all software used is licensed, and
conducts regular inspections to ensure that
there is no unauthorised software being
used in the computers of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, 5.82% of all
products sold were recalled by the Group
for safety and health reasons, all of which
had been followed up and handled. The
Group abided by relevant product liability
laws, such as Consumer Data Privacy and
Security Act, and there was no case of
prosecution against the Group for violation
of laws related to product responsibility
and privacy protection.
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7.

INTEGRITY

The Group advocates honest operation and fair
competition. The Group has developed a sound
risk management code and internal control code,
including setting out relevant policies in the
employee handbook and guiding employees to
abide by the code of conduct, in a bid to require
all employees to observe the highest ethical,
personal and professional standards. The code
of conduct provides a clear definition of how to
deal with conflicts of interest, gifts, and other
interests.

The Group has established and implemented
an internal integrity system to strengthen the
integrity of employees in management practices.
The Group has also formulated an effective
whistle-blowing procedure for the employees,
management personnel and directors to report
directly any misconduct and dishonest behaviours,
in order to avoid bribery, fraud and other criminal
offences. Furthermore, the Group has specified in
the employee handbook that the Group is entitled
to terminate the employment contract with any
employee who is bribed with money, gifts or
commission, etc., and reserves the right to take
further actions against such person.
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The Group clearly defines misconduct such as
bribery, corruption, embezzlement, insider trading
and theft of Group assets, and ensures that
employees can report matters of concern through
various channels in an absolutely confidential
manner. Where a case of misconduct is found
valid after investigation, the Group will take
appropriate corrective measures and disciplinary
action against the person(s) involved. If there
involves any criminal offence, the Group will hand
over the suspect(s) to the competent authority. In
addition, the Group engages a third-party agency
to audit its financial statements each year.

During the reporting period, the Group found
neither corruption incidents nor violations of
relevant laws and regulations, including Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group considers that an enterprise and
the community are inseparable as a whole and
enterprise development is also inseparable from
the support and recognition of the community.
The Group considers community benefits as one
of its social responsibility and understands the
importance of making positive contributions to
the community where it operates. The Group
encourages its employees to participate in charity
and social services, aiming to become a good
corporate citizen, fulfil its social responsibilities
more sufficiently and make a contribution to the
community.

RIF g RERHRS
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The Group will continue to regularly review TEEREBEETHRIHER
its objectives and orientation for community BENEEMNAE TEEHER
investment, and supervise community investment, E-BEHNEEEY R ZE

o

H

sponsorship and donation activities and the
relevant approval policies.

OUTLOOK BE

Going forward, the Group will, where appropriate, conduct Z&EEKRK G EESIEERF - EHREARK
review and make amendments on the disclosure level in ZEENEEEREE@D LFHXENE
response to the needs of various laws, Listing Rules and Fl{EsJ  AEB N THREFTSBELETES
internal management. The Group will also continue to carry HBFIRIE - HEUKREANER UKk RAE

out more measures beneficial to the environment, society and EHIRIE KT YA
governance in business operations to live up its commitment to
the environment and society.
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BR3ZFR (RIR - L E R EBHR SRSV R

A Environmental Chapter
IR =

ASPECT A.1 Emissions A1

FEA.1 HE Y

KPI' A.1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data A1

FEREA BEM R L8 R AR RE BRI R

KPI A.1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity A1

1512A1.2 BERBRENERTE

KPI'A.1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity Al

1E1EA13 FRELEEREYRERTE

KPI A.1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity A1l

E1EA 4 FRELBRZEREVEERTE

KPI' A.1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Al

results achieved
A5 HHUR R BEE i R PSR
KPI A.1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are A1

FE1EA1.6

handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved

HEREAERESEREYNG A REEEENEKR

PSR R
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A Environmental Chapter

IRIR =350

ASPECT A.2 Use of Resources A2

FHEA.2 BHIRERA

KPI'A.2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and A2
intensity

1512A.2.1 RENSSNERKR JEEEREEERTE

KPI' A.2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity A2

151RA.2.2 BMFEKERTE

KPI A.2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results A2
achieved

1E1EA.2.3 H 2t B8 TR 150 FB Az 51 B K P8 AR

KPI A.2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water A2
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

1E1RA.2.4 R EBGE R KR R BEMA R URIRA R a8 &
Frig R

KPI' A.2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, with A2
reference to per unit produced

E1BA2.5 HmPrREEMENEEREEESMLE

ASPECT A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources A3

FEA.3 RIRRRAER

KPI'A.3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the There was no accident

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

that had significant
manage them impacts on the
environment and
natural resources during
the period
HRAEHBERRAR
BERNEATENEH

HA R ESHRERRAERNEAT ERERNEESRH
FENTH

FEIZEA.3.1
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B Social Chapter
e =3:1]

ASPECT B.1 Employment B1

J5EB.1 =414

KPI B.1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and B1
geographical region

151%B.1.1 B4R BERL  FRAFN RMERE DHNESAH

KPI B.1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical B1
region

#51EB.1.2 B4R FE AR K& B D HNEE MK X

ASPECT B.2 Health and Safety B2

75 EB.2 fEREZR

KPI B.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities There was no work-

$51ZB.2.1
KPI B.2.2
}51ZB.2.2
KPI B.2.3
F542B.2.3
ASPECT B.3
J5EB.3

KPI B.3.1

$51ZB.3.1
KPI B.3.2

}51ZB.3.2

AT ERAFRMIETHA B

Lost days due to work-related injury

HATHEERXTERH

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,

how they are implemented and monitored

HHPFT M B R R REZ 2 URBEERA T RERS X

Development and Training

BERRE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category

BRI REEEFEPNZINEEB DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category

BRIt REEEMNE D SRREE MR TR

related fatality for

the past three years
(including the Reporting
Period)
BREREAANNBE=
FXRBERAITHEH
B2

B2

B3

B3

B3
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B Social Chapter
g =1: 1]

ASPECT B.4 Labour Standards B4

75 EB.4 % T #A|

KPI B.4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid B4

$51ZB.4.1
KPI B.4.2

}51ZB.4.2
ASPECT B.5
J5HEB.5

KPI B.5.1

$51ZB.5.1
KPI B.5.2

$51ZB.5.2

ASPECT B.6
75 EB.6
KPI B.6.1

151%B.6.1
KPI B.6.2

$51ZB.6.2

KPI B.6.3

151%B.6.3
KPI B.6.4

$61ZB.6.4
KPI B.6.5

$51ZB.6.5

child and forced labour

AR T B B G MR e LU R & T K sa 55 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate violation practices when
discovered.

B B IRE R B REHRA RIS NPT RIS B

Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RMEdoNHEBEE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers on which the practices are being implemented,
how they are implemented and monitored

HAERERHEENEN mERTERAEANHERHE -
Mk BRRIEAINNITRERA X

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons

BENCEEZEREHPALEEREEAMALKRNBEDLE

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with

BREMNRERKRBHRFEE UKREE S

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

1 B 4 5E Ko IR R A o8 EE I B ARV IS A

Description of quality assurance process and product recall
procedures

HhEEREBERERBKRER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.

HiHBEERRERMEER  URERAAITRERS X

There was no violation
during the period
FAXRBEREBER

BS5
B5

B5

B6

B6

There were 1,952
feedbacks in total

and all of them were
followed up by special
personnel during the
period
HREFI1952EER K
BB ERHZHEAR
E IR

B6

B6

B6
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HERERRS

B Social Chapter
g =4:1]

ASPECT B.7 Anti-corruption B7

FEB.7 R&E=

KPI B.7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices There was no

$51ZB.7.1
KPI B.7.2
F542B.7.2
ASPECT B.8
5 EB.8

KPI B.8.1

$51ZB.8.1

KPI B.8.2

151%B.8.2

brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
RERBAHZETASNEESRELESESENE SHRELHDN
L SDSE N
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

WP A R BT UREBARITRERFE
Community Investment

HERE

Focus areas of contribution

EIEMEE

Resources contributed to the focus area

EEIREMBBER

corruption practice
during the period
HARBESHNRENS

B7

B8

There was no resource
utilization in any areas
during the period
HRRBEEMEES
RER

There was no resource
utilization in any areas
during the period
HRRBEEAEET
RER
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EEEHRS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 2 to 9 of this annual report which
forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 86 to 256 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to

allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia, the following factors:

(1) the Group’s actual and expected financial results;
(2) the Group's working capital requirements,

capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(3) the Group’s liquidity position; and

(4) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is subject to the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company’s bye-laws. The Board will continue to review
the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 257 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company does not have
any distributable reserves calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,857,729,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

o P
R
S e

A IR HE

BABREQASE—NN—ZEXRES
B R _ZE+_A=Z+—H'ERQAH
BEAHEDIREH KRB ZKRHHER
1,857,729,0008 o] U BALR I F U9
K ©

BA-BOxHESQE LHES

ARABHEFEANBRADRERNBEERA
BRINHERRREMA LEHES-

TEMREBRER

AEBFEHEBMEAERZRXBERAD
EE3nF

2020 2019
kot .- 3 “_F-hNEF
% %
Percentage of purchases: EEREREE DL
From the largest supplier RERAEER 2 4

The percentages of the Group's sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

AERFERAMEAERZHERDLEN
T

2020 2019
ZEIEHE “EB-hEF
% %

Percentage of sales: LIEE T DL !
To the largest customer REZRAEF 26 32
To the five largest customers KERAARE 66 63

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

EEHENEREMBA TN BEESAAE
BERRBSRULBETREAZRIBEES
AEBRARERNE R ERED-



DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Lai Weixuan
Fu Fangxing (resigned on 25 January 2021)
Huang Yongfeng
Zhang Zhibiao

Yu Xiaodong

(appointed on 25 January 2021)

Zhao Yang

Non-executive Director:

Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Lai Weixuan, Mr.
Zhang Zhibiao and Mr. Yu Xiaodong will retire by rotation. Mr
Huang Yongfeng, the executive Director who was appointed
by the Board on 25 January 2021, shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company. All of
them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the independent non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 10 to 15 of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company’s holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company held for the benefits of
the Company, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO") (a) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above and in the section of “Share
option scheme” below, during the year no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company had been granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age;
no such rights had been exercised by them; and none of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of shareholders

R E

Tacko International Limited (“Tacko”)

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited
("AVIC International (HK) Group”)

RHERR (B8 £EBERAR
(TR (B8 £68))

AVIC International (HK) Group

B (B8 £8

AVIC International

o A BRI PR

Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd

("AVIC")

TEMETEERARAD (MMPMIE)

50—

Capacity and
nature of
interest

B KkiEmtE

Beneficial owner

BEm#EBA

Beneficial owner

BEmEBA

Through a controlled

corporation
EE—EREEE

Through a controlled

corporation
BB —EREAE

Through a controlled

corporation
BEE—EREEE

§
8 =7
_‘-.:-.:m.-'* ‘- . b
=

Number of
ordinary

shares

held
FrsEEik & E

1,895,559,000

2,421,341,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390

FERRRHEMA LIRS KRR
Rzt

RZE-ZF+_-_HA=+—H ' AQ3RE
EEREEAE6IREEZ HE B LM
et t3 IR AT % T _F B BETRAEL N
T

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital as at

31 December
2020
RIZZTH
+-BA=+—H
ERATBET
BAZBEZLE

20.37

26.03

46.40

46.40

46.40



According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with
the Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International (HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AVIC International. AVIC International is a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC (91.14% interest controlled
by AVIC as at 31 December 2020). Accordingly, each of AVIC
International (HK) Group, AVIC International and AVIC is
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Tacko.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

NON-EXEMPT CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following connected
transactions, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Connected transaction
Disposal of equity interests In AVIC Joy

On 15 September 2020, the Company, Billirich Investment
Limited (“Billirich™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and AVIC International (HK) Group entered into
a share purchase and loan transfer agreement with, among
others, Sincere View International Limited (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to acquire from the
Company and Billirich in aggregate 1,031,595,000 shares
of AVIC Joy. The consideration received by the Group is
HK$26,821,000. Further details of the transaction are included
in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15
September 2020.
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Continuing connected transactions

Sale services of engines and engines parts

On 17 January 2020, the Company entered into a sale
framework agreement with AVIC, pursuant to which the Group
will sell engines, engine parts and related services to AVIC and/
or its associates (excluding the Group) for use in new aircraft
manufacture and for the sale of parts into the aftermarket for
maintenance, repair and overhaul for a term from 17 January
2020 to 31 March 2020. Further details were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 January 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 19 February 2020.

On 22 January 2020, the Company entered into a second sale
framework agreement with AVIC, pursuant to which the Group
will sell engines, engine parts and related services to AVIC and/
or its associates (excluding the Group) for use in new aircraft
manufacture and for the sale of parts into the aftermarket for
maintenance, repair and overhaul for a term from 1 April 2020
to 31 December 2021.
announcement of the Company dated 22 January 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 19 February 2020.

Further details were disclosed in the

The continuing connected transaction of the Company is
included in the disclosure of related party transactions in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and had confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction had been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.
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The total amounts of the sale income disclosed above during
the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap
amounts of US$28 million (equivalent to approximately HK$217
million).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditors,
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
have issued their unqualified letter containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction or
continuing related party transaction set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements that falls into the category
of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
that needs to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

Exns

Name of company

ACIEZE EmEtE

Nature of interest

EENHFUET L2ED

FR THEFEBTHARRAFA TINES
WD MZFEBRBLTRUERER
7%&‘@2&%.E’J%i‘%ﬁﬁia‘aiTﬁbﬁﬁﬁﬁiF’aﬁ

BHRE

Nature of competing business

RBEBMEEHE

Chow Wai Kam
BE%

CK Asset Holdings Limited
RIBXEEFRAR HITES

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arms length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will
continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

Executive director -

Property development and
investment (“Excluded
Businesses”)
MEZRREE
(TERBRZETS])
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DRFFRE
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AUDITORS

On 9 April 2020, Ernst & Young has resigned as the auditors
of the Company. Following the resignation of Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company on 9 April 2020 to
fill the vacancy. Save as disclosed above, there were no other
changes in auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
three years.

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Lai Weixuan
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2021

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FREIfZE TR ERRER (B3) BIRARE
Annual Report 2020 — = — FBEFETR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERHE
G
ZKEBHMEBIN _SE_SFMNANEH
EAERBZEEN LGN EFHFABESE
NEZHENE B -ERS G TR
T_RFNANBEZER T AB LA
DURRZETR - FR EXFIIRBEEIN EBE=F
o ARBRBENR B H MBS -

APRNBEAEABRE_ST_STE+_A
St BIEFEZUBERRCHETE « BE
PR B 5TER T 1% o B8 o BAE RS G 5TERT
EREEREBEAG LET mM—BEE
WEARABZBENZ AZEZRENERERE
BEAGLER-

KESFEgm
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMETXERZR (F8) ARAR

BRE
E

)
“E—f=ZA=+—H

77



78

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE T EERZER (B#8) BRAE
Annual Report 2020 — & —ZBEFLR 1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EMIR S

Deloitte

To the shareholders of AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 86 to 256, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

=2

EAVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
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our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Bt EE

B E SR EIERARE ST EE

use assets (collectively “Long-lived Assets”)

Impairment assessment on goodwill, other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and right-of-

BE -BEMEREE - WE BEARGREFEEE B REEE) REFE

We identified the impairment assessment on the
Long-lived Assets as a key audit matter due to the
subjective valuation parameters used and significant
estimations exercised by the management of the
Group for the impairment assessment, as disclosed in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

M EXEEEEEMMENGFIEAN RS
HRFIEHBNEBEXRMGE AR RBEENREST G
A ARRBESFE NGRS B REWEAFTK

Zo

As disclosed in notes 16, 17, 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, the carrying
amounts of goodwill, other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets were HK$14,927,000, HK$1,657,066,000,
HK$481,329,000 and HK$301,528,000, respectively,
at 31 December 2020. Management of the Group
conducted the impairment assessment on the Long-
lived Assets based on a value-in-use calculation as
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. For a cash-generating unit ("CGU") using
value-in-use as the recoverable amount, it requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from each CGU and discount rate to calculate
the present value.

UG EMFRRMF16 17 13K I14FFEE P
“E2IEF+ZHA=+—HB BmE -HtEEEE-
ME-BENREBEAERAEEENRAED IS
14,927,000 7T~ 1,657,066,0007 7T ~ 481,329,00078
76/%301,528,000 70 o L A1 KT SE16FFIREE > HAF
EEEREBEERAEEFEHRPEEETABEN G-
MRAEREEEANKWEEENREEEE T (1]
TELET) M BEEEGHIREELET
S REENRERENRERMIREUGTEIRE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment on the Long-lived Assets included:

RMERRAEENRETENEFEE

o Understanding and evaluating the Group's
impairment assessment process, including thel
value-in-use model adopted, identification of
CGUs, assumptions used, and the involvement]
of the independent qualified valuer (“Valuer”);

. THERTE EEENEENGER S
KEANFEREEERE - REELETHH
A FTRRR BILaERGERM (MHERM) B

2HBR;

o Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
. S G ERTA A BB~ BE N B ERM ;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B EE

BB AEIEREETER

Based on the management’s assessment, the Group
recognised impairment loss of HK$385,770,000 on
goodwill. There was no impairment on other Long-
Lived Assets other than the impairment loss on
other intangible assets which was recognised for
the specific reasons as disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of the
above impairment assessment are disclosed in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.
REEEENTE EEEERIBEREBHE
385,770,000 T MR EMBIEEMGSMHBRE
MEE17R BN EREESBEREN  HtIRIAE
ERELREE LARETEFERGEUBRE
PEE 163 55

o Assessing the reasonableness of the budgeted
cash flows prepared by management of the
Group, including evaluating key assumptions|
applied in value-in-use calculations, such as
estimated annual revenue growth rates, long-
term growth rate, gross margins and discount
rate used in the cash flow forecast of each CGU
and conducting the retrospective review on
historical accuracy of the budgeted cash flows;

. it EEEEEEMGRRESRAEEAIN
BN AFETEEREES EMANERR
=M RREELEBNIRES RETR AR
NLstFERDERR R REX - EXK
MIRE wHRESREFANB T ER S ET
EIMERE ;

o Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations;

. ZEEREESEAXNEMERE

o Involving our internal valuation specialist in
assessing the reasonableness of certain key
assumptions;

. REFEEFTBRIENSESR SRMIREG
BEERSHEHHAD

o Reviewing the sensitivity analysis performed by
management;

. BREEBETHNSREDN;

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the
disclosures of the impairment assessment on
the Long-lived Assets.

. L RIABERETENKREESSEE-
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
13 March 2020.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ERVRER SIS
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Ip Chiu Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE
2020 2019
—ECEF —NE
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
Vi3 FET FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue Wz 5 1,246,809 1,458,003
Cost of sales and services SHE M RFERL A (1,064,610) (1,081,480)
Gross profit EF) 182,199 376,523
Other income Hiug A 5 22,644 18,689
Other gains and losses Hh#) B g8 5 (40,707) 18,920
Impairment of goodwill and other BERAMBREERE
intangible assets 16/17 (471,044) -
Selling and distribution expenses HERESHER (127,077) (90,768)
Administrative expenses THEEER (316,682) (319,450)
Research and development costs Bt &l 7 (37,921) (38,208)
Share of profits and losses of: Db H RS
Joint ventures N -VNGI - (38,361)
An associate [ =F/N=] (1,191) (328)
Finance costs MBS 7 (18,751) (10,850)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PREIAIESE (808,530) (83,833)
Income tax credit FIEMIER 8 51,792 29,817
LOSS FOR THE YEAR, ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRABFMEERE
OWNERS OF THE PARENT ERFEHE 9 (756,738) (54,016)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BRAALBEGEHAARE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EEKREE
OF THE PARENT
Basic HAK 12 (HK8.13 cents) (HKO0.58 cents)

(8.133%1ll)

(0.5871L)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

2020 2019
ZEZEE “_E-hE
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
Loss for the year KEEIE (756,738) (54,016)
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hitt2mE (FH) W=
ltems that may be reclassified to RERIAMAIGEEM DA
profit or loss in subsequent periods: EEm 2B
Exchange differences: PE R AE%E !
Exchange differences on translation of MBI EBEL
foreign operations ZERERE 33,123 (3,090)
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign REFHZ BINE
operation deregistered during the year B2 B0 EH
b - (1,721)
33,123 4,811)
Items that will not be reclassified to REBHEIGENDE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: EEm 2B .
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans ERBEMNFERBE
B 18 39 (702) (5,247)
Income tax effect IZIRSiTs - 95 620
(607) (4,627)
Changes in fair value of equity BAFESFAHME
investments designated at fair value W 2 RAEE
through other comprehensive income ZATEES (3,332) (19,601)
Gain on property revaluation MESHZFE 15 - 130,615
(3,939) 106,387
Other comprehensive income TEHMEEW S
for the year, net of tax (NrRrIRIETR) 29,184 101,576
Total comprehensive (expense) income BAFIFMEERGLEER
for the year, attributable to owners & (i) W 4agE

of the parent (727,554) 47,560
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At 31 December 2020 R -E_ZEF+_F=+—H

2020 2019
ZEIEE —NE
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FET
(Restated)
(7))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BEMZE 13 481,329 410,880
Right-of-use assets TREEE 14 301,528 317,688
Investment property REME 15 128,200 151,500
Goodwill BeE 16 14,927 399,821
Other intangible assets HinEFEE 17 1,657,066 1,765,634
Interest in an associate BERB 2R 18 12,029 11,781
Interest in a joint venture BERRZEE 19 - =
Financial assets at fair value through BATESI A BB BEE
profit or loss 20 1,938 1,938
Equity investments designated at fair value BRAFEFAEMEENRG S
through other comprehensive income s 21 389 34,430
Deferred tax assets REMBEE 33 28,120 24,673
Total non-current assets FRBEEEE 2,625,526 3,118,345
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 58 25 442,878 490,265
Trade receivables et B 3 8RR 22 122,955 103,672
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FBIFE &K
Hh FE AR R 24 45,156 39,963
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR R 2 [T |8 A B =8 23 15,788 20,011
Loans to an associate M A BIRMNER 18 11,135 9,982
Loans to a joint venture AR ENERENER 19 1,046 -
Cash and cash equivalents RAeEhREEE 26 914,072 990,386
Total current assets MBBEEAR 1,553,030 1,654,279
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At 31 December 2020 R-_BE_ZEF+_F=+—H

2020 2019
ZEIEE —2—NEF
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
ViF:3 FET FET
(Restated)
(B3
CURRENT LIABILITIES Pk =R
Trade payables FEfT B ZER 28 107,783 85,219
Other payables and accruals HiENRTRESER 29 116,493 86,111
Amounts due to intermediate holding companies f& i th R %% A B Z 8 27 26,456 27,846
Tax payable FERHRIE 38,283 46,560
Lease liabilities HE&E 36 5,311 5,906
Provisions and other liabilities BERENEE 37 104,618 42,633
Contract liabilities BHBERE 30 17,948 7,919
Bank borrowings RITEE 34 195,343 225,161
Total current liabilities nEeRBE 612,235 527,355
Net current assets MEEESRE 940,795 1,126,924
3,566,321 4,245,269
EQUITY e
Issued capital BETKRAE 31 930,337 930,337
Reserves it 1,915,803 2,643,357
Total equity RRAE 2,846,140 3,573,694
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities RILREER 33 226,902 274,480
Bank borrowings RITEE 34 57,559 =
Other financial liabilities Hthm%as 35 47,897 =
Lease liabilities HE&E 36 309,586 314,704
Provisions and other liabilities BEREMEE 37 32,529 35,526
Contract liabilities BHB8E 30 28,935 31,109
Defined benefit plan obligations TEEMNGEEMT 39 16,773 15,756
Total non-current liabilities FrHarEE 720,181 671,575
3,566,321 4,245,269

The financial statements on pages 86 to 256 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March
2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lai Weixuan
RS
DIRECTOR
EE

HINFEBEEF 6BV HBRREHES
ER_E_—F=ZA=+—BH#tEREEE

ToHAENTALIARRE

Zhao Yang

icki

DIRECTOR

EF

89



£

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited 5

FEMZ T ZERERER (F8) BEIRAT
Annual Report 2020 — & — BEFELR

ﬁx'
L

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY {2 & &R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE T -_ZTE+_H=+—HILFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
BETRA R B
HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hE—H—H 930,337 1,857,729
Loss for the year KEEE S S
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year: AFEHMEE S H) #& !
Exchange differences related to BN ERARCERESR
foreign operations = -
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, THETEEBERE
net of tax (NkiRER) - =
Changes in fair value of equity BATEFAEMEENGE Y
investments designated at fair value BERE 2 AT EEE)
through other comprehensive income = =
Gain on property revaluation MESEFE = S

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year  AE2E IR () % - =

2018 special dividend - N\FRAIKE - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary S HHM B A E - -
Transfer from retained profits ERFEnH 5 = =

At 31 December 2019 RIE—-hE+"B=+—H 930,337 1,857,729
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REEBE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

Fair value

reserve of

equity

investments

designated

at fair value

Asset through other Exchange

revaluation comprehensive Reserve fluctuation Retained Total
reserve income fund reserve profits equity

BATEFA

Hi2ERTZ

BELEEZ
BEEMRHAE NRTEHE HES E R R B Baf e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET FET

(note 32)
(Hfit32)

- (765,634) 7,790 (31,688) 1,620,634 3,619,168
- - - - (54,016) (54,016)
- - - (4,811) - (4,811)
_ - - = (4,627) (4,627)
- (19,601) - - - (19,601)
130,615 - - - - 130,615
130,615 (19,601) - (4,811) (58,643) 47,560
- - - - (93,034) (93,034)
- - (2,604) - 2,604 =
- - 124 - (124) -
130,615 (785,235) 5,310 (36,499) 1,471,437 3,573,694
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

.. “
L o )-8
»

= A
)

LI

Share
Issued premium
capital account
BEITRE B in BB AR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEz FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZE—HF—H 930,337 1,857,729
Loss for the year KEFE = -
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHMZE (ZH) K
for the year:
Exchange differences related to BN ERERCERER
foreign operations - -
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, TR EEEER
net of tax (N IER) = -
Changes in fair value of equity investments BATEst A2 ERGEZ
designated at fair value through other RAKEZ AT EES
comprehensive income = =
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year &E2E (k1) NFHEE = =
Deregistration of a subsidiary KB AR = -
Disposal of equity investments designated at fair ~ HERAFESAEMZEAREZR
value through other comprehensive income rEE
- listed —EtW = =
~ unlisted —JEH = =
Transfer from retained profits BB E R - -
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-RA=+—H 930,337 1,857,729
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY {2 & #Em &R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

Fair value

reserve of

equity

investments

designated

at fair value

Asset through other Exchange

revaluation comprehensive Reserve fluctuation Retained Total
reserve income fund reserve profits equity

BATEFA

Hth2EKEZ

REREZ
BEEMMHE ATERE HEE ER KRB HE BEEd EReE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET TFEz TET

(note 32)
(Hfit32)

130,615 (785,235) 5,310 (36,499) 1,471,437 3,573,694
= = = = (756,738) (756,738)
= = = 33,123 = 33,123
= = = = (607) (607)
= (3,332) = = = (3,332)
= (3,332) = 33,123 (757,345) (727,554)
= = (5,186) = 5,186 =
- 568,004 = - (568,004) -
= (3,889) = = 3,889 =
= = 59 = (59) =
130,615 (224,452) 183 (3,376) 155,104 2,846,140
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS i &RERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE
2020 2019
ZEZEE ZE-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(7))
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &EEZHZ2HERE
Loss before tax FRI2 A E5 18 (808,530) (83,833)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Finance costs X 18,751 10,850
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures DhEERE RIGE
and an associate NElZmM e 1R 1,191 38,689
Bank interest income IRTFEWA (8,394) (13,832)
Interest income on financial assets at BATESABR Y
fair value through profit or loss BEEZFMBEWA = (78)
Interest income on loans to an associate B E A B RENER
ZFBUWA (550) (541)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary S8 M B A B 2 ) - (1,721)
Gain on disposal of other intangible assets HEEMEEEE ZF
b = (28,210)
Loss (gain) on disposal of items of property, HEYE -BEMRE
plant and equipment BHEZ BB FE) 58 (1.217)
Write-down (reversal of write-down) FERE (RERERE)
of inventories 38,278 (14,338)
Depreciation of property, plant MEBEMZE I
and equipment ® 60,131 64,934
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERAEEEZITE 16,380 8,219
Amortisation of other intangible assets HtEFEEEZ #BH 88,009 82,731
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ FEUR B2 5 BR ;AL TBHA(S
model on trade receivables, net of reversal SHEERETZRE
GF =Nk {Clpdpe - 5,510 (2,178)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ E M AEUR R R FBHR(S
model on other receivables, net of reversal SHEERETZRE
B518 B # 0] 2 R ER (16,066) (4,033)
Impairment of a loan to a joint venture Aa=ENERENER
ZRfE = 1,700
Loss on dissolution of a joint venture R e E N Bl 218 - 302
Fair value loss on an investment property REYE T AN FEEE 23,300 =
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate HALEBRE AT Z
DS (767) =
Fair value loss on other financial liabilities HthyHadz R A FE
#18 47,897 -
Impairment of goodwill and other MEKHEMELEE
intangible assets A 471,044 =
Operating cash flows before movements NEEEESETAN
in working capital RERERS (63,758) 57,444
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 448 IRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E " _ZFF+_A=+—HULFE

2020 2019
—ECEE “E-NE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(Z%1)
Decrease in inventories EFERED 6,998 6,628
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables FEU B 5 BRF (8 h0) b (25,234) 2,510
Decrease in amounts due from FEUS [F] % BfY 8 2 B R IB R
fellow subsidiaries b 4,223 9,555
Increase in an amount due from an associate & W Bt & A &) FUIELE A0 = (517)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, deposits ~ FA{SZRIE ~ ¥4 & K ELth &
and other receivables Y BR = (38 10) b (556) 49,181
Increase (decrease) in trade payables FEfT B SERFIG 0 CGRb) 22,171 (4,187)
Increase (decrease) in other payables HMEMRARESER
and accruals = Ceb) 15,604 (18,973)
Increase (decrease) in provisions and B RAEMEEIEm
other liabilities GRiZL) 58,791 (17,691)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 7,658 1,603
Increase in defined benefit plan obligations G EIE LM 315 3,604
Cash generated from operations SEEFZRE 26,212 89,157
Interest paid BAFE (14,500) (7,014)
Tax paid ENRIE (11,901) (4,724)
NET CASH FLOW (USED IN) FROM REEE (ER) EEX 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HE&E 258 (189) 77,419
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ¥ EZEZIRE&ER=
Purchases of items of property, BAYIZE BB
plant and equipment HBEIER (126,469) (171,608)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE BB
property, plant and equipment RBIEBFAEMRIE 1,879 4,339
Additions of other intangible assets AIEMEEEE (35,625) (75,633)
Proceeds from disposal HE ,\ﬁﬂﬁtﬂ’ BE
of other intangible assets Frigsia - 32,713
Proceeds from disposal of equity investment HERATEEALME
designated at fair value [ Zﬁx$& =4
through other comprehensive income P18 =R IE 30,710 -
Deposit received for disposal of a W E ﬁ%é%“?z&%
joint venture 13,529 -
Bank interest received BUWERITH &S 8,394 13,832
Interest received on financial assets BB A FEEST ABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBBEEZFE = 78
Interest received on loans to an associate Bl mEBEABRENE
MR B - 541
Purchase of a financial asset E%)\?E‘?/AXFTE%JH\TEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss HHEE - (1,938)
Receipt of repayment of a loan WEIE=FREEM
from a third party 11,429 -
Advance of a loan to a joint venture AEEATRNER (1,046) (1,700)
Overseas tax paid BfEINEIE - (72,992)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN RELZHERZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B (97,199) (272,368)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 45 IREmER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EEE —hEF
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FAET
(Restated)
(Z%1)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RiEZEHZzIRERE 43
New bank loans MIBITEMN 231,115 116,312
Repayment of bank loans BERIBITER (203,374) (12,400)
Increase in amounts due to intermediate FE( PR A B
holding companies FUIEIE 0 - 812
Principal portion of lease payments HEMNRZAEZBH (5,934) (5,295)
Interest paid BRFHE (4,251) (3,766)
Dividend paid B E = (93,034)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEBELEZ
ACTIVITIES REREFE 17,556 2,629
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HERFAEEE
EQUIVALENTS W RER (79,832) (192,320)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#] 2R KIREHE 990,386 1,191,575
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net — FEEEH)F 2558 3,518 (8,869)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEAERAEEE
AT END OF YEAR 914,072 990,386
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HERFAEEEHERZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS bR 26
Cash and bank balances Be KRIRTEF 596,322 183,686
Non-pledged time deposits with original WERRIHETE=1E
maturity of less than three months Bz ®IERERER
when acquired 317,750 806,700
914,072 990,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BAF8 $R R izt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent is AVIC
International (HK) Group Limited (incorporated in
Hong Kong) and its ultimate parent is Aviation Industry
Corporation of China, Ltd (incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC")). The registered office of
the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda. The head
office and principal place of business is located at Unit
A, 20/F, Tower 2, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) were mainly involved in the general aviation
aircraft piston engine business.

—figE X

AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited R Bl 22 T 2B FER (BF48)
BRAB (IRAF) #—REREBRE
AMRIZARERAE  HRAG N
BEEMERZMBRAS (THAZPI)
FiRET-HBABRPFMER (FH)
EEBRAE (REBFHMLL) > BH
ERERBAFEMEIEEEARR
rE (RHhEARHEME (THE) 5
FR L) o AN B2 FE M E R A Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda° 48 2F & =
EEEMMUTEBSEERE 185
BE PO T EE20IBAE ©

GAMBREUBT2I BTAL
AR

FRARBAKRERBAR (TEEE))
TENRETEAMERBEELIHE
o

97



98

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
rREIfNZE T2 ERZER (F#8) BRAT
Annual Report 2020 — & —ZBEFLR

v

e (N :
S5 1 > D
o, K
@ -sz,_

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B F8$R R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")

2.1

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8

Amendments to Definition of Business

HKFRS 3
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Reform

Except as described below, the application
of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

2.

EREEMBHREER ((FEH
BIREEER) Z2185T

21 REFERBFERNERME
WEER 28T

REFEE > FEERRREGH
BHREE EERENE BB
BREERPHEHBESEERZE
MBEFT R U TEHER G 56D
~g (TEBGARE)) B
THR_E_EF-HA—HBmHZ
BB FERBERSEMB
BEARMBREENZERT

SEGHE EANER
FIRERE
B st 2ERY
8RS
I

ERUBRE EHFHNER
ZER)E35%
1EET

EEUBRE MEXEENRSE
ZERIZEIE
ERgTE
BIEE39%E &
EARAMHBR
HAERET
SRAVEET

BRNXPRIUN R EERBER
MBRSERPHEBFSEER
ZRANESIREBYMHRS
ZRAZEITHLEESMBR
KT EERERESRBRBERE
HBNMBER T RRER %
RELEEATE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BAF8 $R R izt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

2.1

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current
year. The amendments provide a new definition
of material that states “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity”.
The amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of the
financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

EREEMBHREER ((FEH
BIREEER) 2185 (@)

2.1

R FERG EMHEEM TS
BEERZEST (@)

EREECHERF1NLREE
BRI FIHIIEFTEAXIE
BHTE

FEERAEEERERER
S EAF IR REBESHER]
BREMEFT A FBITRHERKR
REFNEZR JBMHEHER
R R B AR L&
RHREXE—RBRVBTRE
WEBRPERZSTRHER
RHERSERNYBEMNY
BHE|RRFHARR > AIZENB
BRI -ZFEITESEER
MBRENBERN > BEEMEEUR
REMVMEENIZE (BEFaE
HthERGESER) -

RAEAFEBBZEEITHES
MHBBRRLETE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B F8$R R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4

and HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and
the related Amendments’

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions?

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture’®

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 20207

2.2

EREEMBERSS
HIRSEA) Z185T (&)

.

.

27 (&38R

=

EEMERRERZ TR
BB AMBREZER

FERTEEFSEABLUTER
fEERENZ T REEET

BEBMBREER
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BEE175% HERFIEET
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Asgest e HHEAEE
57 EER
BEBNBREE HREFRS
B3R 2 BET 52
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AIsEosE~B/E E—F_
BETERE39 EFES
5 B EHM B
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EBMBRE
R FAERE
B G
El==n Il
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A0 E HEHS
HaEstEEE Bz
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B FEES
F(CEZ
ZF) 2
REET
BEBGHENE YF -BEN
1658 2 1857 R —HE
JE FF# BT
Z &R
5
BEGHENE FHAME
3758 2 15T A—ETT
ERZH
Z;z
BEERUMBREE BEUBER
A ) FHEL—
E—NEF
FPOET
FEZ L

V=g=¢ o



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE T EEMRIER (F#) BIRAR

Annual Report 2020 — = — FBEFETR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (continued)

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all the new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS issued by
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

2. EREBAMBHRESER (FEM
BIREEER) 2185 (@)

2.2

BREME R R E R Z T B aK

BT EEMFEHRESER @)

U RZE_=ZH—FB—H™% 2
BRAZEERBER -

C WZE_—_HF£—BF—H™%2
BB ZFERBER-

g REEHBESzBRABZF
AR E -

& RZZ2EZEHFRA—H™H-Z
BB ZFERBER-

: RZE2EZ—F—A—H"% =2

‘B EFERBES -

RABDEFTAR BAMABEME]
REESTEBYBREERNR
ARRARARIEHEGHMBHR
REEERTE-

3. BRAMBHRRZENEEREX
P e

3.1

REMBRRZGHREE
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B S BERULIN R ERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements,
a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

4= A

REMBRRZGHNEBLEREKX
Bt (@)

3.1

REMBRRZGNREE (@)

RHER S M BRER AT
EFcERAEERARMNE
BRIRAIARRREBEEE A
I REN R RG T M BRERE
R EEKEgst B

REBEPR  GEMHFHRERE
REEERAEERR HET
MERETBIBEBATEFE
BRON (BT X85 2 & 5T EURER
B3) o

EEmA—RENZIBE R
WRBFraT2RBZAFE.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E " _ZFF+_A=+—HULFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B F8$R R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 EAREHEEK

Basis of consolidation FEEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate FEUBERREERAQABT AAX

the financial statements of the Company and NEIEFHICERURERB R

entities controlled by the Company and its BN TAIER T BIRAR

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the ElHER EGIRE

Company:

. has power over the investee; . AHEREARTHER

7805

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable . MBHEKEANREE
returns from its involvement with the FRi8z e & EbEl ;A &
investee; SRERZE N ;

. has the ability to use its power to affect its . EEHAEEEARER
returns. HEDUZEARIR -

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls MEBRBRRME EXFFRY =

an investee if facts and circumstances indicate BEGHERNEZER-BLZE

that there are changes to one or more of the AR AXAEEREEGHESTMA

three elements of control listed above. ZEHIWEERE]

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 7R & [E B AT MY B A B) 1 A B

Group obtains control over the subsidiary and BHEHEGAR KREBRBEEGE

ceases when the Group loses control of the FRAR IHER S ABR-BfgmM = >

subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of FRAKEIHERB LS 2

a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the AR H B AEEEG G %

year are included in the consolidated statement EAEERAEET FEG KB

of profit or loss from the date the Group gains NEIEHIESI AL GIBR -

control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can
elect to apply an optional concentration test, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.
The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax
liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set
of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE #E
Business combinations or asset acquisitions EHSHIEERE (&)
(continued)

Asset acquisitions EEWE

EXEERRBEIBR—RED
NW—HHEERER AEEES
BRNEBEBEHREAT
BEREEAENREMERNUE
BATEFENMBEE§
HaE BEENGRAREE
HEHRBEANHEBRATEDR
EHMERTH#HNEERER
58 1) B B 53 18 J!) BT 58t 7l P U R
BEMMAEER - ILEXHT
CEEHENZEBART-

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to investment properties which are subsequently
measured under fair value model and financial
assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

ES Y

WEEBLURBEAKR X545
HAFEEABUATESE M
AFTERFEBMBREEE K
EEHWKRBLRIEE AFTE
TEREURKTEBTZIBE K
BrhERERETREIERN
WEABMZAFERNTE UL
BERRE—RREERRE
i Y FESR o

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KROUBBRRZGREEREK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Business combinations or asset acquisitions EHESHIEERE (&)
(continued)
Business combinations (continued) EREH B

PRE THSBHRRN FTEAT
A BEEKRPIAEGBCARN
GAMBBRERERRINBER)
(HZZE-—FFE+BEM (M
HBREMSERIRA) F2E
ERBEEE-

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

RUEE R FriB AR B B E
R AESREE AT ERS

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are

measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below);

recognised at their fair value, except that: BLUTEIERI

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and . BIEREBEEENEER
assets or liabilities related to employee EHEERAMNZHZE
benefit arrangements are recognised and EXNEBEDIRESHE

GETEAIE125ER
REBEGERE195
EERANEDRE ;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHE @)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions EBSHHEENKE (B

(continued)

Business combinations (continued) EBat (&

. assets (or disposal groups) that are . 1R & &R R S 2R
classified as held for sale in accordance ESMTHIELHEIFREE
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held ERERIERKEERED
for Sale and Discontinued Operations HAFELREZEE (T
are measured in accordance with that HEARSE) HZER G
standard; and ;&

. lease liabilities are recognised and . HEaRRFGHENNR
measured at the present value of the (EEREBMBRS
remaining lease payments (as defined in ZHIFE165%) 2 IREER
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were MEts2 BB AE
new leases at the acquisition date, except REBIAARHEE &
for leases for which (a) the lease term (a)fEHARC W s H BR 1218
ends within 12 months of the acquisition BARER; Sb)EREE
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low ABEEBEZHEERIN
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised AREEZRHEMERAEE
and measured at the same amount as the BEEERZEERER
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect e WHEITHE KR
favourable or unfavourable terms of the HEmIGHRGAELEHEE 2

lease when compared with market terms. BRI AFERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger
than an operating segment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Goodwill (continued) BE (B)
A cash-generating unit (or group of cash- ENEERENRSEESB T (W
generating units) to which goodwill has been REELETAN gEFAN
allocated is tested for impairment annually or BAUHREREDREEAEM
more frequently when there is indication that ETRER iR S AR E
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising TWEELE-EmEMmMs Bk
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash- BECREELET (FRSE
generating unit (or group of cash-generating A EITAR) SRR ERATE
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is TRERE - WrWElEzE DR
tested for impairment before the end of that HirmEE  AIBEBEEE LD
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less BB R & 2 IR EE 1L
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss REBZST (HBEEELET
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount AR NEBEENRE BRI
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on DEEHMEE-

a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating REEEAREESE TR
unit or any of the cash-generating unit within TELEBTHEANRZERIRE
the group of cash-generating units, the EEBIR gRETHERT
attributable amount of goodwill is included in HEBSHERTREEZEWG
the determination of the amount of profit or FTH-BEAEBHERTELS
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of T (HRESELEETHIRNZ —
an operation within the cash-generating unit BEREELET) NRERHE
(or a cash-generating unit within a group of FTHERESHEEMEEXER
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill (NIBEELEET) BEFARER
disposed of is measured on the basis of the ETELBT (FREEFEH
relative values of the operation (or the cash- A Bz AAEEEE

generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B F8$R R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or
a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and
the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHE @)

Revenue recognition (continued) Woak Z FRER (B

Revenue from contracts with customers REEREHNZWE B

(continued)

. the Group's performance creates or . KEBZBHNBIE &IE
enhances an asset that the customer MEERAEE BN
controls as the Group performs; or EHZEE ; &

. the Group's performance does not create . rEBCCBAOTRESE
an asset with an alternative use to the HAEEBEERARZ
Group and the Group has an enforceable BEE BAEEBRGIH
right to payment for performance TREUEREZSEREY
completed to date. By 2 FRIF ©

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in HH Wl ERESHER S

time when the customer obtains control of the AR TS VI HI RE B T ©

distinct good or service.

(a)  Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts €) B & ik S It S 1
Revenue from the sale of aircraft engines REHERKEIHE R
and spare parts is recognised at the BHHENREZNEENE
point in time when control of the asset is FIREBRERR (—RE
transferred to the customer, generally on R BB R BEHNR
delivery of the aircraft engines and spare 1) N RFE R HEER o
parts.

(b)  Provision of repair and maintenance (b) IR ERE
services for aircraft engines AR TS
Revenue from the provision of repair and REEEREESKE
maintenance services for aircraft engines is BRERBOWRZENIE
recognised over time in the period in which 4 AR 75 7Y HA 6] BB BRF ]

the services are rendered. R
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. REMBHRRZGHNBEREKX
Bt (@)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement

EXRGFHEBR @
Wat 2 FEE ()
PEREIRESBIA | St B EEIT

of progress towards complete satisfaction of a BHBEZEE
performance obligation
Output method wHEE

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has
a right to consideration in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value of the Group's
performance completed to, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has
the right to invoice.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment in
accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment
is received or a payment is due (whichever
is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e. transfers
control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.

3. REMBRRZGNBEREKX

B5HEER (3)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHE @)
Leases (continued) HE &)
The Group as a lessee REBIERABEA
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets R EREEEEEEE
The Group applies the short-term lease AEBHNRERBRBBERE
recognition exemption to leases of motor F1NR2EEFURNEBELEEZE
vehicles, machinery and equipment and office BEEREENSE HBNREK
premises that have a lease term of 12 months WMAEYERE EREHPAE
or less from the commencement date and do TR -HTHEEEEEM
not contain a purchase option. It also applies EERARERHR NBAHEERE
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value BEEEHEENHEHECREZEA
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases BEBESAS—FBRAEER
and leases of low-value assets are recognised MR ER AR

as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets EREEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEENMAEE !

. the amount of the initial measurement of . HEEBBHNITHESR
the lease liability; 2

. any lease payments made at or before . iR E= R R Ay I (=)
the commencement date, less any lease B E R E 7R AR
incentives received:; BRAEESE;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the . rEBAESWNERIEA

Group; and BEMRA ; K&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site

on which it is located or restoring the

underlying asset to the condition required

by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Leases (continued) HE &)
Refundable rental deposits REMEERE
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted EXNHNAREHAEZETLIR
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair BEAUBRSENFIRAR
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial Wi AT BT T2 R T
recognition are considered as additional lease REZ N FEAERIEREIINE
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use ENFC M AFCRAEEE R
assets. 7o
Lease liabilities HESE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group REERBER AERZER
recognises and measures the lease liability at the HAZMHEEMNRESENR
present value of lease payments that are unpaid BEREDITEHEEB-REE
at that date. In calculating the present value of HEMHNRER  MEERE
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental SRR EHEMNET AREER
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date R ER I B HE A EERT
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not o

readily determinable.

The lease payments include: HEMHREE !

. fixed payments (including in-substance . BEMN® (BIEEE LZ
fixed payments) less any lease incentives &l 7 {9 77) B £ fo] FE W AR
receivable; BEEBE;

. variable lease payments that depend on . BURMN —IEIEH R L X
an index or a rate, initially measured using 2R EBHEEMR FF 5
the index or rate as at the commencement ERFEHABBBBRNIE

date; oA E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HREMBRRZGREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEEER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Leases (continued) A #®)

Lease liabilities (continued) HeEar’ @

. amounts expected to be payable by the . AEBMBEHESZCHE
Group under residual value guarantees; EREBEEREE;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if . FEEBTSEBRERT
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise THENBEEERE 21T
the option; and FE; &

. payments of penalties for terminating a . MHEARMAER ST
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group FHEERIEEERE B A
exercising an option to terminate the lease. wIEHEMSZ Mz S

After the commencement date, lease liabilities REABBHREZ HEEEMAE

are adjusted by interest accretion and lease BERBENRTIUARE-

payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHE @)
Leases (continued) FAE (&)
Lease liabilities (continued) fREaE @)
The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate FEBRRGEMBRRIARAE
line item on the consolidated statement of HEBRZIAEREER-

financial position.

Lease modifications HENENR

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a BFE TIER Bl AEE&HE

separate lease if: ENEXRIEA—BEBNEE

EITARK:

. the modification increases the scope of . ZIRE N EBIE N A
the lease by adding the right to use one or —IEHNZIEEREEN
more underlying assets; and BAERTHESE ; &

. the consideration for the leases increases . FIEEEAE BN
by an amount commensurate with the SHEEENRSDTEREAY
stand-alone price for the increase in FERV BB IBEMS > 10 L1ZR
scope and any appropriate adjustments BRESONERBRLE
to that stand-alone price to reflect the BEEERETHNEMBE

circumstances of the particular contract. B
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEUBHRRZGREEREKX

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R (@)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Leases (continued) HE #E)
Lease modifications (continued) AEMEN )
For a lease modification that is not accounted for HRAARABRBHEENHEE
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the B REBE A EME
lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable, AT AR IR R B &K E5THA
based on the lease term of the modified lease by BENFETRRIR  LUBRREET
discounting the revised lease payments using a HENHBPEMT=EHEEA8E
revised discount rate at the effective date of the BERNEKBEEES-
modification.
The Group accounts for the remeasurement FAEEBBHBMERAREE
of lease liabilities by making corresponding EITHERE UHEEaGE

adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. TEMETE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or
income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to
an advance consideration, the date of initial
transaction is the date on which the Group
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and income and expenses items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average exchange rates for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation and any fair value adjustments
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average exchange rates for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Government grants BFiEEN
Government grants are not recognised until RIFEERBAEERETH
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will 5 485 B P B9 35 22 4% 4 1 7% U E
comply with the conditions attaching to them and By FRIBN BN T’
that the grants will be received. o
Government grants are recognised in profit or I I 488 Bh 7 4~ &= [ %% 4 Bh #E 4
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in BB AER AT 28
which the Group recognises as expenses the MR UEHREEREBERPRE
related costs for which the grants are intended HeAfemME UAEEHBR
to compensate. Specifically, government grants B -BERSTWEFERBEE
whose primary condition is that the Group should AEZBRENBUSEE > IR
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non- EFBERTFTPERDSNEIERE
current assets are recognised as a deduction from BEERBENRR LREMREE
the carrying amount of the relevant asset in the ZAFERAFHAMNRARGIE
consolidated statement of financial position and HEEBTIEgo

transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.

Government grants related to income that are EBRCELERZABEZHE
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses 5Y [m) 2= £ [ 4R 4 BN By B4 75 & B
already incurred or for the purpose of giving (3 £ B % /B BA A Z<) M FE Ui £
immediate financial support to the Group with no WABRRNEAHHE > W ER
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss AEUBGRIEHAB NI m PR o
in the period in which they become receivable. ERABZMEZ BN /BN #H
Government grants relating to compensation of HERERE IR

expenses are deducted from the related expenses.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments ("'equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is
measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised in employee benefit expense, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions
are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood
of the conditions being met is assessed as part
of the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met, no expense is
recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any,
is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Other employee benefits BiESE7
Pension schemes BRIAREETE
The Group operates a defined contribution KEBBEARTMELRBEEFE
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit BE BEAEEERZHZEE
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the RUHTEMRAFMELABEER
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for KREF B (TRBEETE) o
those employees who are eligible to participate in MR EBEREEELAFEZERD
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based LBt & Wik B RERIRRERE
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries B 2 RAUBFZ AR A
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss Bmko RBERTEZEETE
as they become payable in accordance with the UNRAEBZEE THBILE
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF BzEEFE KBz EEMH
Scheme are held separately from those of the MR\ s A F B E R
Group in an independently administered fund. 2YHENES-

The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the

MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which AEE B P E AR E 2 S
operate in Mainland China are required to NEZEEBESMAEM I
participate in a central pension scheme operated T PEERY AR IR IR 2 51 8 © 5%
by the local municipal government. These EMB AR ERAEHFEMAN
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain EFTaottmazp RBAEE
percentage of their payroll costs to the central SER - BREAEANREZFR
pension scheme. The contributions are charged BAREF B 2R BT IR
to profit or loss as they become payable in AfEme

accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

A subsidiary of the Group sponsors a defined
benefit pension plan as well as a retiree medical
and life insurance plan. Payments to defined
benefit pension plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit pension plans, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of
each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest),
is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or
credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and
will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment or curtailment
and a gain or loss on settlement is recognised
when settlement occurs. When determining past
service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an
entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit
liability or asset using the current fair value of
plan assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, without
considering the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the
present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. However, if
the Group remeasures the net defined benefit
liability or asset before plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, the Group determines
net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after
the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure such
net defined benefit liability or asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. EFOMBHRRZEHREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Other employee benefits (continued) BiES#EH (&)

Pension schemes (continued) BrEsE (&

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: EREBM A DEENT ¢

. service cost (including current service cost, . IR A (BIERERE
past service cost, as well as gains and BRANBERBRARB
losses on curtailments and settlements); MR REBTN W E K

B518) ;

. net interest expense or income; and . BRHERAZHWA ; &

. remeasurement. . BHstEe

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in REZEHBRRERAEDHER

the consolidated statement of financial position KREMNETRAREAEEBTER

represents the actual deficit or surplus in the FMRAREE B BER B RER

Group's defined benefit pension plans. Any HIESEEENERAREREE

surplus resulting from this calculation is limited PRI U 5% 55 5t 8 I [B] =R 18 5 %

to the present value of any economic benefits LB R REFRERL AN

available in the form of refunds from the plans or (R HEF] mBIIRE o

reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or BEFFEF=ZFNHBEERILE
third parties reduce service cost upon payment of T8I E Y % F R EFH R AR 75

these contributions to the plan. P2 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &

Other employee benefits (continued) BtESEF (&)

Pension schemes (continued) BUrEsE (&

When the formal terms of the plans specify that WESTENEXERIBRES

there will be contributions from employees or RE=ZFHBEHETR BEEE

third parties, the accounting depends on whether EEUARNERZS EHARE AR

the contributions are linked to service, as follows: T

. If the contributions are not linked to . i & AR (F
services (for example contributions a0 FR A B SR LURL D TR
are required to reduce a deficit arising Bt EEBBERABEE
from losses on plan assets or from BEME AL > AR
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the EWGEZ2TEENE
remeasurement of the net defined benefit BRNEEFEFP R

liability or asset.

. If contributions are linked to services, . B MR AR 8
they reduce service costs. For the amount SRR AR TS AL S o i B
of contribution that is dependent on the REFHEBNERS
number of years of service, the entity EME > BERAURESE
reduces service cost by attributing the BB H 1958 F 708
contributions to periods of service using RENHERA ARERE
the attribution method required by HKAS ) 4 15 R R B AR 75 A
19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits. FE 18 T Rk 2 AR 755 AR S o i
For the amount of contribution that is MRS 2R AR 7
independent of the number of years of mE IERNIEHER
service, the entity reduces service cost in PR 75 HA 8 780V BR 75 Bl 7S o

the period in which the related service is
rendered.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE #E

Taxation (continued) s (&)

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary FIERBEBISMNREAEREE

differences at the end of the reporting period HEeEsREREBEMHER

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities EZREBZEZMAEERRE

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting BEFHiR G o

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all FTERERBREZBEHER A

taxable temporary differences, except: EERIEAE U TIFRAE

Gh

. when the deferred tax liability arises from . E—EFEEBEHZX
the initial recognition of goodwill or an ZHRVEEREELE
asset or liability in a transaction that is EXNBEMEELE 2RI
not a business combination and, at the mEaBE MERBXZN
time of the transaction, affects neither the EREEHEMNIRE
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; BEIEREZE &
and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences . = ANCIN: =/NE
associated with investments in subsidiaries, ReEERElzH®EZHE
associates and a joint venture, when the RERMERFREEREMS
timing of the reversal of the temporary THREEH BRI =48
differences can be controlled and it is ZEEER MERATR
probable that the temporary differences & 2R B Bt A & [o] £ B B

will not reverse in the foreseeable future. EREo
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE #E
Taxation (continued) s (&)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is BEMBEEZRAERSR
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and SRR WA EBER B
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable FERR R m A LUE BB P A 3 2B
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to MIEERIBE ER > BJIRERIE
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be BEEZAMERRL o RS ZIRIE
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are MEBENRSREHEREN
reassessed at the end of each reporting period L A BER BRMERR AT
and are recognised to the extent that it has MRS 2 MR IELERBE
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will ER BT UM o

be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured BEIEMBEEREAEDRER
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the REHREEMAEEEMRZ
period when the asset is realised or the liability ME (L) RTEIERER
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that BEERFEEHAGRRBEZE
have been enacted or substantively enacted by FMZEEE -

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities EEHEELAERBBE LTI
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally A GENEAMIBE EHEEAR
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and HEEOERE BERERE
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax BEEHREEMEBEAGHERF—R
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income BHEERE— RN BRI
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the WZ MR BR ARERIEE
same taxation authority. ERRIERBESET T EHEE

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B F8$R R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
freehold land and construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Freehold lands
located in Germany are not depreciated and are
measured at cost less subsequent accumulated

impairment losses.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation Y% -BENRERITE (&)
(continued)
Construction in progress represents a building FRIRBEETENEFT EMA
under construction, which is stated at cost less BAERIRE R B Y8R B SR
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. E - ABEGEEETENR
Costs include any costs directly attributable to REEBEREN S ABABLE
bringing the asset to the location and condition FTENUEREHEMERE
necessary for it to be capable of operating in ENEMRE REBEREE
the manner intended by management and, for M ARBAEEGHBESER
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in FEZBERR ARIENT
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. REEEERARENDEES
Construction in progress is reclassified to the BENME -BEANRE ZF
appropriate category of property, plant and BEREHEMYEBEEMABRDN
equipment when completed and ready for use. B T BERRTE BRRRE
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis RETEITE -

as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership EXEEMBOEHEE LM RE
interests of properties which includes both FRAPNMERBEERIEHA
leasehold land and building elements, the entire FORERERNE REDRRZ
consideration is allocated between the leasehold HERFELEA REAE LA
land and the building elements in proportion to BFRD 2 BEETHE o Hi86E
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To NP EETRAER HEE
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments THIT SRR SRR U
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land MERAREE 29 ERER
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the AEHEEAE T HIERER
consolidated statement of financial position. FHRAREDEI R 2B AE
When the consideration cannot be allocated DEF BIEYMESEEYE-
reliably between non-lease building element and & = A 58 4 ©

undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHE @)

Investment property REWE

Investment property is interest in land and SEYERTBENE S WA KR
building held to earn rental income and/or for SREREEMBEZ T MK
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the BFE@ MIEBEEENHE
production or supply of goods or services or EEY SRS A IEITE AR
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the FMP B EERETHEME
ordinary course of business. Such property is Bzt REFER BREME
measured initially at cost, including transaction Mg A (BIERXZMA) &t
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, EoRVRERE REYER
investment property is stated at fair value, which REREHRRRT R AFE
reflects market conditions at the end of the F8R o

reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair NEMENTFEEHMELZ
values of investment properties are included FMBEEEE REEXFEEFA
in the statement of profit or loss in the year in B@m&RA e

which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal ERNLEREMEZEAF
of an investment property are recognised in the BHAEE RERIHEFER
statement of profit or loss in the year of the B R o

retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 30 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Product technology, licence and completed
programs

The product technology, licence and completed
programs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their useful lives of 15
years.

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their useful lives of 1 to 5
years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. EFOMBHRRZEHREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) BEEE (BERI) (B
(continued)
Research and development costs [HIEEIn i
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as FREMMERAREELERRE
incurred. m bR e
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop HENMEREEBEYTELANMRZ
new products is capitalised and deferred only EEAEERFRUTRIER
when the Group can demonstrate the technical F Al FUBE AR BRI | 52k
feasibility of completing the intangible asset FREEUGHENGHANHEE
so that it will be available for use or sale, its i E BB RTYE  BEm %
intention to complete and its ability to use or EEEEHENFERAEE &
sell the asset, how the asset will generate future FEEEERKKENZNA
economic benefits, the availability of resources to - BEHNERTEMZEEE
complete the project and the ability to measure REENASEEMEREN
reliably the expenditure during the development. HZ AR RS ERENEMG
Product development expenditure which does not ERYNEERZHE BB ANA
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred. HMEEBREEENMREMRKTD
Development costs recognised as internally- BRAREMRESE (WE)
generated intangible asset are stated at cost less FIER > WA E& AN ERE®D
any impairment losses (if any) and are amortised NEESh (BZSFERRABR
using the straight-line basis over the commercial X4 EZHES10E30E) BT
lives of the underlying products from 10 to 30 DUESH -

years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, BREETHREEREGRN
or when no future economic benefits are EERRTEBEEERERE
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses M W EIEITRIERESY o &
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, ItEREEEEMmEENTE
measured as the difference between the net KEE (GEEHEMBERIER
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the EEEEREE BN EER
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the B)RZEERIEREDRENER

asset is derecognised. i
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHE @)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment, Y% -BEHNRE EFEESER
right-of-use assets, intangible assets other BEEE (B2 HE
than goodwill
At the end of the reporting period, the Group REEHR ~EEgRaH
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant FREBHBERZYE -BEM
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible RE-CTRAEEEMETEEER
assets with finite useful lives to determine HE UEETZEEERTHR
whether there is any indication that these AR ERIBER o W Z EE M
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any ZENR W EEEEN
such indication exists, the recoverable amount AU ElEZE LU E R E R (1
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to B) =i oBAHEERNER
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if EESBFAREHRAUEREN
any). Intangible assets not yet available for use PR ERETTRE R -

are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be

impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and ME-BENXRE FRAEESE
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible REREE WG S @@
assets are estimated individually. When it is not EHEE EREER G UK
possible to estimate the recoverable amount El&E AAERRGHTZEE
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable FFEBREEE Bt I lE®
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the Ko

asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Impairment on property, plant and equipment, Y% -BEHNRE EFEESER
right-of-use assets, intangible assets other BEEE (B2 HE (E)
than goodwill (continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash- WLt EE (AREELETT)
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its ZAWEEERNEKREE
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the WEE (HREELEET) 2K
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to HERREEWEEEE 7k
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets ERGER—BNEESEE
or portion of corporate assets which cannot REELXBETZABBEER
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent DATEEMS  AEB LR
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group —HRTELEZREA (B
compares the carrying amount of a group of FENEEZAREELES T
cash-generating units, including the carrying HNARBENT D AEEE) H
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of ZHREEELEBE T2 KEE
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash- Bo-RNOEEBRESERN BES
generating units, with the recoverable amount of BELESEZHREMNESZ (0
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating BH) WEREE RERESE
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is ERBEx—HREELET
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount HNEEEEZLEAPEEZEEME
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the E-BEZREAEBFAEHHEMR
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the RERFER S ERA QA5
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the 2 HEREEBE WAER &
group of cash-generating units. The carrying T_EENRSE -IESTH
amount of an asset is not reduced below the EEEEENREBESRIZL
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if BIoBEEEE e —HIRSES
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) BINEMEE - BERIERE
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss RIBm FEEd o

that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

153



154

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
rREIfNZE T2 ERZER (F#8) BRAT
Annual Report 2020 — 2 — FFFTR

y“f%"ﬂ |
@

A

id
B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and to make the

sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &

Cash and cash equivalents BERFLEE

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of MiFERERNERMS BER
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise HeSEEFEREEHE
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short PR BERERSEMRE
term highly liquid investments that are readily EMEEZY AR T KBHR
convertible into known amounts of cash, are B (—RBEIREET=EARN
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in B 2RRBERENRE B
value, and have a short maturity of generally BRERFERLBRAER
within three months when acquired, less bank REEBAMIMZIRITES -

overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement MEEHMBRAEMS  RER
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents HREEEEFBERETRS 8
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including BEBER kEEARGIMmMT
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to HHBEHEEZEE-

cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions 7BE

A provision is recognised when a present ERBEFEHMELBNAER
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as CEEIEE) WA BN B E
a result of a past event and it is probable that BHBERUEEZERR M
a future outflow of resources will be required ARG AEEH SR AIZER
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable it §i- K

estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to
the sale of certain products for general repairs
of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate.

Product claim provision is made when there are
present expected claims which challenge the
safety of the products. The Group has general
liability and other insurance policies to cover
product claims. Initial recognition is based on
historical experience. The initial estimate of
product claim costs is revised annually based on
current year’s development of present expected
claims.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Investments and other financial assets RERBEMUFEEE
Initial recognition and measurement VIETER Rt &
Financial assets are classified, at initial MBEERVERIDTDIES
recognition, as subsequently measured at HEBR#EmAst2 - 2 A E
amortised cost, fair value through other SFAEMEEWTE REATFE
comprehensive income, and fair value through ST ABE ©

profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial MBEERYAEDFNDE
recognition depends on the financial asset’s BRIV BEESHNREREN
contractual cash flow characteristics and the HErEAEBREERENER
Group's business model for managing them. e =l N = Sl
With the exception of trade receivables that do NETEBEERATERA
not contain a significant financing component (FAEE KRB RGN
or for which the Group has applied the practical 2)WEWEZRN AEE
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a VFZBREAFEMN (HIEIFEZER
significant financing component, the Group TESAABRNMBEE X5
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, AT ERHEE - W HE AR
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair BHEARBOIETERBDEAT
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. THREANHEREZERRR
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant BEBYBBRSELFISHEE
financing component or for which the Group has FENWNRBENRZEEE
applied the practical expedient are measured at Bo

the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group's business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Investments and other financial assets RERBEMHHEE (B
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued) Viphl ket 2 (B

All regular way purchases and sales of financial VBREEZMERREEAR
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, R5H MAEEREEEEE
the date that the Group commits to purchase or EH BRI -EHREBENBER
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are ™ I5 PR 7E #OE B S IB B — A fE
purchases or sales of financial assets that require EZ2HBARNEEZMBE
delivery of assets within the period generally EEB-

established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of BREMEETDFAEVBTEER
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset VHEBEZEEAA RS ECE
or financial liability and of allocating interest RAEAE A B WA 2 7575 - BREF
income and interest expense over the relevant XL BEEAMBAGTE
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that STEHAEE B 2 BT AR
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts SRBRERARRMR (BEER
and payments (including all fees and points paid MEBEHAMRBLZ2EMHE
or received that form an integral part of the WEHERREB - RZMER
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other Hi @ B3R BRMREEY
premiums or discounts) through the expected FTHBZEREFEZHIZE

life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

\
A

B
ol
el

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets ZHBFEERNHE

D F
X\
=
e

depends on their classification as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Investments and other financial assets RERBEMHHEE (B
(continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through BAFEF AR MEEGE 2B
other comprehensive income (equity investments) BEE BREKRE)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to VRN B MRARETES
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity BEFENENFTH A 2
investments designated at fair value through FIETEDNESR B IEFIE
other comprehensive income when they meet BB AP EER D] A
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial BERAKESEARRFEE
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for SFAEMEENENRAKE-
trading. The classification is determined on an DIERBIEIAREE -

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are ZEMBEENF B REEN
never recycled to the statement of profit or BEHTABERR KR ENULEX
loss. Dividends are recognised as other income BRI N ERY > BEREAE
in the statement of profit or loss when the MANKEFMARBRUEERAR
right of payment has been established, it is EB> MREEERAIUTEME
probable that the economic benefits associated B RNEmRPESAEMK
with the dividend will flow to the Group and A EEAEBRNRERWEIFE
the amount of the dividend can be measured & E B B9 AL A B9 P A5 RRIE AR
reliably, except when the Group benefits from Em AR BREAFEIAEM
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of 2EHNE -BRAFEFAEMS
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are HRENREAEEBEERE
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity ST o

investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. EFOMBHRRZEHREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and
equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair
value profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss.
The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EKXEHE @)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) HESEZHE (B
General approach —MRT5 A
ECLs are recognised in three stages. For credit TEHEERED B3 o5t
exposures for which there has not been a B % 8 B 58 LA ZR 3 2R K 12 38 0
significant increase in credit risk since initial NEERREMES  BAGEERE
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses MAR+ZEARNATEZEN
that result from default events that are possible BOEHELENEESBE (HZ
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For BEEREEEIR) sHiRE#H-
those credit exposures for which there has been B ] 46 7 58 2R K i@ 18 0 B9
a significant increase in credit risk since initial EFEEREMS  TwENSHN
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit AL HETRBEEES
losses expected over the remaining life of the BNReFEHR (2HEREES
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default 18) sHiEEEEE -

(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses KEBEE RS BT (LB
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument EMITEANEEREBRE
has increased significantly since initial REELEEEEM EH T
recognition. When making the assessment, the B AREBKNRSHBASHT
Group compares the risk of a default occurring BRTENAREARNTEE
on the financial instrument as at the reporting FEHEMmIAEFEEBO A
date with the risk of a default occurring on REITLEE W E EHAMER
the financial instrument as at the date of NERAHERNATEENE
initial recognition and considers reasonable BUraKkENER OFEE K
and supportable information that is available AIEMER BN NMRaME8
without undue cost or effort, including historical BI0KE AEBRRBRREERR
and forward-looking information. The Group BYIERER U R E AIBIE M bR
presumes that the credit risk has increased FAEBRERERUZFENE
significantly since initial recognition when 8 BE I JE AN LR 5B & Bl & o

contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 90
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise. Despite the aforegoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii)
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and (iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment
grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

The Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate a more
lagging default criteria is more appropriate.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE #E

Impairment of financial assets (continued) HEEEZRE (&

General approach (continued) —RB*E B

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject HEMEMAYENMBEER

to impairment under the general approach and B—MRAEATRE L D5

they are classified within the following stages for UTHBEMGTETEREERE

measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables HEBBLIANEZRERKRES

and contract assets which apply the simplified RAEREHNEE R T B

approach as detailed below. G o

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which F—EE — BYBREIDER
credit risk has not increased EREEEEIE
significantly since initial MEBEEERZ
recognition and for which the ENR+ZHEATE
loss allowance is measured at an HEEBEZE
amount equal to 12-month ECLs HEotE2N ST

A

Stage2 - Financial instruments for FIMEE — BYWBREREE
which credit risk has increased BREEEIL
significantly since initial Bl IFEERE
recognition but that are not 2 BEERR
credit-impaired financial assets BREREZEN2
and for which the loss allowance HFEHREERE
is measured at an amount equal ZEBEFENE
to lifetime ECLs MTA

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit- F=ME — RBSHBPSE
impaired at the reporting date ERE (BFEE
(but that are not purchased or BEXRLEEE
originated credit-impaired) and ERE) BHE18
for which the loss allowance is BEEENRE2H
measured at an amount equal to FBHIEERmE
lifetime ECLs SR ENTE

BE
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, or at amortised cost, as
appropriate.

The Group's financial liabilities include amounts
due to intermediate holding companies, trade
payables, other payables and accruals and
borrowings are measured at amortised cost.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FOMBHRRZEHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Derecognition of financial liabilities ARIFTESRRI RS S 1A
A financial liability is derecognised when the EEEETHNEEEEPRIE
obligation under the liability is discharged or HEE MR AR LR Ea
cancelled, or expires. f&o
When an existing financial liability is replaced by HWIRBEMBEaEHKRBR—E
another from the same lender on substantially AANEBEFBAERNS —B
different terms, or the terms of an existing BEMEA AHEREFEENK
liability are substantially modified, such an FETTRIBEN LitEEHE
exchange or modification is treated as a IR ERAIIEIAFREAET
derecognition of the original liability and a BRMasEE MmAeMKEE
recognition of a new liability, and the difference HERRBmRAE

between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Dividends BE

Final dividends are recognised as a liability FERERRRNERAE £
when they are approved by the shareholders HERBEIAEE BEFRBR
in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends ERGEMBERRWENREE -

are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed HRNARBIWAREZRE XA KR
and declared, because the Company's MAIBTEEHIDEIRPIAR
memorandum and articles of association grant EoMUERF R ETARE
the directors the authority to declare interim ko AL FHARR B EFR IR
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are ISR A B E

recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment property

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment property that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the investment property and concluded that
the investment property is not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time. Therefore, in determining the
deferred taxation on investment property, the directors
of the Company have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment property
measured using the fair value model is recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. The Company has not
recognised any deferred tax on changes in fair value
of investment property as the Company is not subject
to any income taxes on the fair value changes of the
investment property on disposal.

Estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

4.

RS A RSt A EERER
ZEERR (B

FEFR & 5t BRI BV RR SR F i (42

R EYE BB E

M EERATERAFENREY
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-
generating units) and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
material impairment loss or further impairment loss may
arise on the cash-generating unit.

Furthermore, the estimated cash flows are subject to
higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the current
year due to uncertainties on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve and volatility in financial
markets, including potential disruptions of the Group’s
operations.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
goodwill is HK$14,927,000 (2019: HK$399,821,000)
(net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$385,770,000
(2019: Nil)).
calculation are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated

Details of the recoverable amount

financial statements.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment loss under expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses both provision matrix and individual
assessment to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. Trade receivables with significant balances are
assessed for ECL individually.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group calibrates
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

4.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax rate

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and other deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Deferred tax
rate is a blended tax rate in the United States of America
("USA") and is determined by the amount and source of
future taxable profit. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised and deferred tax rate,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies,
which is a key source of estimation uncertainty especially
in the current year given the significant uncertainty
on the potential disruption of Group’s operations
due to the Covid-19 pandemic. The carrying value of
deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses and
provisions, other liabilities and others at 31 December
2020 was HK$69,305,000 (2019: HK$146,733,000) and
HK$62,203,000 (2019: HK$66,575,000), respectively.
Further details are included in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of other intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets

Other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assets belongs, including allocation of corporate
assets (if any) when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of cash
generating units, for which the relevant corporate assets
(if any) have been allocated. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the future cash flow or discount
rates, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

4.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of other intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
impairment of HK$85,274,000 was recognised on other
intangible assets which are impaired individually. Details
of the related impairment are disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020 for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the carrying amounts of other intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets included in cash-generating units to
which the assets belong were HK$1,657,066,000
(2019: HK$1,765,634,000), HK$481,329,000
(2019: HK$410,880,000) and HK$301,528,000
(2019: HK$317,688,000), respectively. Details of the
impairment assessment of the relevant cash-generating
units are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment property

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions which are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions. Changes to these
assumptions, including the potential risk of any market
violation, policy, geopolitical and social changes or
other unexpected incidents as a result of change in
macroeconomic environment, or other unexpected
incidents would result in changes in the fair values of
the Group’s investment property and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

4.

RS sH A RSt A EERER
ZEEXRR (B

HETHREERR (@)

BEREE Y% - BEMREURE
FFEEEZHE (B)
REE_ZEZ-THF+-"_A=+—HI
FECEJNRENEMEFLEEER
SRIE{E85,274,0008 7T - B RERE 2 5F
BRI G EERRMI 174 EE -

A _ETEFE+_A=+—H BHA
BFEMsS st ABEEFMBHNIRESE
SETNEMEBEREEE - YE-KE
MEBEURGERAREEZREESD A
#1,657,066,0008 7w (ZZE—HF
1,765,634,0007%75) ~481,329,0007%8
T (ZE—H4F : 410,880,000 1)
52301,528,0008 7 (ZE— N5 :
317,688,000/ 7T) c BRIREEL BT
HERETGEZHEBRES P BERER
MizE163%EE -

REWELFEZIGE

REVERENBBIIEEGEMET
ZHEEBEAFEAK-BEABET
MRZBRZAFEHNRGEEGHHR
KIEE15°

ARBDEFRBEERSHEITEA
ﬁ)ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%&@“ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
FRRZE% OEEATHERN
Efﬂﬁ’fﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬁﬂwéﬂm
KR -G BA Rt EEHHEME
BEMH O BREREIEEAREYEN
AFEZE THEGED R KEM
EEHWRERERZF FNBEERSEF
HARFEREE o



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE T EEMRIER (F#) BIRAR
Annual Report 2020 — = — FBEFETR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BAF8 $R R izt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment property

(continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
Group's investment property is HK$128,200,000 (2019:

HK$151,500,000).

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5.

AND LOSSES

An analysis of revenue, other income, other gains and

losses is as follows:

RS A RSt A EERER
ZEERE (B

HENTRERR (@)
REWELFEZIGE (B

WIE-_EFE+_-_B=+—H ' &&
ERXEYEIREES128,200,000%8
T (ZZE—H4E 151,500,000 T) ©

ez ~ EfthU A ~ EfthF) R 548

Weam ~ E AU A~ EAth R B R B5 48 79 A
mE

2020 2019
—TFF “E-NEF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts REEFEHZKE
with customers
Sale of aircraft engines transferred RERERER 2
at a point in time RILZEHHEZHE 701,154 672,493
Sale of spare parts transferred at a RESEEER 2 H#GH2Z
point in time HE 451,753 661,408
Rendering of services transferred PEES BB R 2 IRFs 2 e
over time 93,902 124,102
1,246,809 1,458,003
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5.

AND LOSSES (continued)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations

is summarised below:

()
BYEE

W ~ EfthU A ~ B fthF] R 548

FEBBNEEERBFRNOT -

Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts HERIEZE B R E
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of %iﬁfﬁﬁ’\ N EmMmBTR BYR
the products and payment is generally due within 30 BEENRZHEI0KAEHET

days from delivery.

Provision of repair and maintenance services for

aircraft engines

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 days from completion of the services and

customer acceptance.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) for provision of repair and

RREH

maintenance services for aircraft engines as at 31 S G

December are as follows:

TEHR M BB IE (R EIRTS

BHEEHEREERBREEN BN
MEERETHRRSERER BEWE30

R+tZRB=+—HBnRHREZEERK
HERERBOIKEFHTERNEME R
ZER BN REMN) IR ZER TR

2020 2019
—_ v —_= E = _j-LEE
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Amounts expected to be recognised TR HA G FE ST AY

as revenue; W EEE .

Within one year —F R 8,192 7,919
After one year — &% 28,935 31,109
37,127 39,028
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5. Ut Efilt A « HfthF R E518
AND LOSSES (continued) (#)
Performance obligations (continued) BHEE B
Provision of repair and maintenance services for IERTRIE BB AR IEREIRTE (BB
aircraft engines (continued)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the EXFIRBENRZZ BRI KSR
remaining performance obligations disclosed above AFEREMB RS REERER
relate to repair and maintenance services for aircraft BB TRAEE - LS BEFEE
engines, of which the performance obligations are to R & AT B o P A BLiH & Aok &
be satisfied within five years. The amounts disclosed B EREGDEER TEAEENR
above do not include variable consideration which SERESERAEN —FAABRI AW
is constrained. All the amounts of transaction prices o
allocated to the remaining performance obligations for
sale of aircraft engines and spare parts are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year.
2020 2019
ZEITE “_Z-hE
HKS'000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Other income Hik A
Bank interest income IRITH B U A 8,394 13,832
Interest income on financial assets BATESABE S
at fair value through profit or loss MHEEZFBWA = 78
Interest income on loans to an associate M= ATIRENERZ
B WA 550 541
Service fee income RFBE U A 8,525 -
Distributorship fee income DB A 775 775
Others Hh 4,400 3,463
22,644 18,689
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5. Uiz H s A ~ EthFE R A8

AND LOSSES (continued) (#)
2020 2019
ZEITE —2-hEFE
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other gains and losses HhF) Bk E5E
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary IS E AT Z 77 - 1,721
Gain on dilution of an associate S AE 2 FE 767 =
Gain on disposal of other intangible HEEMELEE ZHFH
assets = 28,210
(Loss) gain on disposal of items of HEME BEMZEER
property, plant and equipment 2 (&518) #))8 (58) 1,217
Loss on dissolution of a joint venture eSS AEZEE = (302)
Fair value loss on other financial HthHeEs AT ERE
liabilities (note 35) (Ht52£35) (47,897) =
Fair value loss on an investment KREMEZ A TFEER
property (note 15) (H1&t15) (23,300) =
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEE R IR ERE R RE 19,225 (16,437)
Impairment losses under expected credit JEEAEEEBEBN T2 RE
loss model, net of reversal: ES1EIBREEE
— trade receivables — B E Z RN (5,510) 2,178
— other receivables — HMEW AR TR 16,066 4,033
- aloan to a joint venture —AEeERRRENER = (1,700)

(40,707)

18,920
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers (“"CODM")
have been identified as the board of directors of the
Company. For management purposes, the Group is
organised into business units based on their products
and services. The Group has only one reportable
operating segment, the general aviation aircraft piston
engine business, which is engaged in the design,
development and production of general aviation aircraft
piston engines and spare parts as well as the provision of
aftermarket services and support for piston engines.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment loss before tax,
which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax. The
adjusted loss before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s loss before tax except that certain income,
gains and losses, administrative expenses, share of
profits and losses of a joint venture and an associate are
excluded from such measurement.

The CODM make decisions according to operating
results of each segment. No analysis of segment asset
and segment liability is presented as the CODM do
not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results
are presented.

6.

REDEER

ERERRE (TELERRE))
EEBINERFDVEFE - RHEEE
rEBEREMKBRBESHERE
T AEBRE—EAEZRZEED
M- BAMEREEIZLIHES
EEAMERBEELIRRETN
R FHEREE URRHBEIELS
WHERTHERB KX IE-

EEEEORERTERXFT NI
EFR URENADEERKFEER
RN BRBDRBEHERRAEG
BMstBZAZ R MWEIBRF LT
Lo EBAERRABIRZFTED AR
AEBEGRAGEE -2 EETHRA
FEREBEE-THREEER  UKkDh
BERARBEAR ZEN REER
TEERZFER -

TERERRERBEIDENEEE
BEHAR - BREIECERREL
FEMERDBEERDEERERR
EMEDEERKRTERE > QI E
2YzFENZoM AL E25 D
ELS SN ES R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable operating segment for the year

RENEER (&

UFRBE+_B=+—HLEFESR
ERERGERFERAZRZEEDE

ended 31 December. TEHZ e
General aviation
aircraft piston
engine business Total
BRAMEREEEEDRESR EL
2020 2019 2020 2019
“E-%FE TZ-hFE CZEZEE C"ZhFE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: SEWE
Sales to external customers ShERE P E 1,246,809 1,458,003 1,246,809 1,458,003
Segment results DiEE (801,551) (31,047) (801,551) (31,047)
Reconciliation: AR
Unallocated other income ROEEMUA 9,294 14,342
Unallocated other gains and ROEAMF BRER
losses 563 (12,739)
Unallocated administrative FNETHERER
expenses (15,645) (15,808)
Share of profits and losses of: DMbEH R A58
A joint venture BEAR S (38,253)
An associate YN (1,191) (328)
Loss before tax PriAIE1E (808,530) (83,833)
Other segment information: HittpEHER .
Depreciation of property, ME-BENZREZINE
plant and equipment 60,106 64,201 60,106 64,201
Unallocated depreciation ROECITE 25 733
60,131 64,934
Depreciation of FRESEZINE
right-of-use assets 16,380 8,219 16,380 8,219
Amortisation of other HEthEy EE 2 8
intangible assets 88,009 82,731 88,009 82,731
Capital expenditure* BAMS 162,081 247,241 162,081 247,241
Unallocated capital expenditure ~ RPEBAREZ 13 -
162,094 247,241
g Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant e BEXRTOEAENE - BRENLE

and equipment and other intangible assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information

(a)  Revenue from external customers

RENBER (@

HERE

(@ FKEIEER WK

2020 2019

—ECEF “E—-NEF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

USA E[=H 948,125 1,152,924
Europe BUM 191,076 180,110
Others HAth 107,608 124,969
1,246,809 1,458,003

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.

(b)  Non-current assets

R ERRERERZ

FREsth & o o

b) FRBEE

2020 2019

—EEE —E—-hEF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FAET FAET

USA E=H 1,865,104 2,322,651
Europe B 589,598 571,184
Hong Kong 58 128,246 151,557
Mainland China A [ g 3 12,131 11,912
2,595,079 3,057,304

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial assets and deferred tax assets.

LHIFRBEEENREE
ZFREHB o WA BEMBE
EREEREEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

6.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. RKENHEH (BB
(continued)
Information about major customers FERRZENH
Revenue from each of the major customers, which KEBZFERRZW@ASBIUWT K
individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group's ERMAERWRE Z10% MU £ -
revenue, is set out below:
2020 2019
- Ja- 3 5 —E-hF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A ZEEA 320,549 471,698
Customer B ZFB 242,137 234,336
Customer C ERC 165,965 185,487
FINANCE COSTS 7. BHHEX
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBHEZ2MUT
2020 2019
—_EBE_EF ZE-hEF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on borrowings BEZME 4,216 3,766
Other interest expenses HMEZH 35 70
Interest on lease liabilities (note 43) HEaGZME (Ka43) 14,500 7,014

18,751 10,850
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

INCOME TAX 8. FhfgM
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made FRN - HRAERBLETARERESR
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits ZRERR AN WL EERTENE
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2019: Nil). Taxes MEE CE2E—hF | HMERE
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at R AR 2 MBS R EBLEMm
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in FEXR EEEBHERZRENH.
which the Group operates.
2020 2019
k- Jot- 3 3 “_Z—hE&
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current — Hong Kong: BhER—&F % ¢
Underprovision in prior years BEEEZEERE 99 S
Current — Elsewhere: BNEf—Hthith & :
Charge for the year KEMAE 4,493 5,967
Overprovision in prior years BEEEZRSEE (968) (19,080)
Deferred (note 33) IRIE (K75E33) (55,416) (16,704)

(51,792) (29,817)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

8.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before

tax at the statutory rates for the countries/jurisdictions in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

FRiSH (&)

BRAERARETERBLARAMERR
SEBBEHZEEREAEEANR
MABENNBEERETFRERR

are domiciled to the tax credit at the effective rate for KZ7MBERBZHERAOT .
the year is as follows:
2020 2019
—T-EF —T—HEF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss before tax FRI2 AT B8 (808,530) (83,833)
Tax at the statutory tax rates of BREBREEMEFEZ
respective entities I8 (215,925) (22,648)
Tax effect of share of profits of DMEEE R RBE AT
joint ventures and associates Mz BEE 106 9,668
Effect of withholding tax on ANk B EBE T S UL
interest income from the USA AR R 4,371 3,906
Overprovision in respect of prior years #BFFEZ B EH (869) (19,080)
Tax effect of income not taxable BAZRHRINAZRBEEE
for tax purpose (3,744) (2,212)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AHNREZNRBEEE
for tax purpose 3,935 549
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERINMNEEEEER
differences not recognised or B SRR E
reversal of deductible temporary AN EREEEREY
differences previously recognised MEE 106,348 -
Tax effect on tax losses not recognised SR FEERHR #5 K548 5 B[]
or reversal of tax losses previously STRIMESR E’]ffﬁf%ﬁﬂé
recognised 2B 53,986 -
Income tax expense for the year RERMEBREAL (51,792) (29,817)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s loss for the year is arrived at after charging

9. AFEHHE

FrEBZAEBESNG GIA) -

(crediting):
2020 2019
—EZEF —T—NEF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Cost of inventories sold* HEFEE Z A 942,894 993,441
Cost of services provided* RHARFE =2 B4 * 83,438 102,377
Write-down (reversal of write-dwon) FERE CREREE)
of inventories* 38,278 (14,338)
Provisions and other liabilities: BEREMEE
Additional provision (note 37)** REOMEE (M15237) > 94,445 24,971
Depreciation of property, ME -BEMREINE
plant and equipment (note 13) (Ht5£13) 60,131 64,934
Depreciation of right-of-use FRREEEINE (BWati14)
assets (note 14) 16,380 8,219
Amortisation of other intangible Hthmp EE 2 #H
assets (note 17) (Hi&t17) 88,009 82,731
Employee benefit expense (including BEBNER
directors’ remuneration) (BREESENE)
Wages and salaries TERHE 233,668 293,581
Pension scheme and other BAREEIRK
contributions* * * H e~ 14,303 15,138
Defined benefit schemes (note 39) EREEFI B (BE39) 3,201 6,604
251,172 315,323
Auditor’s remuneration 1% AN <& 3,295 3,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE T -_ZTE+_H=+—HILFE

9.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (continued)

*

* %k

*kKk

Included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

On 18 December 2020, the Group’s subsidiary, Continental
Aerospace Technologies GmbH (“CG") released a
Service Bulletin to replace some affected parts in house
to avoid any safety issue. The total estimated cost was
HK$51,003,000, which was for the disassembly of the
engines, transportation to CG, replacement of the affected
parts at CG, transportation and reassembly of the engines
and testing.

Pension scheme and other contributions of the Group
include the Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong, the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme in the PRC, and
the social security expenditure in Germany.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

pension scheme in future years (2019: Nil).

9.

KFEHR (@)

*

* %

** Kk

BEEREGEERPHEREIRN-

A _E_EE+__BA+NB&Xx&E
@ 2 B A BlContinental Aerospace
Technologies GmbH (I'CG ) & AR
NE UBEBMEFRZEZRHEMH
mERERZ2RE - G5t ERR
#H7%51,003,0008 70 Jh 31 E151 &
BERECGC-NCCEMZIREZTH E
R EARSIERAIE -

FEBZEBRESFHE REMHREE
BERAZBES PEHZBERRAEF
SRR EE T ERESH

R-_EZEEF+A=+—H F&
8 R AT R 2R W R A A 1R ORL D oK
REEZEREFAEER(CEE—R

F
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EFRITHRAHZME

R EHRER TR LT IRAI55383(1)
(@) (b) (OROFERLE WEESEF
mER) ROIB28IRE 2 FRNEF
WM

2020 2019

—E_THF —Z2—NEF

HKS’'000 HK$000

FET FAET

Fees e 1,300 1,120

Other emoluments: HMNE :

Salaries, allowances and e EMKREYAN G

benefits in kind 3,356 2,273
Pension scheme and other BRIRE T E R AR

contributions 101 85

3,457 2,358

4,757 3,478

(a) Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

(@) BWILERITES
RERAZNTFERIFRITES

directors during the year were as follows: ZHWEWT .
2020 2019
—EZEHF “E—NEF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Chu Yu Lin, David R ah ik 360 300
Li Ka Fai, David ExRE 360 300
Zhang Ping R 280 220

1,000 820
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10.
REMUNERATION (continued)

(@) Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2019: Nil).

The emoluments disclosed were for their services
as directors of the Company.

(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive

EFRITHEBHZMNE (B

(@) BWIUFRTESR (2

RERT|EMEN FIBILIF
HITEENME CE2E—hF:

-
diE) o
it

BN E A REEREL
BIEFMIEHIRE -

(b) WITEFRIFRTES

Directors
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e Bk BRESER
ik BYNE HEfETR i & 42 %8
2020 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
—_ECTHE FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: g%
Lai Weixuan BEES 36 - - 36
Fu Fangxing BrA 36 - - 36
Yu Xiaodong FHEH 36 1,847 83 1,966
Zhang Zhibiao REIE 36 - - 36
Zhao Yang H#H15 36 1,509 18 1,563
180 3,356 101 3,637
Non-executive Director;  FEHfTEE !
Chow Wai Kam B&% 120 - - 120
300 3,356 101 3,757
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

10. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EFERITHEHZME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) WITEBFKRIIERITES &
Directors (continued)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e ERK RKEER
s BENF G BENGES il k]
2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“S-NE FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Liu Hongde (resigned B (R _E—NE
on 23 August 2019) NBZ+=HEF) 23 = = 23
Lai Weixuan* BEE* 36 = = 36
Fu Fangxing BErA 36 - - 36
Yu Xiaodong FHER 36 1,845 79 1,960
Zhang Zhibiao REIE 36 - - 36
Zhao Yang* (appointed  ##H* (R_T—hE
on 23 August 2019) NEZ+=BEZMD) 13 428 6 447
180 2,273 85 2,538
Non-executive Director;  JFHTES !
Chow Wai Kam BE% 120 - - 120
300 2,273 85 2,658
* Lai Weixuan was also the chief executive officer of 5 BEENR-_ZE—NLENA

the Group before 23 August 2019. Since 23 August
2019, Zhao Yang has become the chief executive
officer of the Group.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the
Company and the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2019: Nil).

“tZHZETREERTT
B@HE - B-T—-—NENR
“tH=HE #HERAEER

T AR H -

ERFITHATEEME AR
ENEERARARTEREH
PR BV AR5 -

EXRATHIERATEETHES
REERETRAAREERES
PR BV AR5

FARETMNEEHREARE
BEEEMEZ 28 (TT—A
FIE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11. ZBEEHER
The five highest paid employees did not include hESReHEENABRERTES &
executive directors (2019: Nil). Details of the T—HE I E) - KERH (ZE—A
remuneration for the year of the five (2019: five) highest F %) REHEE (LERAREE
paid employees who are not a director of the Company =) ZMEFHFBEOT

are as follows:

2020 2019
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Basic salaries, allowances and BEXFHE R REYF &
benefits in kind 13,749 11,038
Performance related bonuses TERIZMERETEAL 950 3,431
14,699 14,469
The number of non-director highest paid employees e TIHEErRaimIFESES
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as A
follows:
Number of employees
BEAH
2020 2019
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001B =
2,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 TE
3,000,000 75 2 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 BTE
4,500,00078 75 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

12. SkEE

SREFBASENRKSATEE
BEFEAREAEEEREND S
78 B2 TR E -

BREXEENFAELRE

2020 2019
k- Jot- 3 3 “EB-hEF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loss attributable to ordinary equity BREEBEERFTEA
holders of the parent FE{L 518 (756,738) (54,016)

Number of shares
K& B8

2020 and 2019

— B EFERIE—AEF

Weighted average number of ordinary ERE%ETEE

shares in issue during the year BHE

&z ¥
9,303,374,783
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

F+ZA=1t—HLEE

13. ¥ME- -BEMRE

Furniture Machinery
Freehold Leasehold and and Motor  Construction
Lands Buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
KAR#LY #F HE%E GIREE BENRE HE TEIR Eh
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
AT FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr Fér FEr
osT e
At1 January 2019 RIE-NE-F-H 10,771 59,786 34,061 3,357 210,536 1,618 80,284 400,413
Additions RE = = = 24,769 - 146,839 171,608
Transfers i = 28,760 = 13532 - (42,092) =
Transfer to investment BEERENE
property = (30,350) S = = = S (30,350)
Transfer to other ERTHMENER
intangible assets (ote /7) Wizt17) - - - - - (5,146) (5,146)
Disposals tE - (16) - (153) 6,850) - (31) (7,050)
Exchange realignment EREE (434) (1,301) - - (2,651) S (48) (4,434)
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ-NE
1 January 2020 +ZR=+-Bk
Z52%F-8-H 10,337 28119 62,821 3,204 239,336 1,618 179,606 525,041
Additions AE = o 13 1,675 = 124,781 126,469
Transfers e - 3,158 - 59,390 - (62,548) -
Disposals tE (1,599) - = (548) (2,445) - - (4592)
Exchange realignment EREE 1125 2,449 - - 10,734 - 95 14,403
At 31 December 2020 RIBI%%
+2B=+-H 9,863 30,568 65,979 2,669 308,690 1,618 241934 661,321
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZRIE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-7%5-F-H - 9,470 3,650 3,246 47,186 1618 = 65,170
Charge for the year (note 9) RERT (Hz9) - 1,841 4,844 39 58,210 S = 64,934
Transfer to investment property BRERENE - (9,465) = S S S S (9,465)
Disposals HE - - (138) (3,765) - S (3,903)
Exchange realignment ERSE - (989) - - (1,586) - - (2,575)
At 31 December 2019 and RI3-N%E
1 January 2020 +ZA=+-Bk
“5-5£-5-A - 857 8494 3147 100,045 1,618 - 114,161
Charge for the year (note 9) KERY W29 - 2,061 7,148 25 50,897 - - 60,131
Disposals e = - (548) (2,105) - - (2,653)
Exchange realignment EREE - 430 - - 7923 - - 8,353
At 31 December 2020 RIZIEE
+ZA=+-8 = 3348 15,642 2,624 156,760 1,618 = 179,992
NET CARRYING AMOUNT EEFE
At 31 December 2020 W_E-EE+°A=+-A 9,863 27,20 50,337 45 151,930 - 241934 481,329
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NE+ZA=+-H 10337 27,262 54327 57 139,291 - 179,606 410,880
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. X -BREMRE &
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment PROKAER I RTERIESS Bl
except for freehold lands and construction in progress, ME -BEMNZEBEEEEBRGE
after taking into account the residual values, are B U TFEUEGESIRITE ©
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:
Buildings 3% - 3/:% BF 3% —3":%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms HERE HEH
Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33% RIREE 20%—33%
Machinery and equipment 4% - 50% AR 4% —50%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25% AE 20%—25%
The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of EEAENGTYE - BREMREDN
respective CGUs to which the property, plant and AREEHEFF ~EBGSTZEEE
equipment belong, when it is not possible to estimate PAFMBREELE WA WE &
the recoverable amount of these assets individually. The BoWEELE BTN WE S EIRE
recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined FREEEET B 5E (BEF
based on a value-in-use calculation, details of which AEEAEITRNERRR) SN
including key assumptions underlying the value-in-use 160
calculation are set out in the Note 16.
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FEREEE
Leasehold Motor
land Buildings vehicles Total
HELH BF RE ait
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2019 R_E-h&E—F—H 8,247 25,617 1,227 35,091
New leases Mg - 290,824 - 290,824
Depreciation charge (note 9) WERS (17329) (73) (7,446) (700) (8,219)
Exchange realignment [ERAE = = (8) (8)
As at 31 December 2019 RIZ—AE
and 1 January 2020 +ZB=+—-Bk
“E"E2F—-HF—H 8,174 308,995 519 317,688
New leases WHE - - 202 202
Depreciation charge (note 9) e (Waz9) (127) (15,745) (508) (16,380)
Exchange realignment [ERAE = - 18 18
As at 31 December 2020 R_BZRE
+-B=+—H 8,047 293,250 231 301,528
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

14.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

For both years, the Group leases leasehold land,

buildings, motor vehicles for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to
75 years, but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the

period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
motor vehicles, machinery and equipment and office. As
at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the portfolio of short-
term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed below.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term of 50 to 75 years
Buildings 2 to 25 years

Motor vehicles 2 to 5 years

ERAEEE (&

PREFE AEEHAERE LM
BFVREFEEZH HESAMNE
TR A 1ERTSF  ER 4% T XA
BEHILAERK FEER - BE KRR
BB EEER 8B TREER -
7R TE AR B R G 5T M F BT N B AR ER
EER AEEERBSNNERITH
B & 49 T] 58 51 BT B HAR o

AEEBEARE - BRAREBEUR
MAFELURPHRE N2 -2 F
E_E—-hAE+BA=+—H 5EH
HEHAHRETXRNE AR E
AR EAASES -

EREEENEEZHEHUERE
EITIENT -

HE M 50F75F R AR
EF 2FE )5
RE 2ESHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 14.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

EREEE (@

REmPREBHESHERTENT

2020 2019
—EZEF —T—NEF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Interest on lease liabilities HESGEHNE 14,500 7,014
Depreciation charge of FRAEEEZITERS
right-of-use assets 16,380 8,219
Expense relating to short-term leases SR ERNER 3,956 599
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEEHEEEMBAN
low-value assets, excluding short-term &R > FEIEREEEE
leases of low-value assets AR E 1,683 1,136
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B MRz B 58 36,519 16,968
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FFARERERNEERESMHLEEE
statement of cash flows is as follows: (I N
2020 2019
—EZEFE “E-NEF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Within operating activities KEEHN (20,139) (8,749)
Within financing activities MEEEFA (5,934) (5,295)
(26,073) (14,044)

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of
respective CGUs to which the right-of-use assets belong,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of these assets individually. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs have been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation, details of which including key
assumptions underlying the value-in-use calculation are
set out in the note 16.

EEAEREEHEAEEEN A E
TEF AEBRGAREEED AR
BRTELBETNAIREEE -RE
ELXETHREDsREREECBER
SAEEE ARFE (BEERAEES
B RNERER HNMEEI6
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY REME
2020 2019
—_EEF “E—NE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HZEKEE 151,500 =
Decrease in fair value NIFAE R (23,300) =

Transfer from property, = -mEMNREEA

plant and equipment = 151,500
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZKHEE 128,200 151,500

In the prior year, investment property was transferred
from property, plant and equipment and a gain on
property revaluation of HK$130,615,000 was recognised
in other comprehensive income.

The Group’s investment property consisted of a
commercial property in Hong Kong. The Group's
investment property was revalued based on valuation
performed by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer. Each
year, the Group’'s chief financial officer decides to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuation of the Group’s investment property.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and qualification of external valuer. The
Group's chief financial officer has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

During both years, there were no transfers into or out of
Level 3.

EECREVERYE BEMNRFES
A B ESEHFE130,615,0008 7T
EREMEEmE TSR

REEBNREMEBRESENERY
E-AEENKENMERBEHFET
AEMBRAE BIEESERMGE
) EITHNEEEG -SFE AEEZ
MBEERELZEIISHEMMESYH
REBLEMEETIHDGHE  BIE
EEAEMISNH B2 BRI
BHEMNES AEBZHMBEE
SFE—REEMNEEMBRRENE
ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ#f,—iﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁ?ﬂéﬁﬁx SR E
EERETRE o

AFERAFESERE=HA-

PREFERN MEZANEHE=
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E " _ZFF+_A=+—HULFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment
property as at 31 December 2020:

Valuation
Investment property technique
REME HERM

REME (B

NFAR-B-®E+-A=+—H
GE R B RN AR EE
BABEZ S -

Significant
unobservable

Key input inputs
FEBARE

ERARAHE
WA

Market comparison
approach

Commercial property

EaEkYES M iB L BUE

Under the market comparison approach, the property
is valued on the market basis assuming sales in its
existing state with the benefit of vacant possession and
by making reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based
on prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices
of comparable properties. Appropriate adjustments are
then made to account for the differences between such
properties in terms of age, floor level and other relevant
factors.

A significant increase (decrease) in the adjusted unit
price would result in a significant increase (decrease) in
the fair value of the investment property.

Adjusted unit price

0

i

i
anl-

e

s

HK$29,321 -
HK$38,024
(31 December
2019:;
HK$31,965 —
HK$43,274)
per square
foot

SRIELN
29,3218 7T —
38,0248 7T

—E—NEF
+ZA=+—
H :31,965%
TT—43,2747%
7o)

REBETSLEBE PERTHEEEE
THE ERPRRUBAREHE I
SREBTEIESZAULRBEEER
BOLBRDBDERERZIZHZERE
BRI LEBREZ B 2B EF
MEZRBR - BESEREMBERR
FZERFHBERE-

RRBEBEXREREM B RERR
BEYENAFEARBEM (L)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

16.

GOODWILL

The Group's goodwill acquired through business
combination has been allocated to the following cash-
generating units (“CGU") for impairment testing:

o General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
USA CGU ("USA CGU"); and

o General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
Germany CGU (“Germany CGU")

Management performed the impairment assessment of
USA CGU and Germany CGU with the support of an
independent professional valuer, Duff & Phelps, LLC.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of goodwill allocated to USA CGU was Nil (2019:
HK$385,770,000). During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group recognised impairment of goodwill
directly related to USA CGU, which is part of the
general aviation aircraft piston engine business segment,
amounting to HK$385,770,000 (2019: Nil),
was mainly due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the

which

deteriorated economic environment.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to Germany CGU was HK$14,927,000
(2019: HK$14,051,000).
31 December 2020, the directors of the Company

During the year ended

determines that there is no impairment on Germany
CGU.

]
FEBBBEZAHNEZIHEED
EFTREELEET (REELSE
7o) BUETTRIERS !

nig

BRAMEREIEZZIUES
REENREELEET (TEE
REEEET) ;&

. ERAMTERES T ESFEETR
RERMNREEESE T (ER
HEESXET))

BRI E K ERMDuff & Phelps, LLC
M T EBERNEERSELE
TREEREEE B TETRET o

AZEBEZEF+ZRHA=+—H 2k
FERREELBET2HEREES
# (ZF— N4 : 385,770,000 7T) °©
REE_ZE_ZTF+"A=+—H
EtEE AEEBRIEZEEZHIRES
EEXBrT (ABRAMERBIESY
WEFN—ID) BREAZHERES
385,770,000 (ZE—NF :

p
)

75 = B R M R Covid-19A 74T R A
BB
R-B-2E+-A=+—-0:%

EFEERRSELETZHERE
E%A14,927,0008 T (22— N5 .
14,051,000 7T) -RBEE_ZS-_ZF
T+ B=Z+—HLEEE ARAES
ETEARCESETUEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. &HE (&)
USA Germany
CGU CGU Total
EERE EERe 4
EEET EEET &5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FET FAET
CcoST s
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—h&H—HF—H 385,770 14,324 400,094
Exchange adjustments bE 0 FE = (273) (273)
At 31 December 2019 RIE—h%F
+-_B=+—H 385,770 14,051 399,821
Exchange adjustments e AR R - 876 876
At 31 December 2020 ==y S
+-B=+—H 385,770 14,927 400,697
IMPAIRMENT pEA ]
At 1 January 2019 and S ZEB—NF—HA—H
31 December 2019 R _E—hE
+-B=+—H = = =
Impairment loss recognised RERRERIE
in the year (385,770) = (385,770)
At 31 December 2020 PR _EF
+-—B=+—H (385,770) - (385,770)
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2020 AR TEF
+-B=+—H - 14,927 14,927
At 31 December 2019 RIZE—I%F
+-_B=+—H 385,770 14,051 399,821
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations HEGEREEFREANTEESNT
are as follows:
USA Germany
CGU CGU
@RS EERL
EEfEx EEXEx
Long-term growth rate REBEx
31 December 2020 B EF+_A=+—H 2.0% 2.0%
31 December 2019 E2-NFE+ZRA=+—H 2.5% 2.5%
Discount rate An IR = -
31 December 2020 “E2TEF+ZRA=+—H 14.6% 15.7%

31 December 2019 —E-AE+ZA=+—H 12.8% 15.5%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

16.

GOODWILL (continued)

In addition to goodwill above, other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets
disclosed in notes 17, 13 and 14, that generate cash
flows together with the related goodwill are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of
impairment assessment.

The recoverable amounts of both cash-generating
units have been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a seven-year period for USA CGU and an eleven-year
period for Germany CGU. The budgeted gross margins
and annual revenue growth rates during the forecasted
period are determined based on past performance and
the expectations of market development. The discount
rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units. The cash flows beyond the
forecast period are extrapolated using the rates stated
above. These long-term growth rates are based on
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average growth rate after the forecast period of the
industry in which the units operate.

Based on the above impairment assessment, a full
impairment loss on goodwill for the USA CGU has
been recognised in profit or loss and included in the
impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets line
item. The remaining shortfall of the recoverable amount
below the carrying amount of assets of this CGU is, in
the opinion of the Company’s directors, not significant
and hence no further impairment has been recognised
on other assets of the USA CGU.

No impairment loss has been recognised on goodwill or
other assets of the Germany CGU based on the result
of the above impairment assessment. The recoverable
amount of Germany CGU exceeds its carrying amount
by HK$33,325,000. If the discount rate was changed
to 16.5%, while other parameters remain constant, the
recoverable amount of Germany CGU would equal the
carrying amount of its assets; if the growth rate after
the forecast period was changed to 1.4%, while other
parameters remain constant, the recoverable amount of
Germany CGU would equal its carrying amount of its
assets.

BmE (&)

MRETEENMS B LEXiteE
BHN 17  13R4FFIRBEESXRS
MENEMNEFEE - YWE - BEMRX
EURFEAEESEERMBBAEEITt
AZBHEEEETe

wE IR EE BT A REIEEE TR
BRARERERARAEZERE
EMEE ZRERBRAUUAEEE
HENTER GEEREEEETM
B)RT—FH ERREELET
ms) UHERERER -BARRNE
BEEMERERAERRDIZBER
BRTSERNAHRET -FIERZ
IR DRI AR [ bR B 75 R B8 70 A8
MR ERR - RERENDERLEX
P8z EREE - RAPRERNZS
RABREDENRBBATEZERR
AETBERANBERARMETKE
PRETRZFHERE

BB LHBENG ERFEEE
THEEERBE PRI MAES
B U ABEREMETLEERNE
BR -ARBDEFERR ZREELE
TR RO £ EE N E ERE BN
TEBRIAEXR AT EMEEIR
TEEBTNEMEEE - D EIA
(=

RiE EMBETFENER ERARS
EXBETHBEREMEET EE
REEE EHRcELEETBBH
B Yz [e] £ %833,325,00058 7T o M A& 37
HEEBFEA16.5%  MEMSBEEFTL
g EARsELEETHN Y KOE
EENHEHEERETE; MiSTERNAR
BHEERBEA1.4% MEMBEH
WA AEERSEEBE TN
WolEEENEERTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

HK$26,521,000 were recognised for development
programs in progress and product, technology, license
and completed programs, respectively, as some
customers cancelled their production plans triggered by
Covid-19 impacts. The Group has therefore suspended
the related development and fully impaired these
programs which no longer had economic benefit. Such
impairment losses were included in the general aviation
aircraft piston engine business segment.

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HthEREE
Product
technology,
Development licence and Total other
programs completed Customer intangible
in progress  Trademarks programs  relationships Others assets
o Emii
ﬁiﬂl Hﬂﬁ'ﬁ&E?ﬁﬁﬁ fif’ﬂf@?jﬁ
g 5 fetél ERMA% Hif BEAS
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FEL FET FET FET
COoST KA
At 1 January 2019 RZ2-hE-F—H 214373 263,080 821,526 548,502 7,765 1,855,246
Additions nE 75,439 - 194 - - 75,633
Transfers B (13,105) = 13,105 = = =
Transfer from property, plant and % BEAZBEA
equipment (note 13) (h:£13) = = = = 5,146 5,146
Disposals HE (4,503) - - - - (4,503)
Exchange realignment ERHE (1,675) (649) (5,358) (2,415) 1 (10,098)
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ-NE+ZA=+-HBkK
1 January 2020 “2225-A-H 270,529 262,431 829,467 546,087 12,910 1,921,424
Additions HE 35,150 = 168 = 307 35,625
Transfers B (67,148) - 67,148 - - -
Disposals HE - - (377) - - (377)
Exchange realignment Eﬁ%ﬁ” 2,596 2,137 21,598 7,758 - 34,089
At 31 December 2020 “ECEE+CA=+-8 241,127 264,568 918,004 553,845 13217 1,990,761
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND ERH##REE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—A - 8,201 27,979 34,436 3,473 74,089
Charge for the year (note 9) Zliﬁf'ﬂﬁ (/77‘39) - 9,703 32,325 38,316 2,387 82,731
Disposals - - - - - -
Exchange realignment [Ruﬁ” - (193) (536) (300) (1) (1,030)
At 31 December 2019 and RIZB-NE+ZA=+-HBk
1 January 2020 :§_$E A—H = 17,7111 59,768 72,452 5,859 155,790
Charge for the year (note 9) RERT (Wit9) - 9,695 37,743 38,525 2,046 88,009
Impairment loss recognised in the year &ERBEHE 58,753 - 26,521 - - 85,274
Disposals HE - - (377) - - (377)
Exchange realignment ’\Eﬂ” = 744 2,782 1,473 - 4,999
At 31 December 2020 Z2IEF+ZA=1+-H 58,753 28,150 126,437 112,450 7,905 333,695
NET CARRYING AMOUNT Eﬁﬁgf
At 31 December 2020 A—Z-2F+-A=4-R 182,374 236,418 791,567 441,395 5312 1,657,066
At 31 December 2019 RIS-NEFZE=1-H 270,529 244720 769,699 473,635 7,051 1,765,634
During the year ended 31 December 2020, ﬁfz:i TEFE+_/B=+—HILEFE
the impairment losses of HK$58,753,000 and E>BRIMmEERECovid-1988 3k >

?Z%HYHE?EJ%%%‘J  REEBEE 75
FhETHE RS MU R E & T
hE PR K B 5 B BY 5T 2 B 58 0R (B &5 18
58,753,000 75 k26,521,000 7¢ ° &
It » z&%leﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ’fﬁ&u%ﬁﬁ

BErBAREBE N moZEsElc B
BEBECTAR )EHF,U'LI MR EE
B EE Do
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

17.

18.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. Hth@EEEE (&
The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of EAEEREEZENGSEMELEE
respective CGUs to which the other intangible assets FMBNEREELBE TN WD EEE
belong, when it is not possible to estimate the B AEBEEHFAZEEENTKE
recoverable amount of these assets individually. The FRE - REEFETHNIT KB EEETD
recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined REGCHBESEMETE  BMAE5E
based on a value-in-use calculation, details of which (BREEHEREETENETERR)
including key assumptions underlying the value-in-use B MIEE16°
calculation are set out in the note 16
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. MEE ATz
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—-hEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January w—A—H 11,781 12,446
Gain on dilution #iE 2 FE 767 =
Share of losses L E1E (1,191) (328)
Exchange realignment BEE 42 5 B 672 (337)
At 31 December R+ZBE=+—H 12,029 11,781
Loans to an associate included in FFAREBEREEE 2 O
the Group's current assets ENEIRENER 11,135 9,982

The principal of the loan is RMB8,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$9,412,000), the interest rate is 6%
per year. The loan matured on 19 August 2020 and has
been extended to 30 June 2021.

There was no recent history of default and past due
amounts for balances with the associate. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

Bz AR ARES,000,0007T
(FHZ 772 499,412,00087T) » EF =
BB - ZEHRN _E-_Z2FENA+AI
BRI TERIEEE_SE_—F/xA
=+H-

BBMERNGEHR T BRRELIENE
FPREABRAR - RN _E_EFER T
—NWE+ZB=+—RH > EEEBF
HA Mo
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18.

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE
REERRZ R (&
BERBZFHBOT

Percentage of ownership
interest attributable

Place of incorporation/

Name registration and business to the Group Principal activity
2 AL EMREENE AEERGEAREZESL TEER
2020 2019
ZEIEE EAE
TRECHHNERHERA PRC/ Mainland China 28.92 31.75 Research and development of
("IEREER") engineering technology and
electronics communication
technology
LTRECHRRERHERA RE,/ RE A TIREM R KREFRIER MM
(MEREER)* EN L
e Not audited by Deloitte’s members firm. i TWEKEH B AT EZ-

During the year, the Group's equity interest in JE %
f&%= was diluted as a result of capital injection by new
investors to JLRZEE(SZE. A gain on deemed disposal
of an associate of HK$767,000 was recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

REAFE BHRMEEERILRER

ZTABE FXERRERESEHZZRAE

REERHE S BREARERER

Bl 2 #H767,0008 T ERAF ENE
BIBmARPER -

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. REEATZER
2020 2019
—EIEF —S—hEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets DMEREE = =

Loans to a joint venture included in FARBBEZ

current assets BEEARRENER 1,046 =
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B F8$R R Mist

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

The interests in joint ventures include the Group's right
to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from a 69.4%
equity interest in CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd. ("CATIC Siwei”)
held by third parties through trust arrangements. CATIC
Siwei is registered as a co-operative joint venture under
PRC law and is holding an investment in PRC which
operates in the aero-technology business and is an
investment holding company.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that
the Group has the right to enjoy certain economic
benefits from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei,
none of the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral
control over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei
pursuant to the provisions in the articles of association
of CATIC Siwei. Since the decisions about the relevant
activities of CATIC Siwei require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control, the directors consider
it is appropriate to account for the investment as an
interest in a joint venture using the equity method of
accounting.

The loans to CATIC Siwei of HK$1,046,000 are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of CATIC Siwei because the share of losses
of CATIC Siwei exceeded the Group’s interest and the
Group has no obligation to take up further losses. CATIC
Siwei was inactive during the year ended 31 December
2020. The unrecognised share of losses of CATIC Siwei
amounted to HK$25,291,000 (2019: HK$25,291,000) as
of 31 December 2020.

On 30 November 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with a purchaser, an independent
third-party, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to
acquire the 69.4% of the total issued capital of CATIC
Siwei at a consideration of RMB11,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$13,529,000). The disposal has not
been completed as of 31 December 2020.

CATIC Siwei was not audited by Deloitte’s members
firm.

N 1
=3 ) @
: ,}v%f_ - e

& -AHA

s

ReEgdRRZzZRnBErE@RR
EEHFS=ZHZEBERLHERFEZ

MgEMEZERBRAS (TEAEZER)
69 A%PRANE T 7 B T AEE ok o PO

ERRBREBETEZAZMAEERE
WHRPHEEEEEMERMEB KR
BERABZERE-

EERD BALEEEENEER
69.4%RAEmAE KW= B
RBENEERNAREEETE  BE
P 4 38 JRR P BN ¥ U M B R 2 A B R
WA B EES M - B MMEERA
FEHNRREERAFERNES —
ﬁﬁﬁ %%%%#@&ﬁﬁ%mw

AENEaRBAEDEAARBSE

JE 13 O 4 5% RX Y R0 181,046,000 75 75
I Rt E R BIREREE -

FEEBBEKRIEBIB DG N E KD
BE AADHUHEERNBEED
AXEENEDZ MAEB T EE
BAEE—TPEBEB- BE_ZST_ZF
FE+-_BA=+—HBHLEEE > UiEE
REEEEBE R _E-_=F+_-A8
Z+—BHERBRZ DG E 4 E RN E
$87425,291,0008 T (ZE—N&F :
25,291,000 7T) ©

RIE_EFE+—H=Z+H &~&EH
BEYE =SB RE]UBRGE
RiEZBZE BEFRBEEREARE
11,500,0007T (HHZ5 52 4913,529,00078
T WENEEREXIESRTRAZ
69 4% MR _E_EF+_-_F=+—
ZHEEEEMARTEMR

AR BB AR EZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

RATESABHRZMBEE

2020

and 2019
ZEIEER
—EB-hE
HKS'000
FET

Unlisted investments, at fair value

FRBEE :

Non-current asset:
VerdeGo Aero, Inc.’s convertible bonds

FEBRE BAFE

VerdeGo Aero, Inc.Z Al R &% 1,938

Current asset: TMENEE ©
Peace Map Holding Limited

("PMH")'s convertible bonds

RTEERERAT (XTEEZER) 2
IR ES

The above unlisted investments were mandatorily
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely held
for payments of principal and interest.

The maturity date of the convertible bonds issued by
VerdeGo Aero, Inc. is 28 February 2028.

The convertible bonds issued by PMH were matured
on 2 August 2018 but PMH failed to redeem them.
Given PMH is in the liquidation stage, the directors of
the Company consider the recoverable amount of the
convertible bonds is minimal.

FHRFETRERATBESEAT
Bt ABm 2 BEE BAHAHK
RERETNERNZNEERAE

VerdeGo Aero, Inc.2172 AR ES
ZHEHRA—E _NE_B_+N\H-

ARTEERZETZABRESFER S
E-NENBZHIH BEXTBEE
RAEBRZFABMRES -ENXNX
TEEZERERNBFERER ARFE

oA P HARR (B 25 R AT U [O] & BR AR ©
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21.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RAFESARMZERZEZAR
TigH

2020 2019
—ECE “E-NE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed equity investments, at fair value _ETRARE > R AF(E :

PMH R TEEZER - -

AVIC Joy Holding (HK) Limited ERER &S BRAE
("AVIC Joy") (T=miER) = 34,041
= 34,041

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value JEEHIRAIKRE IR AFEE !
PMH R TEEZER - -
Ampaire, Inc. Ampaire, Inc. 389 389
389 34,430

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the Group considers these investments to be
strategic in nature.

Since August 2018, the trading in PMH’s shares has
been suspended and PMH's convertible bonds were in
default. On 3 August 2020, PMH was cancelled from
listing on the Stock Exchange.

In the current year, the Group disposed of the
investment in AVIC Joy, at a consideration of
HK$26,821,000, the fair value at the date of disposal
is HK$26,821,000. A cumulative loss on disposal of
HK$568,004,000 has been transferred from fair value
reserve of equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income to retained profits.

AR AEERLEZSREBEREY
B FTUE R o) B i it R A 5%
BEREEREAFESARMEE Y

BE-ZE-N\F/N\RBE XTEZERKRZ
RONEFEE > MXTEZERNAHR
KREFEEN-R_Z-_FEFNA=
H> X TEZEREWBUNE KB F £
Ao

RAFE » ZREBURE26,821,000%8
THER=R/ERZEE RHEH
B2 AF{EA26,821,0008 T HEZ
R 5TE518568,004,0008 T B BIRAF
Bt AEMEEBEZRAREZ A
TEBEEEEEFTET
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES FEUR B 5 BR TR
2020 2019
—E_EHE —E-NE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade receivables FEUWE 7 R =X 131,392 108,066
Impairment losses under expected TEHEEHEEER T
credit loss model BB 1E (8,437) (4,394)
122,955 103,672

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$102,711,000.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, where partial advanced payment is required
for certain customers. The credit period is generally 30
days and each customer has been assigned a specified
credit limit by the group.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk
as 28% (2019: 32%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from one of the Group's key customers.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

A CE-NhE—HR—H ' KEBEES
HWZEWE ZIRZE102,711,000%8
7750

FAEBEATFZEERREIESRR
ROPMMETERMES AR BMHMRIE
FEEH—RA0A  BAFTFEER
EEORFEENEERE

AEBBEKREREEZREREZER
“EBRREES BEESETHETA
HiEH - R _E - FE+_HF=+—
Bra&EEEETEEETAR  RE
EAEBENEREZERZ28% (T
—NE 1 32%) AEKRAEE—ZEE
BRAZHE AE@TEREEWRE
SRR ZEGFATMUERRINEM
EERE -BWEZIERLAEE o

RREMFR BREZRRLEZAH
HRMNBEREBZRESNIDT

2020 2019

—EIEF —E—nEF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month — @B RN 63,372 76,361
1 to 2 months —ZEZmEA 19,029 11,726
2 to 3 months —E=@EA 2,654 2,441
Over 3 months BiE=1Ea 37,900 13,144

122,955 103,672
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BRBSZERM (&
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of EWESRAZBREGREEBEEHN
the trade receivables are as follows: T
Life-time ECL Life-time ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HATEHR L HATERS
EEBIE EEBiIE
GEEE (BEE
BE) BE) =11
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FAET FAET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ2—hF—A—H 6,572 - 6,572
Changes due to trade receivables HR—EB—HERRIHE

recognised as at 1 January: W B Z R s .

— Impairment losses reversed —#RlIRERE (6,572) = (6,572)
New trade receivables originated EENEWREZIRY 4,394 = 4,394
As at 31 December 2019 A ZE—NF+ZA

=+—A 4,394 - 4,394
Changes due to trade receivables ¥ —B —HBEHERIHNE

recognised as at 1 January: & Z R EE)

— Transfer to credit-impaired —EBEBEEEERRE (443) 443 -

— Impairment losses recognised —HE R ERE - 1,024 1,024

— Impairment losses reversed — ROl (B R 18 (3,951) - (3,951)

— Write-offs —ItE - (1,467) (1,467)
New trade receivables originated EXNEKRESRM 8,437 - 8,437
As at 31 December 2020 RIEBEZZE+A

=+—H 8,437 - 8,437
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix and individually assessment
to measure expected credit losses. Except for debtors
with significant balances and credit impaired, the
Group determines the expected credit losses on trade
receivables by using a provision matrix. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$41,445,000 which are past due
as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$19,020,000 has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default because the debtors
have good repayment record. The impairment of
HK$5,544,000 has been provided in relation to the past
due 90 days based on the provision matrix during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Generally, trade receivables are written off if they are
past due for more than one year. The trade receivables
with gross amount of HK$1,467,000 , which are past
due over one year are fully impaired and written off
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

22.

PR E SRR (2

P& RS B AR B 3 6 MR e A B 5T
HETRES T Ut ERBPEES
B-FABEREHRAEGSEREN
BHEANN AEEEREBEREEE
BERBRMNBAREEBR &H
RBEREBEFAMUGEEEANZER
FoEERNNEMEBEE &8
RRTHENMELER ERFHERE
URREBEEEAHREIESHNBAREBEESE
fF~ B RTAR 0 I 2R AR A R TRRI B9
GERAIXFER-

RZEZEF+ZA=+—H &&
ERWEZEREGREENRRS HH
BB 4R EE41,445,0008 T
B A - TEmERAERR > 19,020,00078
TTEEHIORFI U L ARZERE
ANERRLRBRRT M AWERALEN-
REEZZEZF+-A=+—HIt
FE > EBREEEDERBIIOKRIE
5,544,000 7T B R (B B4 o

—MmEs EREZERFUWAIEH
—FRFUME - BAHBE —F48
S REA1,467,00058 T B 5 FEWREER
EREBE_ZE_ZF+_HA=+—H
IEFE R SURE M8 o
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22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

PR B R (2

TEREIEREBEREDMNBRELR
ERRNEZRANEERRNER

Past due
kit
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
B LR—@ER —E=fEA Z@AMUL At
As at 31 December 2020 RIEZEE
+ZA=+—-H
Expected credit loss rate FHEEREX 0.5% 2.9% 12.4% 29.1% 11.5%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREEE (FE71) 17,199 17,393 5,032 19,020 58,644
Expected credit losses (HK$°000) TEERIEEEE (F47T) 85 503 623 5,544 6,755
17,114 16,890 4,409 13,476 51,889
The remaining trade receivables with an aggregated HR Y RERGHR RKREEA

gross carrying amount of HK$72,748,000 were assessed
individually due to the significant balances involved

72,748,000 TR TIEUN E ZER X
BEBIE IR _E2E_2F+_-8

and the expected credit losses of HK$1,682,000 were =+—B®REEEE,682,000%
recognised as at 31 December 2020. JT °©
Past due
ks
Less than 1t03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
g OR—@ER —E=EF Z@EAMNL ast
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—-hE
+ZB=+-H
Expected credit loss rate HHEEHEEX 0.25% 2.44% 17.55% 30.18% 4.07%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) ERE#EE (FE7T) 83,220 9,230 5,960 9,656 108,066
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TBERIE B (F47T) 209 225 1,046 2,914 4,394
83,011 9,005 4,914 6,742 103,672
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and within the credit term.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

FEWRE & B A B TRIR

BHERBATRESERE T
STRREGEEHRA-

FATRRIA ~ & R H th AR

2020 2019

—EEHE “ENE

HKS'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Prepayments TR RRIE 11,144 20,145
Deposits and other receivables & I Efh FEWBR =R 46,301 61,592
Impairment allowance T ERE (12,289) (41,774)
45,156 39,963

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. The gross amount
of other receivables under life-time ECL (credit-impaired)
is HK$16,926,000 (2019: HK$41,774,000) because
the receivables are in default or there is information
indicating that the debtors are in severe financial
difficulty.

REREAMERERTEAHER
TREEBRES REREHH > K
EERAFBXATS2EAE@EY
BEGBRILRETRES T AEE
FEEBEM R E AR R R Rk
BRI TER (B ) c BB
REEAREENBREFTAGER
BUBERHE FHit 2EHEESE
(BB RE) BTN EAE RN
48%E7%416,926,0008 T (ZZ—HF
41,774,000 7T) ©
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24.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

other receivables which are assessed under life-time ECL

(credit-impaired) are as follows:

24,

ARE
(#)

2MBEMEEER CEEHE BT
ST {5 B9 £ 0 FE U BE 2R 2 L I RS 4R 18
BT :

RIA ~ 8 & B H thFEURARTR

2020 2019

—E°% “E-hEF

HKS’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January t—H—H 41,774 46,861
Changes due to financial instruments  *—B—HEEIMN ST

recognised as at 1 January B g = -

— Impairment losses reversed* — BRI EES 1R (16,066) (3,781)

— Write-offs** — g (15,540) (57)

Exchange realignment E R 2 2,121 (1,249)

At 31 December K+ZR=+—H 12,289 41,774

*k

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the reversal
of impairment loss of HK$16,066,000 relates to a loan
from a third party, which the related gross amount of
HK$23,993,000 was fully impaired in previous year. Reversal
was made due to a loan restructuring and the settlement of
HK$11,429,000 received in the current year.

Due to significant financial difficulty of a third-party
borrower of a loan advanced by the Group, the impairment
of HK$15,540,000 was written off. The related gross
amount was HK$15,540,000 which was fully impaired in
previous year.

The ECL of remaining deposits and other receivables

were assessed under 12-month ECL. These relate to

receivables for which there was no recent history of

default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020

and 2019, the loss allowance on deposits and other

receivables under 12-month ECL was assessed to be

minimal.

e RE&EE_Z-TF+°"A=+—A8L
FE R ERIEREDE16,066,000/8 T
HRBFE=FNERER BT
23,993,000 T ERBEFEREHA
BoBRIHRAEREMAMRZ BEFE
BUREI4EEIE11,429,00058 7T ©

i HRAEBEBRINE=ZFRERA
HIRE AR EE > 15,540,000%
THREEHME - BEERREESES
15,540,00058 Tt E R BEFEXEUA
Eo

BTReEREMBEWERNEREE
BEEERET-_EAREREERBTMG-
ZERWRREMATRENTE K
ASENEWRERERE RIZZ
ZERZE-NFF+ZA=+—8"
+ZEABPEEREN R REM
FEWRBR FR BV 518 B B 5T A& il g o
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INVENTORIES =78

2020 2019
—EEE —E—NE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials Rt 313,705 363,971
Work in progress TR 108,755 110,724
Finished goods Al T 20,418 15,570
442,878 490,265

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERREEE
2020 2019
—_EEHE —E—-NE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cash and bank balances BERIBTHEF 596,322 183,686
Time deposits EHER 317,750 806,700
Cash and cash equivalents BEhREEE 914,072 990,386

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$212,375,000
(2019: HK$211,854,000). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits that are interest-
bearing at market interest rates ranging from 0% to
2.0115% (2019: 0% to 1.755%) per annum and have
maturity of three months or less. The bank balances and
time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

RHREBRFR FEBEUARE TAR
B EZREAETEERERE
MA212,375,0008 T (ZE—HhF:
211,854,000/ 70) - AR B HE
MAHMEE  AMREBEPEREZ
NEEBRIREE EERCES
BHEE AEENEBERERBI
BRBMEBZRITIHARERIBAEH

fth B 5 o

REMBETEGEBELAERREZ
REURETBEANENTRO%E
2.0115% (ZZ2—NF 0% E1.755%)
SFENREARA=ZEANUTZ1EH
RITER - RITETREHEFERET
MRETBERELBEEREZR
170
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27.

28.

29.

AMOUNTS DUE TO INTERMEDIATE 27. BEAHPEEZERARRIA
HOLDING COMPANIES
The amounts due to intermediate holding companies FE R B IE R A BRI TS JAKF ~ R
are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on u+§)§z’5}§x2‘2$
demand.
TRADE PAYABLES 28. EREZIRM
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end REBSHAR BUNEZERIZREREH
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HZERE DT
follows:
2020 2019
—_EEE —E—NEF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Within 1 month —fER A 52,282 57,815
1 to 2 months —EZmEA 47,926 22,559
2 to 3 months —E=@EA 5,730 3,409
Over 3 months BB=1E8 1,845 1,436
107,783 85,219
The trade payables are normally settled on 45 days ZERNESER—RIZISBHRE
terms. BEo
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HthEERMKRESER
2020 2019
—EIEH “E-NF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Other payables* HunE (IR 28,999 1,566
Accruals FEstE R 87,494 84,545
116,493 86,111
g Other payables are non-interest-bearing, and mainly e HtEMER AT R T2EEFH

included the consideration received for the disposal of
CATIC Siwei of HK$13,529,000 (2019: Nil) and the trade
deposits from customers of HK$6,546,000 (2019: Nil) new
customer sales.

EMAEE A B UR1LE13,529,000% 7T

FE—NEF 8 URKREBELR
51 %6,546,0008 T (Z2—NF :
w|) B R HE -
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. EH&E
2020 2019
= == 5 —E—-hEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Repair and maintenance service RS ZEFE

for aircraft engines HERBEIRT 37,127 39,028
Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts  £4& i 25 Bhid Ko 5 1 9,756 -
46,883 39,028
Current B 17,948 7,919
Non-current JETREN 28,935 31,109
46,883 39,028

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$37,425,000.

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

RZZE-—hhE—RB—HB 68N&8E"

37,425,000 7T ©

TRETRARSHBERLES A
BERYZENERZWESE

2020 2019
—ECE —E-hE
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Revenue recognised that was included in Bt AREH¥) =
contract liabilities at the beginning of &HEEZEREDNE :
the reporting period:
Provision of repair and maintenance IRE AL S BN
services for aircraft engines HERBEIRT 7,919 7,905

217



218

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited _—

FEfZE TEERIZER (B8 GRAE
Annual Report 2020 — % — BEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B F8$R R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

N 1
= )
g.v%f_ - : -

& A

@

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. K&
Number of
ordinary Nominal
shares amount
EEREE H{E
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREME0I0EBTZZER
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 RZ-ZE—hHF—HB—H~
and 31 December 2020 "—jlfﬁ‘f‘_ﬁ
+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 W_Z—HAE—HF—H-
and 31 December 2020 Z—NE+ZAH
_—f— BRZZEZEF
+-B=+—H 9,303,374,783 930,337
32. RESERVE FUND 32. f#EE

Pursuant to the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned enterprises in
Mainland China and the relevant PRC Company Law,
the subsidiaries shall make an allocation from their
profit after tax at the rate of 10% to the statutory
surplus reserve fund, until such reserve reaches 50%
Part of
the statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than

of the registered capital of the subsidiaries.

the subsidiaries’ registered capital,
25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve will be reclassified to retained profits
upon the disposal of the subsidiaries.

RIFETFTRABRRMUIIERES
RS BAT 2 ABERKREME
BlABEG > ZEM B AR B/ HR
MBEBFZI10%BRELEHES B
EERRBEEEZSEWB AR ZME
RZ50% R EEHBESUERTS
ZEMBATIZAMELR  WREE
REBZHRTEBRALORZEWBA
_%IHHZ§ZKZZ5%°5£EE%1%EE‘§ %%
MEASWEERGEMDEEERE
A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and

assets recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

33. RIEMIA

MRAEFEREFEBZ FTEREILERIEA
BENBEEREEHUNT

Losses
available for
Fair value offsetting
adjustments  Accelerated against  Provisions,
arising from  depreciation future other
acquisition of and taxable liabilities
subsidiaries amortisation profits and others Total
g
Lo =YNG AR BE-
EENATE MERER FKRERK HHaER
RE i  ENZBR Hith A%
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FHT FHT FHT FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E3) (E2) €2
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—h&—A—H (381,776) (85,689) 138,495 59,616 (269,354)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss ST (0BR) B (1528)
(note 8) 10,157 (9,339) 9,347 6,539 16,704
Credit to other comprehensive SARMZENE
income - - - 620 620
Exchange realignment ERAE 2,758 774 (1,109) (200) 2,223
At 31 December 2019 and RZIZ2-NE+ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 R-E-2F-F—AH (368,861) (94,254) 146,733 66,575 (249,807)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss S (0BR) B (B728)
(note 8) 148,037 (6,670) (81,411) (4,540) 55,416
Credit to other comprehensive FARMZENE
income = = = 95 95
Exchange realignment ERAE (6,078) (2,464) 3,983 73 (4,486)
At 31 December 2020 WIZB-EF+-A=+-H  (226902)  (103,388) 69,305 62,203 (198,782)
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33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
financial reporting purposes:

wmERIT ETEERBEERE
BERGEMBIRRRPED LT
BMEEBZBELEREGHFUAMBRS
R ED T -

2020 2019
—ECEF “E-NE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(E%)
Net deferred tax assets recognised REEMBRRIRERZ
in the consolidated statement of RIEIRIB B ZE R ER
financial position 28,120 24,673
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R E B R KRR 2
in the consolidated statement of RIEIRIE B AR
financial position (226,902) (274,480)
(198,782) (249,807)

At 31 December 2020, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
arising in (i) the PRC amounted to HK$21,443,000
(2019: HK$1,565,000) that would expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits, and
(i) the USA amounted to HK$599,720,000 in respect
of federal tax and HK$624,627,000 in respect of state
tax that would expire in future subject to local tax
legislations. The above deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the tax losses
can be utilized will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity.

R_E_FEF+_HB=Z+—H %
EETEMUTHEELENRR
BHEERDBELREBEEE ()P H
%21,443,0008 T (Z&— L F:
1,565,000 7T) * ZEHBEFN—ER
FAEHER DUEH R R ERER AR &
(== A B F R B9599,720,0008 7T
BEAEBMNKRANE624,627,0008 7T 1R
BERRIBIEF R RREE - B HE
BANEE AHENERBAKAEEH
BAREBEENRRERREFN K
THEMZEGEREDR LIURERBE
Eo
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates
range from 5% to 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
venture and associate established in PRC. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries,
joint venture and associate will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future.

33.

BIBFPEEEMRSRE EPEIKTL
ZHELERIEREESTRZKRE
AHBI0%TBANRN -ZREN T
NE—B—BEEM BAR_-ZZ
tE+ZRB=+—HB&ZWm - P
BENEREEZ B EREITARK
WE > N HRBBRBEZBIAREK - HA
EEMS BRMERS%EI0% &
EERMEAESEPEMLILZMEAF
ME-TZNF-—RA-—BEEEZWN
PNk Z IR EAETRIR -

R_B-_B&ER-_B—AE+_H
St+—BtEREEEEFERT
CHBAT GEATNRMEATA
B TR AR 2 o O th U 35 P A 44 22 T8
MREDELERE - EE05 > ZZH
BAF SEARNRMEAITAY
70 BSR4 TR B 5 Ui 3 o
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34. BANK BORROWINGS 34. RITEE
2020 2019
—BCER “B2-hg
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BIFIE(%) -GN FET  BEHE%) B#E FAET

Current: wE

Bank loans - secured BTER-ERF 1.88%-3.48% 2021 19,817  3.44%-4.27% 2020 84,940

Bank loans - secured BITER-FIEIT 1.13%-2.73% 2021 175,526  2.69%-3.52% 2020 139,190

Bank loans - unsecured BTEN-ERF N/A N/A - 3.69%-4.52% 2020 1,031

B B
195,343 225,161
Non-current: JERE
Bank loans - unsecured BTED-EHE 1% 2025 57,559 N/A N/A =
TEA TEA
57,559 -
252,902 225,161

All the current portion of the bank loans bear interests FRBIRITEMN MBS D FEF=X

at variable rates while the non-current portion of bank RO MIBTTERNIERE 2 B Z

loans bear fixed interest rates. EEFZEET R o

Notes: Wizt

(a) All bank borrowings are denominated in United States (a) FrEIRITEEYUETER -
dollars.

(b) The Group has granted a continuing security interest in all (b) x & EEHAEAQXSTKNEBE AT
assets of Continental Aerospace Technologies, Inc. (formerly Continental Aerospace Technologies,
known as Continental Motors, Inc.) (“CMI"), a subsidiary Inc. (B & A& Continental Motors, Inc.)
of the Company and equity interests as the collaterals of (rCl\/IIJ) FMEEERRKRAERNRE
certain bank loans. BIRAEGIEAR TIRITERIEE

el
35. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 35. Ht1AHaR

During the current year, the interest swaps contract
entered into between CMI and Regions Bank was
revised. According to the revised contract, CMI
exchanged the floating interest rate of 1 month
USD LIBOR to Regions Bank for a fixed interest rate
of 3.245%. The start date and the maturity date of
the interest swaps contract have been revised to 28
December 2020 and 27 December 2027, respectively.
The notional amount of the interest swaps contract
is US$45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$348,750,000) and will be gradually reduced
to US$16,277,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$126,146,000) before the maturity date.

F£ R HACMIERegions Banks] I By
MEBEBHEHOEE] RIBELMET
&4 CMIE ERegions BankM 118 B
ExBHRBTRERBANEAEE
FE3I245% - F B SHNFHE
BHREBEDAEBIA ST EE
+ZTAZF+NANHBRZEZtE+C
BZ+tH -FEEBEANEE
£ EA45,000,000%E 7 (BBERLY
348,750,000 70) > M A& F EIEB H AT
R E16,277,000E T (HBERY
126,146,000 7T) ©
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OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued) 35.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the interest
swaps contract is US$6,180,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$47,897,000).

HthBHBaE®E @)
n—_B-_sg&+-_B=+—H0'FE8
BHA4AFE%6,180,000% 5t (18
B 14947,897,0008 7T) ©

LEASE LIABILITIES 36. HEARE
2020 2019
—EZEEFE ZE-NE
HKS'000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Lease liabilities payable: PUTREEM2HEEESE:
Within one year —FR 5,311 5,906
In the second year NE & 5,272 5,242
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZFFHE
(BEEEWF) 15,680 17,533
Beyond five years Bl aE 288,634 291,929
314,897 320,610
Less: Amount due for settlement AR adET
within 12 months shown under FrEE R 1218 B W E
current liabilities B 2 & 58 (5,311) (5,906)
Amount due for settlement after IERBABET
12 months shown under non-current Frami12@R %
liabilities EHRME N 2 & 58 309,586 314,704

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 4.14% to 5.25%
(2019: from 4.14% to 5.25%).

ERAREEEBEZNMETEYIEEREE
FIENFRL14%FE5.25% (ZE—H
F 1 414%FE5.25%) ©
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37. PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 37. BERHEMEE
Product
Warranty claim Other
provision provision liabilities Total
Em
RIEEE KRR Hit&a @ a5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FE
31 December 2020 —ECEF
+=B=+—H
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZ2F—F—H 25,924 15,105 37,130 78,159
Additional provision (note 9)  EEINEE (B15%9) 61,068 20,104 13,273 94,445
Utilised during the year FREHA (8,100) (15,105) (15,598) (38,803)
Exchange realignment [ERIRE 1,784 - 1,527 3,311
Others Hith - - 35 35
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEHF
+-B=+—H 80,676 20,104 36,367 137,147
Portion classified as PEARBEBNEGR
current liabilities (79,967) (13,129) (11,522) (104,618)
Non-current portion JERBEEH 709 6,975 24,845 32,529




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE T EEMRIER (F#) BIRAR

Annual Report 2020

T EEER

wR e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

37. PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 37. BEREMEE @)
(continued)
Product
Warranty claim Other
provision provision liabilities Total
E
RIEE R R Hi&a® a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAETT FET FAET
31 December 2019 ZE-hE
+=ZB=+—H
At 1 January 2019 RZE—nF—A—H 29,272 28,458 39,254 96,984
Additional (reversal of) RESM (Bi[0]) B A
provision (note 9) (H1z9) 26,792 (8,819) 6,998 24,971
Utilised during the year FANEHA (29,636) (4,534) (8,696) (42,866)
Exchange realignment EREE (504) = (496) (1,000)
Others Hih - - 70 70
At 31 December 2019 A ZE-NE
+—-B=+—H” 25,924 15,105 37,130 78,159
Portion classified as PEARBEENIHMR
current liabilities (25,219) (2,519) (14,895) (42,633)
Non-current portion FERENER 1A 705 12,586 22,235 35,526

The Group provides warranties ranging from one to

three years to its customers on certain of its engines. The

amount of the provision for the warranties is estimated

based on sales volumes and past experience of the level

of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed

on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

AEEBREBHESRAEZT FIEM
—E-FFREH FEEBZER
BHERBENEERBEKFZE
RnE AEEFERASZLERESE

WHRBERNEETES] -
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37.

38.

PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
(continued)

And the Group is currently involved in legal proceedings
related to product liability claims. An estimate for
the probable costs has been made for these claims
as product claim provision. This estimate has been
developed in consultation with the Group’s insurers,
legal counsels, historical experience and is based upon
an analysis of potential results. In the opinion of the
directors, these proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The product liability provisions are made for
any present expected product liability claims as a result
of the assessment at the end of the reporting period.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis

and revised where appropriate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the
business development and growth of the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled
or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2020.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including
any executive or non-executive directors thereof
whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of
the world.

37.

38.

BEREMEE &

AERERSREEREERERR
ERFR - FRERRBEREE
EECHZERENIEREIFL G
stemBEAFNEEREREAEERN
REABERERGEE  RiEB
FER TERHREEERNDTE
H-BERR ZEHFREFIEHE
EENGEMBREREREATHE
E-EmEEBREDHEREHRT
HHNEREMRRERSTREMIF
HeoREBFERSZAEEE LN
BERYHETES -

HERGHESTEY
RIE—MERAZ+NEHRTZR
RBFAG L ARAIRMNT —1BE
s 8 (MZst 8L BNAHEAER
PEBEREBREFEHERZGER
ZHERBHBRER UWERER
BESIEIBEFSE T TR HIEZH A
EEEFEEZ AL -BRMZE
M R ZE2EZEFF+ 2/ =+—8H">
BEBRIBEZEEEH TE KR 5
HIEEARITEZ BRI

ZET Bl Z T E2IRTMEIE
1 ZEtEEER2EERMAR-

2. ZstB 2 2RERTATHHE
FANBABDEEERERE
tEAZEES SRBENERE
FEAANL > SEEFRITIF
HITES-
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

3.

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not in aggregate represent
more than 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10%
limit at any time subject to prior approval given
by its shareholders at a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme, together with all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option schemes of any member of the
Group, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group if such grant will result in the said
30% limit being exceeded. As at the date of
this annual report, the total number of securities
available for issue under the Scheme was
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
4.97% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of the Shares in issue as at the proposed grant
date.

38. HEigtEstEl (&)

3

RITHEREZFTERE A
R ERREAER T AR
BA B WA H i B 5 8
BEZmRmBEEREMAIEZET
ZARABRMD (TR5 1) 88
BBBNZFEEMEBRE %
TRMNHBREZ10% AT A FE
B R Ha210% EFR MEBRRE
A FERRELME-RITHE
BRIEZSFEFEHMERTEZ
FTEMKRITHERBERE ERITE
REAEEBTARELATNME
o] 5L fth B A R 51 B9 T e R
TEZMBHERTEBREM
AT RN EE > FEBIB
TEEEITRDEE Z230% ° i
BiEZAERAERBETMALE
NE B E A E A A R S B
HEREERSBE FiM30%
ZER BAFIZHBRE R
AR AR RIEZF B P 2%
T2 85188 %461,959,1008%
Rm HERAFEHRBBPSET
BRAD 4B E > £94.97 % ©

RER+ZERHBERTER
BZeA 8 REAARERNEME
RiESTEEB WK B &5 EIE
TEEERSEERNZBRE
(FmBETE - BEHEE KT
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

5.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
which the Board may determine at its discretion
but such date shall not be earlier than three
months after the date of the grant of such option
is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

The exercise price of an option shall be the
highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

() the nominal value of the Shares.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 28 May
2014 and thereafter for as long as there are
outstanding options granted and accepted
pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the
said 10-year period and in order to give effect to
the exercise of any such options.

38.

REReEstEl (2
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 38. REMRHESE (2
Share options did not confer rights on the holders to EREITEBRTFRHBEAZEREIN
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BRERAEG EREZREF -
At the end of the reporting period and at the date of PREPRERATBFRRERLESR
approval of these financial statements, there were no B itfE (CE—AF 8 HRTEZ
(2019: Nil) share options outstanding. BERGHE o
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 39. TEEFEEAFEEME
Continental Motors United Auto Workers Pension KEZFRBSSETNRAEEE
Plan (“UAW Pension Plan”) (TUAWER fA & 51 211)
The Group has a defined benefit pension plan. It is a AEEEETERBIBRARESE - Z
pension plan for the United States employees which R AHHEREENRAEE
require contributions to be made to a separately EREIBEBERPEHHER Z&EH
administered fund. This benefit pension plan is funded. EARSHE R LB S RIEZTE
Under the plan, the employees are entitled to monthly EEE#EZAWBURKER > (M1
retirement benefits or early or postponed retirement ERBYHEERK AREZBINEIE
benefits when they have early or postponed retirements BISEBRKREN > EBEME TR
subject to certain conditions. o
Continental Motors Post-retirement Life & Health KEEFERAEASEETE
Plan (“Life & Health Plan”) (TAS2RE:121))
The Group provides certain additional post-employment AEEREREERMESE TEIMNERAK
medical and life benefits to employees in the United BEERASEMN ZERANRXZE
States. These benefits are unfunded. Under the plan, FoREZTE EEBE R IWBURKE
the employees are entitled to receive post-employment BEEfo
medical benefits.
The actuarial valuations of the present value of the EEEMNFEEERENEEEET
defined benefit plan obligations were carried out as EINewport Group, Inc. (& & &5 H M)
at the end of the reporting period by Newport Group, REREHARERAEAEUGEERREM
Inc., a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit BRI
actuarial valuation method.
The principal assumptions used at the end of the PRHREAREANETERREIAOT
reporting period are as follows:
2020 2019
—EEF —ENE
% %
Discount rate IR
UAW Pension Plan UAWSR IR 5T 8] 2.00 2.80
Life & Health Plan NSRS 3 1.88 2.44
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39. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 39. EFREAHINET B
(continued)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant RHREAREFMEBARBRRNTE 28K
assumptions at the end of the reporting period is shown ERWRHRAT
below:
Decrease Increase
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate  obligations in rate  obligations
EEEF EEEF
texEH BEERYD HETH BEEM
% HKS'000 % HK$'000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2020 NIE_EHE
+=ZB=+—H
Discount rate IRE (986) (1) 1,219
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-I&E
+ZR=+—H
Discount rate RS (6,460) (1) 7,869

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit plan obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit plan obligations as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised as administrative expenses
in the Group's profit or loss in respect of the plans are as
follows:

FRBRED R RBERBRSARE
ERRVEEZCEEHHTEEBN G
BEEZHEFEEIMEE -SRE
DM EREMAEMEBRTENE
MIR—EBEERBRNAEMET
FREIMRBAREERBAGEE
ENERNE HZERRONEE
ETEERREL-

AN AEREBERRRERRIT
HNEEERANMRAZIT

2020 2019

—EEEF —E—hF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current service cost B HA AR 75 A% A= 2,826 6,395
Net interest expense FERZFEE 375 209
Net benefit expenses (note 9) BHFEZ R (BWEE9) 3,201 6,604
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 39. EFREAFAINET B
(continued)
The movements of the defined benefit plan obligations EEEMNFTEEERSTEEENRAF
and the fair value of plan assets are as follows: BEEEBWT !
Defined benefit Fair value of
plan obligations plan assets Total
EEENHEER HEBEENATE A3
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEI%E  ZE-hE IZEIBE  ZE-AE IZEIZE  ZE-AE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January R—B—8 52,456 36,317 (36,700) (29,412) 15,756 6,905
Pension cost charged to NIRERNBARERE
profit or loss
Current service cost BERF AL A 2,826 6,395 - = 2,826 6,395
Net interest expense (income) FIEHZ (KA 38 1,427 1,513 (1,052) (1,304) 375 209
Sub-total included in profit or loss 5t A#BZ /N5t 4,253 7,908 (1,052) (1,304) 3,201 6,604
Remeasurement losses REMZEKEARINE

(gains) recognised in other Hst 258 (717
comprehensive income

Returns on plan assets (excluding st E|EEEIR (FEEst AR
amounts included in net interest BRI FENEEE)

expense) - 1,345 (3,054) (3,777) (3,054) (2,432)
Actuarial changes arising from AOBEEDHELN

changes in demographic RFEEH)

assumptions (416) (1,278) - - (416) (1,278)
Actuarial changes arising from IBRREDELN

changes in financial assumptions 15 E&H) 4,172 8,957 - = 4172 8,957
Sub-total included in other STAEMZEKER NG

comprehensive income 3,756 9,024 (3,054) (3,777 702 5,247
Others Heth
Contribution by employer EEHEN = - (2,886) (3,000) (2,886) (3,000)
Benefits paid Bt (1,351) (793) 1,351 793 - .

At 31 December R+ZBA=+—8H 59,114 52,456 (42,341) (36,700) 16,773 15,756
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39. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS

(continued)

39.

The major categories of the fair value of plan assets of

the UAW Pension Plan are as follows:

EFEFIFEIRE (2

UAWRAKEZ BN BEERN A TE
ZEEJ/BWT -

2020 2019

—EIERF —E—hnEF

HKS’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Equity instruments AT E 21,627 18,135
Debt instruments BEHTE 18,745 16,417
Others HAth 1,969 2,148
42,341 36,700

The Group expects to contribute HK$2,790,000 (2019:
HK$3,246,000 for the year ending 31 December 2020)
to pension plans for the year ending 31 December 2021.

Since Life & Health Plan is unfunded, there are no plan

assets for the disclosure for the Life & Health Plan for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The average duration of the UAW Pension Plan as at
31 December 2020 is 14 (2019: 14) years. The average
duration of the Life & Health Plan as at 31 December

2020 is 8 (2019: 8) years.

AEEBEHREE_S_—F+_8
=t+—HIEFEAZSRKETEH
2,790,000 7T (ZE—N5F : AR
BE_Z_ZF+-A=+—HILHF
FE 373,246,000 7T) ©

M ASREHARRES WA
E-E-FER-E-_NE+_B
S PlEELEARASREN
B BEERE

RIZEZZEF+ZA=+—H UAW
BASTENFEHERARA14F (ZF
—NF14F) - RIZEZEF+A
=+—H>  ASBRESINFHEHR
RBFE (ZTE—NhF 85
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. BAKiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the KEBNRREARBEUATERKIE !
end of the reporting period:
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hEF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BEETAEE R EE
Plant and machinery % 5= e 1 23 55,443 132,077
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BEFREEEIE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

FEFREAEENEEZER HER
rEBERAERBERNE BER
BENEARLEE U FHEREE
mREAERAEE

AERRBEEBRINVESH REHFE
ENRREB EEHEAEBILF
LB DEFUARELERE T&
BrAfEgRERARRKENRE O
RERBOEAHZBTHR cEBF
ERENEMIISBEMZERFT K
BE_T_ZTFE+_R=+t—HAKZ
BE-hF+_A=+—HLEFERN"
EAEEZBER BRURERFILEN
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42.

42a. Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories

ERMTIAR

42a. TRITADH

A

REBEHR SEBHZzEMIA

of financial instruments as at the end of the REBEWT :
reporting period are as follows:
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
Financial assets at through
assets at fair value other
amortised through  comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total
BATE
BEERF BATE SAHMZE
FIRE)  EtABHZ 1§
MHEE MEEE HEEE CH
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET
2020 ZEITE
Financial assets HEEE
Equity investments designated A FE AEMZE
at fair value through other W@ Z RAKE
comprehensive income = = 389 389
Financial assets at fair value 3@ATEFABRZ
through profit or loss VHEE - 1,938 - 1,938
Trade receivables W E 5 iR 122,955 - - 122,955
Amounts due from fellow — EUWRE R E L EFHE
subsidiaries 15,788 - - 15,788
Loans to an associate BBEARRENER 11,135 - - 11,135
Loans to a joint venture RaE A RENER 1,046 - - 1,046
Financial assets included in st ATBIRE - BE K
prepayments, deposits and  EfhFEURERFRAY
other receivables HBEE 34,012 - - 34,012
Cash and cash equivalents HE&REELZE 914,072 - - 914,072
1,099,008 1,938 389 1,101,335
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42a. Financial instruments by category

42. EMTI A &

42a. ERITED%E #@)

(continued)
Financial
liabilities at
Financial fair value
liabilities at  through profit
amortised cost or loss Total
BREBHEM A YN
5 BREY SFAREZ
B aR B aR a8F
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET
2020 ZEZEE
Financial liabilities MEaR
Trade payables FE1T B Z 8RN 107,783 - 107,783
Other payables HMECIRR L ESER
and accruals 116,493 - 116,493
Bank borrowings IRITEE 252,902 - 252,902
Other financial liabilities HEMH&E - 47,897 47,897
Lease liabilities HEARG 314,897 - 314,897
Amounts due to FES P EZER A B FIE
intermediate holding
companies 26,456 = 26,456
818,531 47,897 866,428
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. £WMTH &
42a. Financial instruments by category 42a. ERMTHESHE &
(continued)
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
Financial assets at through
assets at fair value other
amortised through  comprehensive
cost  profit or loss income Total
BATE
R A BAYE stAHMZE
FIRE  EABHEZ Wz
MHBEE HBEE HHEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2019 —E-hE
Financial assets MEBEE
Equity investments designated A& A E M2 E UK
at fair value through other ~ HZRAKEZE
comprehensive income - - 34,430 34,430
Financial assets at fair value HAFEFABHZZ
through profit or loss MBEE - 1,938 - 1,938
Trade receivables EWE SRR 103,672 = = 103,672
Amounts due from fellow — EUWRE R B A EHE
subsidiaries 20,011 - - 20,011
Loans to an associate RS AR RENER 9,982 - = 9,982
Financial assets included in St ATERIFIE & R AM
prepayments, deposits and ~ [EUERFNBHEE
other receivables 19,818 - - 19,818
Cash and cash equivalents HE&RELZE 990,386 = = 990,386
1,143,869 1,938 34,430 1,180,237
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42.

42b.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
42a.

42. EMTI A &

Financial instruments by category 42a. ERMTHSHE &
(continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
g TN IN
I
MBasE
HK$'000
FAET
2019 —E—-hE
Financial liabilities HMEaR
Amounts due to intermediate FEAT PR IR A B R IE
holding companies 27,846
Trade payables FE{T B 5 BR AR 85,219
Other payables and accruals HEN R R ESHE A 86,111
Bank borrowings RITEE 225,161
Lease liabilities HEAE 320,610
744,947

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’'s principal financial instruments
include bank borrowings, lease liabilities and
amounts due to intermediate holding companies.
The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities, such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

42h.

MBEEEEBERER

FEENTESMITAGER
TRE-HEERRENTEE
RABMIE - LEFEMTANE
ERBREATEENEERM
fHR - REBTA SRV EME
BEEKRER HINEWE SR
MRENEZRR HEEBRE
BMESE -

rEENERMIEMELENT
2 EBE 2 N R B~ =R R B
SERR REERRKRRER
B-BEFTEEFZUMEEEL
FR B EER > BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has intra-group balance denominated
in foreign currency which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amount of the
intra-group asset is EUR19,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$180,863,000) as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
EUR19,625,000, equivalent to HK$171,326,000).
An increase or decrease of 5% in HK$ against
EUR, will increase or decrease in the Group's
loss before tax of HK$9,043,000 (2019:
HK$8,566,000).

In addition, as most of the Group’s business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the
operating units, the Group’s other exposure to
foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate borrowings, loans
to an associate and lease liabilities. The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relates
bank balances and variable-rate bank borrowings.
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
on variable-rate borrowings. The Group mitigates
the risk by monitoring closely the movements in
interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities
regularly.

42, EMTA &

42h.

MHHERABREEBRRER (&)

SHE B

AEBMNEBRRNA B ELS R
Mot E SAEBEKZ I
ERE M_ZE-_ZTE+°AH
=t—H EERAQEBEEE
RIBRTE {E7319,500,0008k 7T (18
180,863,000 T) (Z&
— L& 119,625,000 75 > 48
B5171,326,000587T) o BT
TEUTIBMN T R V5% > i fH A
£ B Y BR AR A 5 18 38 0 30
9,043,000 (ZE—NLF !
8,566,000 7T) ©

SN s R AE BRI D EH
R BERERHIBEUEE
BUZIWREEREE  Fit4x%E
B P A = U EL 0 B R B A g o

FUE @

AEEmBERBENREE M
BEARRENENRKEESR
BAMNATEMNKRER & &
B R AR IRITEER KT BIRTT
BERBZRERENKEAR -
FEBZREREBMEXEARE
EEPRFERBEZFMERKE-
FERBRBUERANXES
REMERAEBTEERER
PR o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

42. EMTI A &
42b. HMFEEMGEEBEZEREBE )

policies (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

FIEmBE ()

UTEREDHTBEBRERS
HRAFBRTEENN AR
MEE-®BREBONMETLR
RRBEHRREENERE
BRBEEFELAREE - WERE

EEEEMEERNXEAR
GERMIE SR 1008 S E
= W RE BB TG 2 A
R SIEP]RELEF -

(Increase)
Increase decrease
(decrease) in in loss
basis points before tax
HERiEm PR3 AIES 18
G 2b) (38 n) R
HKS'000
FET
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_E2F+-HA=+—H
LIBOR BHIRITEERE 100 (1,953)
LIBOR RBIRITREERE (100) 1,953
As at 31 December 2019 WZZE—-hE+=-B=+—H
LIBOR RBIRITREIERE 100 (2,251)
LIBOR RBIRITRIERE (100) 2,251
Credit risk EERME

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

FEEERAERTNREER
FHE=ZHETRZ - AEEH
HREMBEERETEERS
MERHBEBEERIER-
BE FAEEFEERBWREA
AAS 8% 0 R IRBRAV R BRI A &
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42. E£@MT A #E)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and 42b. HBEREEBERERK @)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEREE &)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging &= A b R R BIPE ES
The tables below show the credit quality and the TRIAK+ZAE=+—8>X
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the FEBEGERRAKEBENGEE
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on BERATNREEERAR  *
past due information unless other information is ERERARER EBEEER
available without undue cost or effort, and year- AIEIB O EFSHNEMER
end staging classification as at 31 December. FRIN AR FARBIPE R D48 -
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZER
EHEE
5} SHREBEEHE
External Simplified
credit rating Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
bI3:
FETHR 12 BB BB k173 EL
HK$'000  HKS000 — HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2020 “ZZZ5+ZRA=+-H
Trade receivables* FEWE 5 BR A N/A RER - - - 131,392 131,392
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEWRZ KB AT ZHE N/A R 15,788 - - - 15,788
Loans to an associate BHEATRBNER N/A RER 11,135 - - - 11,135
Loan to a joint venture BAEENBRENER N/A R = - 2,846 - 2,846
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AFEfIFUE & R EM
deposits and other receivables RSN BEE
~ Low risk** — (R AR N/A RER 29,375 - - - 29,375
- Credit-impaired** -BREEHE N/A RER = - 16,926 - 16,926
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEE
- Not yet past due — i REH AA-AA+ 914,072 - - - 914,072
970,370 - 19772 131,392 1,121,534
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(continued)

42. EMTI A &

42b. HMFEEMGEEBEZEREBE )

FEEE (&
R EERFERBIPEER (@)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZEAR
BHEE
58 2HBEHEEFE
External Simplified
credit rating Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
s
E &R MR FIMEE E=REE 1% Ch
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAET
31 December 2019 ZZ-h&E+ZHA=+-H
Trade receivables* FELS & 5 8RR N/A T BB - - - 108,066 108,066
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  FEWL[EZ i B A T 28 N/A R H 20,011 = = = 20,011
Loans to an associate ABENTRENER N/A R H 9,982 = = = 9,982
Loan to a joint venture AEEADRENER N/A RER - = 1,700 = 1,700
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATBFUE & REM
deposits and other receivables ERERNHBEE
- Low risk** — R N/A REF 19,818 - - - 19,818
- Credit-impaired** —-BREERE N/A REH - - 41,774 - 41,774
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEE
— Not yet past due e L AA-AA+ 990,386 - - = 990,386
1,040,197 - 43,474 108,066 1,191,737

* K

For trade receivables to which the Group applies
the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
is considered to be “low risk” when they are not
past and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be “credit-
impaired” when they are in default or there is
information indicating that the debtors are in
severe financial difficulty.

* MAEEERABEESER
ENEWEZIRRMS > U
BEEAKBENEHNRES
P B RARY FE2 29 R o

*x STATRIRIE B K H A FE
KRN BEENEER
ERRERKRBPEEEY
=EMBEENGEERRHA
RILMESIRAE A MERE) - 8
MBEELREONBER
BTREABARRBRENYH
R ZMBEENEEE
ERRREEERE
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42, EMTA &

42b. Financial risk management objectives and 42b. HBEREEBERERK @)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk By R R
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of REBRMNBRE Y RENRE T
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. BEREZESERARE ZTAZ
This tool considers the maturity of both its Fem T ARVEEE WEK
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., B5RM NEBHEREEESE
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from N IRERE -
operations.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance FEENBERDREBF AR
between continuity of funding and flexibility TERUEREFEER A B
through the use of bank loans and loans from ZER UREFmMENFRFE AN
intermediate holding companies. FOEER F 1
The maturity profile of the Group's financial REAR AEBERESETN
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, EBXRIFTRARZHHEEEE
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, BERUWT -
is as follows:
3to
Less than less than 1t05 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
ZE01
RERE OR=EA +=f88 —-Eif RENE Eh
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
2020 Z5I%%
Non-derivative financial instruments ~ JFfiESRIE
Amounts due to intermediate holding ~ EffREERAGE
companies 26,456 - - - = 26,456
Trade payables ERIERRR - 107,783 - - - 107,783
Other payables and accruals HEtEARAKESER = 116,493 - - - 116,493
Bank borrowings RITEE - 197,757 - 60,437 - 258,194
Lease liabilities HEAE - 4,956 14,410 97,683 425,546 542,595
26,456 426,989 14,410 158,120 425,546 1,051,521
Derivative-net settlement fIETR-BHEE
Other financial liabilities HEtmBaR - 2,299 7924 30,721 7,206 48,150
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EWMTITH#E
42b. Financial risk management objectives and 42b. MEEBEEEEREEEK (&
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TENIEEE (B)
Less than 3 to less than Over
On demand 3 months 12 months 1105 years 5 years Total
EEI
R ERE LR=EA +Zf8R —-ERF AENE Bt
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET FiEr FET
2019 —E-NE
Non-derivative financial FiEEMIA
instruments
Amounts due to intermediate ERTEERADNE
holding companies 27,846 - - - - 27,846
Trade payables I RECEE - 85,219 - - = 85,219
Other payables and accruals HEARTRESER = 86,111 S > S 86,111
Bank borrowings BITEE - 1,039 29,873 - - 230912
Lease liabilities REaR - 4,112 16,298 97,337 445,288 563,035
27,846 176,481 246,171 97,337 445,288 993,123
Equity price risk REE
The Group is exposed to equity securities price AEBEARREGVERIEZA
risk of its equity investments which are classified DRARATESAEMERE
on the consolidated statement of financial Wz RAKEMESX ZRA
position as equity investments designated at fair A ESRRE BFat21) o
value through other comprehensive income (note
21).
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity TREJ ERMEHEMAEREER
to every 1% change in the fair values of equity HETEBEFTHELZEZNR
investments, with all other variables held constant HT EBERREBERREKREZ
and before any impact on tax, based on their REE HATESNE1%
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting BRE-REDTHNENMES >
period. For the purpose of this analysis, regarding HREAFESFAEMZEK
the equity investments designated at fair value mZBRAKRE EERHATE
through other comprehensive income, the impact HENTE-

is on the fair value reserve.



244

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
rREIfNZE T2 ERZER (F#8) BRAT
Annual Report 2020 — & —ZBEFLR

o ‘
= -
-~ ! ;

E P e N
g\,a - z>

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B F8$R R Mist
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EWMTIH #E
42b. Financial risk management objectives and 42b. MEEBEEEEREEK (&
policies (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) RIBEE (1)
Carrying
amount of Increase
equity (decrease)
investments in equity
RAREZ i
fREE @ Gei2)
HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET
2020 —E°E
Unlisted investment at fair value WA G ENIELTRE
— Equity investment at fair value through —BAT(EH AEMRE
other comprehensive income Wik~ e in s 389 4/(8)
2019 —E-NE
Investments listed in Hong Kong RES LT BE
- Equity investments designated at fair —BAT(EH AEMERE
value through other comprehensive 2L BN 4=
income plEl 34,041 340/(340)

42c.

Unlisted investment at fair value

BATEYIRNFLHRE

- Equity investment at fair value through — AT EHAEMEE
other comprehensive income W~ RARE 389 4/(4)
Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 42c. ERMITAZATFERATFES
financial instruments REIE

Management has assessed that the fair values
of trade receivables, balances with fellow
subsidiaries, intermediate holding companies,
an associate and a joint venture, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables, other payables and accruals and bank
borrowings and considers the carrying amounts of
these financial instruments at amortised cost are

reasonably approximate to fair values.

EEEENGEWEZ RN A
BRIBAE HEERAF
MEABDRGEATD ZMAERF
SPATRMRIE e R EMER
RRNUBEE - RekFEE
B -EBNEZERN HMEMK
AR ESTER - UKRITEEZ
ANTE W RBZER B
STEMNERMIANKREERAR
TEREESE-
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
42c.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by
the chief financial officer is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments.
At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in
a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are
categorised into Level 1 based on quoted market
prices. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique,
which are recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

The Group invested in certain unlisted
investments. The Group has estimated the fair
value of these unlisted equity investments with
reference to the recent transaction prices with
reasonable adjustment.

42. EMTI A &

42c.

EMITRZATFERAFES
REE &)
MMBREREZAER Y
BHfIaEEETM T AAYF
BEFfBZHRKERF - REER
SEH MBS ERMIA
NEEZHTEEGLETER
NEESH -HEHMBRES
PR A o

MHEEERERZATETA
BRE (MIFRBHFRHE) R
BETREMXZPAERT
RAZE8A-

ReEEATER BER TS
RRER

EFREREZRFETLFR
BHEFESERIBES &K
EEZRR REMBR IR
ZREERMHAGEEZATE
UkHEMEBWR@mALHZRZ A
FEHEEZENBEEE RNHRS
AR HEERRRE-

AERREETIFLHRE K
EE2ERGERABENEBER
SEREZFFLTRERSE
By R FEFEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. £WMTH &
42c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 42c. TMTRAZRAFERRXATFESE
financial instruments (continued) BREIE #E)
Below is a summary of significant inputs to the MTFTARZIZEZZFRIZE
valuation of financial instruments together with a —NWEFE+ZA=+—HE=mI
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December BHMEZEABABBERT
2020 and 2019: EYREZONERE !
Key unobservable inputs and
Financial instruments Fair value as at Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques sensitivity analysis
EXTURZHAYE
$RIA RUTRBZATE ATEER fHER RERE R
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
ZZ°FF ZZ-nE
+ZA=+-B +ZR=+-H
Listed equity investment - Assets - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
HK$34,041,000 active market.
IHREARE = BE- -4 RERTHBNRE TER
34,041,000 7
Interest rate swaps Liabilities - - Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A
HK$47,897,000 Future cash flows are
estimated based on
forward interest rates
(from observable yield
curves at the end of
the reporting period)
and contracted interest
rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the
credit risk of various
counterparties.
FlZ =1 af- - B4 HRRSRE. TER
47,897,000 7t RRESREREER B
L (RERBREBRXZ
EZNHNE) kY

TR TR R
BRBHTERRRY
RREETHR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)
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42. EMTIA &

BT

= =

wR e MR R MR

E+ZA=t—HLEE

42c. THITRZATERATFES

REIE (&

Key unobservable inputs and

Financial instruments Fair value as at Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques sensitivity analysis
BATIHRZHAYE
SRMIA RUTRBEZATE ATEH fhERH RERE A
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
ZE°%% “E-nEF
+ZA=t-B  +CA=t-B
Unlisted equity investment Assets - Assets - Level 3 Market approach using Recent transaction prices
HK$389,000 HK$389,000 issued prices of 1% (2019: 1%) increase/
transactions. decrease in issued prices of
transactions would result
in increase/decrease in fair
value by HK$4,000 (2019:
HK$4,000).
FEmRARE BE- BE- B/ FERBETENTSE  REBRZER
389,000 7 389,000 7 o RANBTBIEM,/HD1%
(CZ-NF 1%) BER
ATEE,/ 4,005
(ZE—NF 4,000%7) °
Unlisted debt investment Assets - Assets - Level 3 Discounted cash flow Yield rate
HK$1,938,000 HK$1,938,000 method was used to 1% (2019: 1%) increase/
capture the present decrease in yield rate would
value based on the result in decrease/increase in
expected yield rate. fair value by HK$124,000/
HK$134,000 (2019:
HK$169,000/HK$185,000).
FETEBRE BE- BE- BB FRNRRERSERE WaEX
1,938,000%7¢ 1,938,000%7¢ BN REERRE. WEEEN/B1% (CF

—NE %) BERAT
B3R /1210124,000% 7
/134,00087 (ZE—H,
£ 1 169,000 7T,/185,000
ET) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

42, EMTA &
42c. TRITAZATFERAFESE

REIE (&)
RFEERAE

FRAFAEREBIAZA
FENESR

instruments:
Fair value measurement using
FRANTERETATEHE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERHE BEATHEE EXFTEE
HRE BABE BARE
(B—%) (B4 (B=H &%
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FE FHET
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTE
+ZRA=+—-8H
Equity investments designated AT Est AEMEEN
at fair value through other mZRERE
comprehensive income = = 389 389
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRZHE
through profit or loss BE = - 1,938 1,938
- - 2,327 2,327
Other financial liabilities Hitt % af - 47,897 - 47,897
As at 31 December 2019 RZFE—hE&E
+-A=+—-H
Equity investments designated A FEFAEMEEN
at fair value through other BmZRARE
comprehensive income 34,041 - 389 34,430
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRZHE
through profit or loss BE - = 1,938 1,938
34,041 - 2,327 36,368

During both years, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

RmEFEER AT ESELE
EE—RERBEB_HRZEER IR
BEEANBHE =R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. HMTA &
42c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 42c. TMTAZRAFERRXATFESE
financial instruments (continued) REIE &)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RFEERHE (B)
The movements in fair value measurements within FR> BZHRAFEFENESD)
Level 3 during the year are as follows: mr:
2020 2019
—EEF “EFE—NEF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Equity investments designated BATESAREMEE RS
at fair value through other ZRAEE—IJFLM !
comprehensive income —

unlisted:
At 1 January w—A—H 389 389
Gains in other comprehensive HittzmWmP 28

income 3,889 -
Disposal HE (3,889) =
At 31 December r+=ZBA=4+—H 389 389
Financial assets at fair value BAFESABRZ M

through profit or loss BE
At 1 January n—HB—H 1,938 -
Addition = - 1,938

At 31 December R+-_BE=+—H 1,938 1,938
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43. MEITBELZEBEZHIK
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRANAEEMRETHEELEZEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash 5 OERASRIFRSEH MEE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BES 2 EBEAHERERERRKIR
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future ESRERAEBEZFAREREXRD
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated BAMB IEZIRERE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
2020 et o3 3
Amounts
due to
intermediate
Bank Lease holding Dividend
borrowings liabilities ~ companies payable Total
FEft
R R
RITEE HEAR ARRE RS =h
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZE2Z25—-F—H 225,161 320,610 27,846 = 573,617
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BMEBE&HELE 23,490 (5,934) - - 17,556
New leases WHE - 202 - - 202
Exchange realignment ERAE - 19 (1,390) - (1,371)
Interest expense HEZH 4,251 14,500 - - 18,751
Interest paid classified as operating ~ DEALERSREN
cash flow BAFE - (14,500) - - (14,500)
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZZHE

+ZRA=+—-H 252,902 314,897 26,456 = 594,255
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE-_ZEE+-_HF=+—HILEE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43. MEBEFBELZEEZHIR (E
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(continued)
2019 —E-hEF
Amounts
due to
intermediate
Bank Lease holding Dividend
borrowings liabilities companies payable Total
T
R
RIEE HEER YNSIENE] e AR & &t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-h&E—FE—H 121,249 35,091 28,815 - 185,155
Changes from financing cash flows ~ MERERELEH) 100,146 (5,295) 812 (93,034) 2,629
New leases HE - 290,824 - - 290,824
Exchange realignment ERAE - (10) (1,781) - (1,791)
Interest expense FEZH 3,766 7,014 - = 10,780
Interest paid classified as NEARERTREN
operating cash flow BREFHE - (7,014) = = (7,014)
Dividend paid BEfRE = = - 93,034 93,034
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NE
+-RA=+—H 225,161 320,610 27,846 - 573,617
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 44. FEFRERH

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$202,000
(2019: HK$290,824,000) in respect of lease
arrangements for motor vehicles (2019: land and
buildings).

FER AEEBRAE (ZTE—AF:
THIRET) AERH 2 EREEER
HEaENIEREEMA202,00087T
(ZZ— N4 : 290,824,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-EF+_H=+—HIEE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. FAMAR %

(@) In addition to the transactions described (a)
elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

BHERRSEMEZRFI
4S8 [ A 47 Py 2417 ML R
ETE

2020 2019
—E-EEF ZE-NEF
HKS'000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Interest income on loans to B EABREHNERZ
an associate* ) B2 WA 550 541
Fellow subsidiaries: EENI=VN=IIN
Sales & 165,965 186,285
Purchases REE = 256
Short term lease payment to an BB EER AT EE
intermediate holding company ZHAFE B IR 1,468 -
b Details of the loans to an associate are set out in 3 A EARIRENERZH

note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRI RS MBERERMEE18.

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of (b) FEFFTEEEERE IR :
the Group:
2020 2019
“EIEHE —EAE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Short term employee benefits RHREERN 2,394 2,561
Post-employment benefits ER &R 36 24
Total compensation paid to key ST EEEEBHEZ
management personnel AN 42z 2,430 2,585

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EREEME 2 E—TFHBHR
MR G M B IWARMEEI0
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE T EEMRIER (F#) BIRAR
Annual Report 2020 — = — FBEFETR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—

held by the Company at the end of the reporting period

are set out below.

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital
B
%Iﬂﬂﬁ'i_\";/ LER/
Eay A RE S AfRE
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000
Hong Kong 1,000% 7T

EBEYHE/EH
Motto Investment Limited (“Motto")* British Virgin Islands/ US$68,200,000
Hong Kong 68,200,000% 7T

EBRIEE/EH
Continental Motors Deutschland Limited*  British Virgin Islands/ Us$1
Hong Kong (S

EREYHE/EH
cMmi USA Us$10
e 10%7T
CG Germany EUR25,000
=6 25,0007
Continental Motors (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000
REESE IR) BRETAT hE/ hERH 4,000,000% 7%
Kingspot Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ HK$1
Hong Kong AT

EBRUEE/EH
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Uss$2
Hong Kong 22T

EREUHE/EF

* The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries were

not audited by Deloitte’s members firm.

wR e MR R MR

ToBE+-A=—BLLEE

= =

ERBETEMBABZHE

AR BEMRFERREERFE
BHEADZ HERNL T

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

2020 and 2019
“E_ZERZ-hE
EAREGEREERERL
Direct Indirect
i m%
100 -
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 100
100 -
100 -
100 -

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Design, development and
production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and
spare parts and provision
of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines

R BERLEBBMERE
EERPRRECURASEE
BYRRHEBRBRSS

Design, development and
production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and
spare parts and provision
of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines

Rt BERLEBRMERM
EEEPRREAURAEE
EHRRUEERRBRIS

Sale of aircraft engines and parts

HEMTZEBRRAST
Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RAER

* FRE LS E AR EEM B RE
WEEEHZHERTEZ -
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46.

47.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during both years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised
as follows:

Principle activities

46.

Principle place of business

ERRETEMBABZHE
(&)

LRILEERABSEEOSEE
$EETBRERGAEAEEBE
EABBNAAAHBEA - EER
B HBEMHBADNERTIL &
SRBBRES

RWEFERN > BEEANE AR
TREEEERES-

RBRERR ARBDEAHAEEM
EUFERNEMMBAT - ZFW
BREREBOEEBEE -AZENE
ABNETBEBRABAT -

Number of subsidiaries

FEXRH FESEME MEBABE®E
2020/12/31 2019/12/31
“RoBE CENE
+ZA=+—H8 +ZA=+—H
Investment holding Hong Kong 6 7
KREER BE
Mainland China 1 1
R A 3
7 8

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative financial information has been
reclassified in order to conform with current period’s
presentation.

47.

[LEBHF

AETHEBRYBENEENIBRUTE
N GERII
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  48.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

AT BIRAR

ERARBARKRSHARNYHT R IR

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as HEREIUWT :
follows:
2020 2019
—EZF% ZE—NE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(7))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BEMRE 46 57
Investment property S—E/ES 128,200 151,500
Investments in subsidiaries WEBASZKRE 1,887,555 2,603,533
Total non-current assets FEREEELE 2,015,801 2,755,090
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BNRMEBE-RER
other receivables HMEUWERR 322 2,828
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIEEEE 675,945 854,540
Amounts due from subsidiaries AL NGRS 253,198 248,532
Total current assets MBEEMRE 929,465 1,105,900
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Other payables and accruals HMEMRARRESTER 2,973 3,191
Tax payable FETIRIE - 6,060
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI NGRS E] 606,465 602,361
Total current liabilities MENBERE 609,438 611,612
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEEFRE 320,027 494,288
Net assets BEEFE 2,335,828 3,249,378
EQUITY =
Issued capital BETRE 930,337 930,337
Reserves* R~ 1,405,491 2,319,041
Total equity REmAEE 2,335,828 3,249,378
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

48. FBREMRBRRE (@)

A F5 e R B 5E

& A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: k3 KATEEBROT -
Retained
Share Asset profits
premium revaluation Contributed (accumulated
account reserve surplus loss) Total
5 BE BziEA
HIERR BEEHE BARE (RESE =5
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—h&E—H—H 1,857,729 - 5,243 370,582 2,233,554
Profit and total AR A FE2E WS
comprehensive 4z
income for the year - 130,615 - 47,906 178,521
2018 special dividend “E-N\ERIRE - - - (93,034) (93,034)
At 31 December 2019 and R ZZ—H%F
1 January 2020 +-B=+—HK
—E2IE2F—H—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 325,454 2,319,041
Loss and total comprehensive E5IERAERE S H
expense for the year 4a%E = - - (913,550) (913,550)
At 31 December 2020 RIB_ZHF
+-BA=+—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 (588,096) 1,405,491
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the KANBZBABBABERBDREER

excess of the consolidated net asset value of a subsidiary

at the date of its acquisition by the Company in a

previous year pursuant to a group reorganisation, over

the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in

consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated

losses of the Company set off in the prior years. Under

the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed

surplus of the Company is distributable to shareholders

under certain circumstances.

EHZRBEFERE—RBNBEA

&) B

ZMBARRWEERZGS

BEEFEBATATRBBREM
BT ZRAEEBEZESE  LEMNRBRN
BEFERBEZARATREBIER
BRARE-NN—FRFZ%E TAF

BRRE-

ZRABBEETER THHIIKT
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY T F B FE &

31 December 2020 — 2 "FF+_F=+—H

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

FERBELEMBEENXBEREE &
BMIFEREGMANT  HEEEEHE
RERVBRZ LEFBEEY EFD
Bt EMBAIFE BRI BIREAED

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BHE+-A=+—HILEFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZECIZE —ET-NEFE —T-N\H& ZT—+tF T F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
RESULTS ES
CONTINUING OPERATIONS REREEHR
Revenue g 1,246,809 1,458,003 1,341,223 = =
LOSS BEFORE TAX M AIES1E (808,530) (83,833)  (159,025) (69,434)  (688,853)
Income tax credit/(expense) FEHEe,/ (BX) 51,792 29,817 31,893 724 (382)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM REFERELEKZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEEHE (756,738) (54,016)  (127,132) (68,710)  (689,235)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRILERELE
Profit/(loss) for the year from a REBRIELEEB
discontinued operation KERFH,/ (BE) - = 507,569 (267,833) (19,696)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR K (§518) /&R (756,738) (54,016) 380,437 (336,543)  (708,931)
Attributable to: THIALRER -
Owners of the parent BARMAEH (756,738) (54,016) 398,968 (288,481) (685,842)
Non-controlling interests ks = - (18,531) (48,062) (23,089)
(756,738) (54,016) 380,437 (336,543)  (708,931)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- BEE -8Rk
CONTROLLING INTERESTS E[320 g
Total assets BE®E 4,178,556 4,772,624 4,514,263 4,384,075 5,703,073
Total liabilities BEAE (1,332,416)  (1,198,930)  (895,095)  (2,112,143)  (3,176,320)
Non-controlling interests RS - = = (539,427) (553,481)
2,846,140 3,573,694 3,619,168 1,732,505 1,973,272
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RAMES

31 DECEMBER 2020 —_EEF+”"H=+—H
Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
TEER
h 2h A& FHEA P& 15 25
Unit B, 15/F, Office Vacant 100%

United Centre,

95 Queensway,

Hong Kong

BHE i /NES r=E
T IBEI5E

F—H0

1518B=E
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Corporate Information
REER
REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS

Unit A, 20/F, Tower 2, Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS
Principal registrars

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

Hong Kong registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.avic.com.hk

STOCK CODE
232

= = ' ot -
-
» g
> 7Y

LSRR

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda
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